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Living the promise 
under the new normal 

through innovation

The theme is derived from the Fund’s effort to deliver on 
its mandate under the challenges brought about by the 

COVID 19 pandemic, by finding and engaging in new ways 
of doing business.

An example of the Innovation would be finding ways of 
helping our clients remotely through technology, and 

using social media platforms to disseminate information 
and to reach out to our stakeholders.
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About 
MVA Fund

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund (MVA Fund), formerly 
Motor Vehicle Insurance Fund was established through 
an Act of Parliament in 1986 (amended in 1998 and 
2007).We started operations in 1987 and derive our 
mandate from the Act, which prescribes that the Fund 
is established to:

• Provide compensation in the form of benefits (Medical 
Care and Rehabilitation, Loss of Income, Loss of 
Support, Funeral Expenses, Incidental Expenses, 
Enhancement of quality of life), to road accidents 
victims.

• Provide third party insurance cover to drivers and 
owners of motor vehicles.

• Promote road safety and accident prevention: and
• Deal with all matters incidental to the carrying out of 

all the above.

To enhance the quality of life by promoting road safety, 
compensating, rehabilitating and supporting those 
affected by road crashes.

The  core  values represent the attitudes, behaviours 
and characters that will create an enabling 
environment, guide the Fund and shape the high-
performance culture for the successful implementation 
of the Strategy.

Customer focus: We promote road safety and provide 
support to our customers in order to heal the wounds 
inflicted by road crashes.

Empathy: We provide emotional and physical support 
to our claimants in a rational and objective manner, to 
help them reach their health and economic goals. We 
do understand claimants' experience from road crashes 
and placing ourselves in their situations.

Teamwork: Our environment provides opportunities for 
us to develop team spirit and work together to create 
more value for our customer.

Integrity: We do business in a transparent manner and 
treat everyone with respect by displaying consistent 
moral and ethical standards.

Innovation: We exploit our potential by continuously 
improving on what we do and how we do it, in pursuit 
of service excellence.

Best chance to normal life.
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Honourable Peggy O. Serame

Minister of Finance and Economic Development

Private Bag 008

Gaborone

Dear Minister Serame,

It is with great pleasure that I submit the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report and 

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2020 for tabling before 

the National Assembly.

This submission is in accordance with Section 19(1) of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act.

Yours Sincerely,

Michael Mooketsi Tlhagwane

Chief Executive Officer

For the year ended 31st December 2020
Submission
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BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

A B

E F

C D

G H

A. Dr. Mompati Oganne Mmalane
Board Chairperson

Dr. Mompati O. Mmalane obtained his 
Medical Degree from the University of 
Tuebingen, West Germany, in 1986 and 
started employment as a medical officer 
at Princess Marina Hospital (PMH). He 
subsequently trained as a surgeon 
becoming a Fellow of the Royal College 
of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1996. In 
2002 he obtained an M.Sc. degree 
in Orthopaedics from the University 
College London. He practiced medicine 
for 18 years before being appointed 
to administration position of Hospital 
Superintendent at Princess Marina 
Hospital (PMH).  He was later promoted 
to the position of Director of Clinical 
Services at the Ministry of Health.

Dr Mompati O. Mmalane is employed 
as Deputy Chief Executive Officer  at 
the Botswana Harvard AIDS Institute 
(BHP). He has served in a number of 
Boards, including the MVA Fund Board 
(1997–2008), national committees and 
task-forces. Currently he is a member 
of the University of Botswana Council 
and Trustee Member of the Cancer 
Association of Botswana. His special 
interest is in Strategic Management and 
Quality Management Systems.

B. Ms. Prescilla Gower
(Vice Chairperson)

Ms. Prescilla Gower is a seasoned Human 
Capital Management Executive with a 
career spanning over eighteen (18) years. 
Her work experience ranges across 
different industries including, Consulting, 
Retail, Parastatal, Mining and is currently 
in the Banking industry. She has vast 
experience in Human Capital Strategy, 
Remuneration, Talent & Performance 
Management, Recruitment, Employee 
Engagement, Culture Transformation 
and Training and Development.

Ms. Gower holds a Bachelor of Arts 
(Psychology & Sociology) from Monash 
University, Australia, a Diploma in 
Organisational Development from 
University of South Africa and is 
currently pursuing a Master of Business 
Administration – Strategy with the 
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Board of Directors

Edinburgh Business School. Moreover, 
Prescilla holds a Global Remuneration 
Professional Certification from World@
Work, USA and is an Accredited Reward 
Specialist by the South African Reward 
Association. She is highly experienced in 
human capital transformation projects 
gained from Debswana where she was 
employed between 2008 and 2013 
and in her current role at Absa Bank 
of Botswana. Ms. Gower joined Absa 
Bank Botswana in 2013 and currently 
holds the position of Head of People 
Transformation and Reward.

C. Mr. Keolebogile Pele Moleta
Board Member

Mr. Keolebogile P. Moleta obtained 
his Bachelor’s Degree, majoring in 
Economics and Accounting from the 
University of Botswana in 1992 and 
started his career with FNBB as a finance 
officer. He subsequently obtained an 
Associate Diploma in Banking in 1994 
with the Botswana Institute of Bankers. 
He has served in various management 
and leadership roles in both the private 
and public sector. Mr. Moleta served as 
corporate affairs executive and board 
secretary for the then Botswana IFSC, 
head of corporate banking at FNBB and 
held the position of Director General 
and CEO of Botswana Postal Services. 
He led the business development team 
at Hollard Insurance from January 2019 
to October 2020. In November 2020, Mr. 
Moleta joined FinSef, Insurance Brokers 
and Risk Consultants as a partner.

He has served in a number of Boards, 
including the Botswana Savings Bank, 
Southview and Botswana Couriers & 
Logistics. He is currently the chairman 
of the board of trustees of the Cancer 
Association of Botswana, and serves as 
an indepedent non executive director 
of Vunani Fund Managers (formerly 
STANLIB Investment Management). His 
special interests are wellness, leadership 
and SMME.

D. Professor Bugalo Maripe
Board Member

Professor Bugalo Maripe graduated 
from the University of Botswana with 

a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) Degree. He 
obtained a Masters in Laws Degree from 
the University of London, Kings College. 

Professor Maripe is a lecturer at the 
University of Botswana where he teaches 
law. He is also a practising attorney under 
the name and style, Prof Bugalo Maripe 
and Company. He is a member of the 
Board of Adjudicators of Botswana.

E. Mr. Thamsanqa Bernard Majova
Board Member

Mr Thamsanqa B. Majova graduated 
from the University of Botswana with a 
B.Com (Management) Degree in 1990. 
Upon completion of his studies, he 
joined the National Development Bank 
where he served for a year. He then 
joined the insurance industry where he 
served in various capacities. Some of 
the companies he worked for include 
Regent Insurance, Marsh and Botswana 
Insurance Company Limited where he 
was Executive General Manager.

F. Dr. Comfort Jazzman Mokgothu PhD
Board Member

Dr. Comfort J. Mokgothu graduated from 
the University of Plymouth (UK), where 
he obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in 
Education in 1996. He obtained both his 
Master of Science (2000) and Doctorate 
in Health & Physical Activity (2007) from 
the University of Pittsburgh (USA). He 
was a  lecturer at both Molepolole and 
Tonota colleges of education and later 
joined the then Ministry of Education as 
Principal Education Officer. 

Dr. Mokguthu is currently employed as a 
Senior Lecturer & Head of Department 
(Sport Science) at University of Botswana. 
He is Chairman of Board of Directors of 
Sea Rail Botswana based in Namibia 
and also a member of the National Road 
Safety Committee.

G. Mr. Neo Michael Mokgothu 
Board Member

Mr. Neo Michael Mokgothu holds the 
following qualifications; BComm (UB), 
CMA (Australia), ACIS ( UK ), AccTech 
(BICA). He is currently a Consultant/

partner at Rebatswana Investments t/a 
Micro Consultants providing Accounting, 
Administration, Secretarial and Business 
Development Services. 

Mr. Mokgothu started his career in 
accounting at Central District Council 
as an Assistant Treasurer then took 
up the position of Cost Accountant 
at Kgalagadi Breweries (Pty) Ltd.  He 
previously held the position of Finance 
Manager at the following companies: PPC 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd, Parmalat Botswana 
(Pty) Ltd, Cadbury Botswana (Pty) Ltd 
and PG Industries (Botswana) (Pty) 
Ltd. Mr. Mokgutho held the position of 
Administration Manager in the following 
companies: Sefalana / Bolux Milling and 
Sefalana Sa Botswana Ltd. He also held 
the position of Finance/ Administration/ 
Human Resources Manager at Kwena 
Rocla (Pty) Ltd. 

Mr. Mokgothu is experienced in 
Accounting and Finance, Governance and 
Administration. His primary focus was 
on financial management, management 
control, analysis and reporting, 
performance monitoring and application 
of best Corporate Governance practices in 
order to maximise return on investments 
and minimising organisational risks.

H. Ms. Grace Ndi Sekwababe
Board Member

Ms Grace N. Sekwababe holds the 
position of Senior Assistant Accountant 
General in the Office of Accountant 
General – Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development. Previously she 
was Assistant Accountant General from 
2012 to 2016. Before then, Ms Sekwababe 
held the Position of Senior Accountant 
at Tati Landboard and Mahalapye Sub-
District Council.
 
Ms Sekwababe is a Technician Member 
of the Botswana Institute of Chartered 
Accountants. She holds a Bachelor of 
Accounting Degree from University 
of Botswana and AAT (NCVQ). Ms 
Sekwababe previously served as a Board 
Member of National Food Technology 
Research Centre (NFTRC) and 
Chairperson of the Finance and Audit 
Committee.
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EXECUTIVE 
MANAGEMENT

A. Mr. Michael M. Tlhagwane 
B. Ms. Mpule Ditirwa  
C. Mr Menard Mothetho
D. Mr. Tshepiso  Mmoloke 
E. Vacant   
F. Ms. Lesego Keitsile 
G. Ms. Lydia Masilo-Nkhoma
H. Mr. Thabo Morotsi

Chief Executive Officer
General Manager- Customer Services
General Manager - Corporate Services
Senior Manager - Finance & Administration
Senior Manager-Customer Services
Senior Manager- Investment (Ag.)
Senior Manager-Case Management
Senior Manager-Board Secretary & Legal Services
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I. Mr. Phenyo B. Mogae 
J. Mr. Thomas Brandy
K. Mr. Mompati Bontsibokae      
L. Mr. Lesesa H. Mtonga       
M. Ms. Poppy C. Sechele 
N. Mr. Itumeleng Morwe
0. Mr. Mookodi M. Seisa 

Senior Manager-Strategy
Senior Manager-Information Technology
Senior Manager-Injury Prevention
Senior Manager-Claims & Investigations
Senior Manager-Human Capital
Senior Manager- Internal Audit
Senior Manager-Corporate Communications
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Performance Highlights
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Perfomance Highlights & Value Added Statement

Value Added Statement 

Net fuel levy income 88 562 089 109 148 231
Third Party 3 569 439 8 571 575
Investment income  117 222 137 130 236 505
Share of Profit from Associate 34 414 535 29 536 064
Other income     1 240 703 714 200
  245 008 903 278 206 575
    
   
Changes in fair value gain on financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income                                                                                                    189 838 937                 282 023 114
Claims paid and cost of others (314 154 504) (356 142 007)
Impairment (3 490 022) (35 854 888)
  117 203 314 168 232 794
    
   
VALUE APPLIED   
  
Employee benefit  63 631 491 59 459 126
Depreciation                                                                                                                                                      3 192 952                    3 104 449
Amortisation         1 446 071 41 509
Total comprehensive gain/ (loss) 48 932 800 105 627 710
                                                                                                                                                                       117 203 314 168 232 794

2020 2019

Value Added 2020 Value Added 2019 
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4.6

EmployeesReinvested 
to mantain 
/ expand 
oprations

Reinvested 
to mantain 
/ expand 
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Key Performance Indicators
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Total expenses/claimants

Investment income/total 
income

Return on equity
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Free assets ratio

Net third party cover 
income/total income

Claims expenses/net fuel 
levy and third party cover

Solvency ratio



Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2020

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          11 10          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

It is with great pleasure that I present 
the Annual Report for the year ended 
31st December 2020 to our Shareholder 
and valued stakeholders. This annual 
report gives an integrated overview of 
the operations, financial performance and 
governance of Motor Vehicle Accident 
Fund for the year ended 31st December, 
2020. 

As a responsible public entity, we 
hold this report in high esteem, and in 
preparing it we were guided by integrated 
reporting as enshrined in King IV Code on 
Corporate Governance for South Africa, 
2016 and the International Integrated 
Reporting Framework. We remain 
focused in providing superior service 
to our claimants and key stakeholders. 
Our mandate is unique in that we 
provide service to claimants who do not 
voluntarily turn to the Fund for assistance, 
but are compelled by unfortunate road 
traffic crash incidences to seek assistance 
from the Fund. Armed with extensive 
knowledge of our claimants, we always 
endeavor to provide service with empathy, 
a shoulder to lean on, a hand to hold and 
a heart to confide in. 

In discharging our mandate, we are 
primarily guided by our core values of 
Customer Focus, Empathy, Team Work, 

Integrity and Innovation. We endeavor to 
provide “Best Chance to a Normal Life” 
to our claimants through compensation, 
rehabilitation and support to bring them 
closer to their pre-accident lives and re-
integrate them into the society.

The year 2020 was an extremely 
challenging year not only to the Fund, but 
the whole world. The advent of the COVID 
19 pandemic resulted in Government 
taking stringent measures to control the 
spread of the virus through a State of 
Emergency which introduced lockdowns, 
restrictions on movement (local and cross 
border), social distancing and banning the 
sale of alcoholic beverages. Movement 
restrictions negatively affected the Fund’s 
primary sources of funding as restricted  
traveling led to reduced income from fuel 
levy and third party insurance cover paid 
by Non-Botswana registered vehicles. 
In addition service delivery was greatly 
affected as claimants could not physically 
access the Fund’s offices while the Fund 
could not undertake pre-planned visits 
to the claimants in furtherance of its 
mandate. 

I am happy to report that despite these 
challenging times, we managed to 
provide a world class service to our 
customers. The Fund had to leverage 

CHAIRMAN’S  
REPORT

As a responsible public 
entity, we hold this report 
in high esteem, and in 
preparing it we were guided 
by integrated reporting as 
enshrined in King IV Code 
on Corporate Governance 
for South Africa, 2016 and 
the International Integrated 
Reporting Framework. 
We remain focused in 
providing superior service 
to our claimants and key 
stakeholders.
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on technology to service the claimants, 
especially those requiring immediate 
medical interventions while improved 
stakeholder engagements enabled other 
services like funeral claims to be sourced 
directly from funeral undertakers.

We also had to review our operations in 
the face of the pandemic and this resulted 
in the closure of the Rail Park Office in 
Gaborone as it posed a serious health risk 
to the employees and customers as the 
size of the office made it difficult to comply 
with the recommended social distancing 
protocols.   Employees also had to work 
from home and on shifts to reduce the risk 
of the spread of the virus. To compensate 
for the closure of the Rail Park Office, the 
Fund established service centres in the 
private hospitals in Gaborone to improve 
accessibility to claimants requiring 
medical and rehabilitative interventions.  

Strategy

The year 2020 marked the third year of 
implementation of the Kgogamasigo 
Strategic Plan (2018 -2022). The strategy 
implementation rate as at 31st December 
2020 was 91.5% being marginally above 
the target of 91.0%. To foster continuous 
improvement and to ensure alignment 
with best practices, the Fund conducted 
a mid-term review of the strategic plan 
during the year 2020. The objectives 
of the review were to assess progress 
made towards achieving planned 
strategic objectives, assess relevance 
of identified strategic interventions and 
identify opportunities for continuous 
improvement. The revised Strategic Plan 
2021 – 2022 will be implemented effective 
January 1st, 2021.

Risk Management

Risk management is a primary role of 
the Board. The Fund has identified risks 
which are likely to impede the delivery of 
its mandate and a risk log is maintained 
to manage the risks. The top five risks are 
managed through the Finance and Audit 
Committee and reported to the Board 
on a quarterly basis while lower risks 
are managed operationally by executive 
management. The Board has approved 
Enterprise Risk Management Documents 
and the Business Continuity Policy and 
Plans. These documents will inevitably 
assist in integrating and embedding 
a culture of risk management in the 
business activities of the Fund. 

Governance

The principles of good governance as 
enshrined in King IV Code of Governance 
continues to underpin our existence.  
The Board provides oversight role and 
strategic leadership while Management is 
charged with the operations of the Fund 
and reports to the Board on a quarterly 
basis or as frequently as the business 

of the Fund dictates. In discharging our 
fiduciary role, we are guided by the ethos 
of ethical leadership, good governance, 
effective control and legitimate decisions. 
The Board has during the year endorsed 
the King IV Code by infusing its principles 
in the existing Board Charters. The revised 
King IV Code emphasizes the concept 
of sustainable development which 
promotes, integrated thinking, corporate 
citizenship and stakeholder inclusivity.
 
To ensure board effectiveness and for 
continuous improvement, the MVA 
Fund Board will periodically review its 
governance structures and charters to 
align with emerging corporate governance 
trends and best practice. Locally, we 
continue to work closely with Public 
Enterprises Evaluation and Privatization 
Agency (PEEPA) on governance related 
issues. The Board is a member of the 
Institute of Directors of South Africa 
(IODSA) which also owns rights to the 
King Codes on Corporate Governance. 
 
The Future

The Fund remains optimistic that with 
many countries starting to roll out the 
COVID  19 vaccines, the world economy 
will recover heralding better performance 
of both local and offshore investments. 
We commit to ensure the Fund remains 
sustainable by actively being involved in 
initiatives that are intended to reduce road 
crashes, improved management of costs, 
plugging possible revenue leakages and 
improving returns on our investments.  To 
continue providing timely compensation, 
medical and rehabilitative assistance to 
our claimants, we shall improve existing 
mutual relationships with our key 
stakeholders to ensure positive outcomes 
in the rehabilitation of those affected 
by road traffic crashes. We will continue 
to engage rehabilitation centers both 
regionally  and outside our region in order 
to enter into service level agreements in 
furtherance of our mandate.

We are hopeful that the process to review 
the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act 
2007 and Motor Vehicle Accident Fund 
Regulations 2008 which commenced 
some years ago will be concluded 
in the coming year owing to fruitful 
engagements with the parent Ministry 
and the Attorney General Chambers. 
The aim of the review is to improve the 
administration of the scheme to make 
it seamless, and to serve all eligible 
claimants while also refining some 
benefits.

The Fund has embraced the 4th 
Industrial Revolution and our Information 
Technology Strategy will be fully 
exploited to explore new and innovative 
technological advancements to improve 
service delivery. Leveraging on technology 
will bring about convenience to our 
customers, reduce the cost of service 

delivery by enhancing processes geared 
towards improving customer satisfaction.
On behalf of my fellow Board Directors, I 
wish to welcome on board the following 
Board members appointed during the year 
2020; Dr. Comfort Mokgothu, Ms. Grace N. 
Sekwababe, Mr. Michael Mokgothu and 
Ms. Prescilla Gower. We look forward to 
your valuable contributions and trust 
that you will bring value to the team. In 
the same breath, let me also bid farewell 
to the following Board members whose 
tenure in office expired during the year; 
Mr. Marshlow P. Motlogelwa, Mr. Lawrence 
Thebe, Ms. Elaina Gonsalves, and Ms. 
Macie Molebatsi. 

We shall continue to cherish your 
legacy with the Fund. Let me further 
appreciate the MVA Fund employees 
who remain a treasured asset to the 
Fund. Your dedication and commitment 
in discharging the mandate of the Fund 
is highly acknowledged. Continue serving 
the public with compassion for yours is 
not a job but a calling.

Lastly, I wish to sincerely recognise our key 
stakeholders who are instrumental and 
contribute greatly to the achievement 
of our strategic goals such as Botswana 
Police Service who investigate the causes 
of road traffic crashes and provide our 
claimants with statements for lodging 
claims and further for promoting safety on 
the roads, Department of Road Transport 
and Safety for collaborating with the 
Fund on promotion of road safety. 

Special thanks to Ministry of Health and 
Wellness and its network of hospitals and 
clinics around the country for treating 
road traffic crash victims and the private 
hospitals and clinics for the great work 
in taking care of our claimants and to all 
other stakeholders. We also recognise 
the role played by the private emergency 
service providers who offer medical 
assistance to our claimants and evacuate 
them from the scene of road traffic 
crashes. We fully understand that for us 
to successfully implement our mandate 
we need your unwavering support. To 
this end we shall continue to fostering 
positive relations with all the role players 
in providing a better service to our 
customers and the nation at large. 

We fully understand that for us to fully 
implement our mandate we need your 
unwavering support. To this end we shall 
continue fostering positive relations with 
all the role players in providing a better 
service to our customers and the nation 
at large. 

Re a leboga.

...................................................................................
Dr. Mompati Oganne Mmalane 
Board Chairman



Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2020

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          13 12          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

The year 2020 was challenging owing 
to the emergence of the COVID – 19 
virus which affected the whole world. 
Many countries resorted to lockdowns 
and curfews to reduce the spread of 
the corona virus which resulted in 
a significant slowdown in economic 
activities. The slowdown in economic 
activities saw the value of most of the 
stocks in all major stock markets taking 
a huge knock.

Botswana was not spared by the 
pandemic as cases of Covid – 19 virus 
infections started rising early in the year, 
prompting government to introduce 
stringent measures to minimise the 
spread of the virus including national 
lockdown, curfews, zonal movement 
restrictions, social distancing, banning 
of the sale of alcoholic beverages and 
introduction of wearing of masks. The 
State of Emergency was declared and 
consequently there was total lockdown 
in the months of April 2020 and 
May 2020. After the total lockdown, 
government eased economic activities 
to allow for trading of essential goods 
and services.

Government initiatives to control 
the spread of the virus affected the 

operations of the Fund both positively 
and negatively. On the positive side, 
road traffic crashes and associated 
fatalities and serious injuries reduced 
significantly owing to restricted travel. 
On the negative side, the Fund’s primary 
sources of funding and performance 
of local investments were significantly 
affected. The Fund’s operations were 
also affected as follow-ups of claimants 
at homes, schools and hospitals could 
not be undertaken while some claimants 
could not lodge claims on a timely 
basis. The Fund however, leveraged on 
technology and improved stakeholder 
engagements to provide services to its 
claimants and service providers.   
 
Service Delivery 

Though there were significant 
challenges posed by the need to comply 
with lockdowns, curfew and inter 
zonal movement restrictions, the Fund 
continued to serve the claimants and 
key stakeholders in furtherance of its 
mandate.

The Fund established a Covid - 19 
Response Team to enhance business 
processes to assist those in need of 
the Fund’s services. Some employees 

CEO’s 
REPORT

18 623
crashes recorded  2019

15 075
crashes recorded  2020
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worked from home while others worked 
on a rota basis to service our customers. 
The Fund had to invest in information 
technology platforms to enable 
employees to work from home while at 
the same time ensuring security of the 
Funds information from intrusion by 
third parties.

The customer services and case 
management departments were at 
the forefront of service delivery during 
the national lockdown. Queries from 
the claimants were resolved on-line 
by customer services department’s 
employees working from home. Improved 
collaboration with Botswana Police 
Service enabled the Fund to receive 
daily and on-line information of those 
who died from road traffic accidents and 
this enabled the Fund to reach out to the 
families of the deceased on a timely basis 
to arrange for funeral assistance. The 
Fund entered into agreements with the 
funeral parlours countrywide to assist 
families of the deceased to bury their 
loves ones while the Fund guaranteed 
direct payment to the service providers 
and thus limiting claimants’ physical 
movements.

Owing to the need to comply with the 
health regulations, the Fund advised 
claimants to delay elective procedures so 
that focus could be placed on claimants 
requiring serious medical interventions. 
As the Fund could not undertake 
hospital visits, the Fund leveraged 
on technology to monitor claimants’ 
treatment and recovery progress. The 
private hospitals shared daily updates 
of the claimants’ rehabilitation progress 
through emails and assisted the Fund 
to keep track of inpatient claimants. In 
addition, the Fund relied on technology 
to approve treatment authorization for 
those requiring medical interventions 
and the claimants were informed of the 
approval through short message service, 
e-mails and WhatsApp.

Despite the challenges above, the Fund 
was able to assist claimants and other 
key stakeholders within reasonable 
times and the lessons learnt during the 
pandemic will continue to propel the 
Fund to improve service delivery.
 
The Fund’s call center has also improved 
service delivery as call in customers 
are assisted through the telephone 
by dedicated employees who are 
experienced in customer service. This 
arrangement also improves service 
delivery to walk-in customers as they 
don’t have to wait in the queue for 
service while frontline customer service 
officers assist other customers through 
the telephone. 

The Fund’s physical presence in the 
major towns which is complemented 

by two (2) mobile offices enables the 
claimants and the public to access the 
Fund’s services. The mobile offices were 
however restricted to Gaborone and 
Francistown catchment areas during the 
year.

Promotion of Road Safety

Promotion of road traffic safety is one 
of the Fund’s core mandates and on 
an annual basis the Fund allocates 
significant financial resources towards 
road safety investment.  Promotion of 
road safety is geared towards changing 
the behavior of road users in order 
for them to adopt positive road user 
behavior to reduce road traffic crashes 
and the associated fatalities and serious 
injuries. Reduction of fatalities and 
serious injuries will result in lower claims 
compensation and enable the Fund to 
attain financial sustainability. 

Change in behaviour of road users to 
use the road safely is a challenge as it is 
inner driven and cannot be achieved over 
night. People choose to disobey road 
traffic laws even when they know that 
the potential implications of doing so 
can be devastating, such as sustaining 
lifetime serious injuries or worst, dying 
because of an accident. There are in 
addition, stiff penalties for road traffic 
offenders.

The Fund adopts different road safety 
strategies to address all road users. Some 
activities focus on school going children 
at primary and secondary schools to 
inculcate a culture of road safety on the 
children at an early stage of life so that 
they can grow up as responsible adult 
road users. Other activities are geared 
towards improving pedestrian safety as 
there has been an increase in fatalities 
involving pedestrians over the years. 
The age group of 21 years to 40 years 
is also largely affected by fatalities and 
serious injuries and hence some road 
safety activities are specifically targeted 
at this age group to encourage them 
to change behavior and improve road 
safety outcomes. 

Promotion of road safety requires a 
multi-sectoral approach and therefore, 
the Fund collaborates with other 
key stakeholders for effective road 
safety promotion. Key stakeholders 
collaborates through National Road 
Safety Committee which allocates 
various assignments to stakeholders in 
accordance with different pillars of the 
National Road Safety Strategy which 
is aligned to United Nations Decade of 
Action for Road Safety 2011 – 2020.  

Outside the umbrella National Road 
Safety Committee, the Fund has 
formed strategic alliances with the civil 
society through Botswana Christian 

AIDS Intervention Program (BOCAIP) 
which represents churches, Botswana 
Social Studies Association (BOSSA) 
representing schools and Botswana 
Chamber of Mines. Community projects 
are supported under the Community 
Road Safety Grant Scheme (CRSGS) 
which provides financial support to 
road safety projects and activities done 
by community groups to incentivize 
community participation in road traffic 
safety. 

The Fund was part of the Botswana 
delegation to the 3rd Global Ministerial 
Conference on Road Safety which was 
held in Stockholm Sweden in February 
2020. The Delegation was led by Minister 
of Transport and Telecommunications, 
Hon. Thulagano Merafe Segokgo. Since 
the UN Decade of Action 2011 – 2020 
was coming to an end, the meeting made 
recommendations to the UN General 
Assembly to declare another decade 
called the 2nd Decade of Action for 
Road Safety 2021 – 2030 aligned to the 
2030 Sustainable Development Goals.

Owing to the need to comply with the 
health protocols, the majority of the 
Fund’s road safety promotions which 
requires physical interactions were 
suspended effective from April 2020 and 
the Fund leveraged on media and social 
media platforms to disseminate road 
safety messages. The Fund in addition 
collaborated with a local comedian 
named “Mjamaica” to produce seven (7) 
road safety video clips which focused on 
drunk driving, passenger safety, speed, 
pedestrian safety, fatigue and World 
Day of Remembrance commemoration. 
The videos were well received by the 
public and attracted viewership ranging 
between 73 000 and 469 000 per video 
clip which was commendable.

For the year ended 31st December 
2020, the country recorded a significant 
reduction in road traffic crashes, injuries 
and deaths owing to national lockdown, 
inter-zonal movement restrictions, 
curfew and restrictions on sale of alcohol 
imposed by Government to contain the 
spread of the Covid– 19 virus. 

Statistics obtained from Botswana 
Police Service indicate that 15 075 
crashes were recorded in 2020 compared 
to 18 623 recorded in the year 2019, 
being a reduction of 19.1%. There were 
265 fatal crashes resulting in 325 deaths 
compared to 361 fatal crashes in 2019 
in which 457 people died. In 2020, the 
number of deaths declined by 28.9% 
while fatal crashes dropped by 26.6%. 
In addition, serious injuries declined by 
30.8% from 1 183 in 2019 to 819 in 2020. 
Furthermore, minor injuries declined by 
18.6% from 4 802 in 2019 to 3 908 in 
2020. 
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Claims Processing & Management 

For the year ended 31st December 
2020, the Fund received 2 086 
claims being a decrease of 26% when 
compared to 2 828 claims received 
during the year ended 31st December 
2019. The reduction in claims received 
was attributable to lower road traffic 
accidents and associated fatalities and 
serious injuries due to reduced travel as 
a result of government interventions to 
reduce the spread of Covid–19 virus. The 
Fund recorded a significant reduction in 
the number of claims received during the 
lockdown period in the months of April 
2020 and May 2020. 

The claims received as at 31st December 
2020 comprised of 324 funeral claims, 
485 loss of support claims, 1,191 
medical claims and 86 loss of income 
claims. Medical claims were the highest 
proportion of claims received as most 
people who are involved in road traffic 
crashes suffer physical injuries and have 
to be offered medical and rehabilitative 
assistance.

The Fund processed 2,422 claims to 
finality consisting of some of the 2, 086 
claims received during the year and 
529 claims which were brought forward 
from year 2019. From the figure of 2, 
422 claims above, 1, 903 claims were 
settled, 262 claims were repudiated and 
257 claims were offered and awaiting 
acceptance by the claimants. At the end 
of the year there were 193 outstanding 
claims, and these were predominantly 
loss of support claims as the Fund had 
experienced challenges in following 
some claimants owing to movement 
restrictions. The Fund will in year 2021 
prioritise conclusion of the outstanding 
claims.

The Fund settled all claims for serious 
and moderately injured claimants owing 
to existing relationship with Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) providers and 
government and private hospitals.

Case Management

Case Management is intended to support 
claimants injured in road traffic crashes 
through medical and rehabilitative 
assistance to improve their chances of 
attaining optimal functioning and to gain 
independence. The Fund collaborates 
with medical professionals, health 
facilities and family members of the 
injured in the claimant’s rehabilitation 
process.

The Fund has signed memorandum 
of agreements with the Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) providers to 
evacuate those sustaining injuries from 

the scene of a road traffic crash to the 
nearest appropriate medical facility. The 
injured are offered medical assistance 
by the health professionals at the scene 
of a road traffic scene before being 
transported to the nearest appropriate 
health facilities which increases the 
chances of survival geared towards 
attaining the “golden hour” which is 
critical in serious injuries. Ministry of 
Health and Wellness continues to offer 
the Fund evacuation services where 
the private emergency medical services 
providers do not have a physical 
presence. 

During the year, 1,030 people injured 
on the roads were evacuated by private 
emergency medical services being a 
decrease of 19% when compared to 
2,712 injured people evacuated in 2019. 
The decrease in evacuations was due 
to the decrease in the number of road 
traffic crashes, which was attributable 
to the movement restrictions imposed 
by government to combat the Covid -19 
Pandemic.

The Fund has also signed service level 
agreements with the three private 
hospitals in Gaborone and one in 
Francistown to enable ease of access 
to those injured in road traffic accidents 
and requiring medical and rehabilitative 
assistance. Government also plays 
an important role in rehabilitation of 
claimants, particularly in areas where 
there are no private hospitals and in 
instances where the claimants have 
exhausted their medical benefits. 

Hospital admissions declined 
significantly from 1 914 claimants in 2019 
to 494 claimants in 2020 due to the 
national lockdowns and the restriction 
on movements which were introduced 
to curb the spread of the corona virus. 
In addition, elective surgeries were 
cancelled and the hospitals admitted 
only medical emergencies during the 
lockdown. 
 
The Case Management Strategy, which 
is aligned to international best practices 
continue to be pivotal in the Fund’s 
operations as the Fund thrives to meet 
or exceeds the established rehabilitation 
standards. The Fund achieved a positive 
rehabilitation outcome of 100% for 
claimants who suffered minor injuries and 
they were returned to their normal lives 
within a month from the date of injury. 
On the other hand, the Fund attained 
positive rehabilitation outcomes of 89% 
for moderate injuries and 87% for severe 
injuries. 

Claimants with moderate injuries who 
did not meet the rehabilitation standards 
of expected full recovery of two months 
had complications which were still 
under medical management and thus 

compromised their rehabilitation 
process. Claimants who suffered severe 
injuries are expected to fully recover or 
reach their optimum level of functioning 
within the eight months from the date 
of injury in accordance with the Medical 
Disability Guidelines Predictive Models.  

The Fund has signed a memorandum of 
agreement with Indian Spinal Injuries 
Centre to refer claimants with spinal 
cord injuries to their facilities in view of 
the exorbitant medical rehabilitation 
costs regionally. Owing to international 
travel restrictions, the Fund is yet to 
refer claimants to the centre.

Regional Integration

The regional activities in furtherance 
of SADC Protocol on Transport, 
Communication and Meteorology which 
are organised by Trans-Kalahari Corridor 
Joint Operation were not held during the 
year owing to closure of the borders to 
contain the spread of the COVID – 19 
virus. The regional inter-fund activities 
were also affected by the closure of 
borders and the inter-fund games which 
were to be hosted by Sincephetelo 
MVA Fund of Eswatini were cancelled. 
MVA Fund Botswana hosted a virtual 
meeting for the Chief Executive Officer’s 
Forum and the meeting was attended 
by the four countries of Botswana, 
Eswatini, Namibia and South Africa. The 
SADC MVA Funds meeting which was 
to be hosted by Mozambique was also 
cancelled. 

Financial Highlights

The Fund recorded a comprehensive 
income of P48.9 million  for the year 
ended 31st December 2020 being 
a significant decline in perfomance 
compared to the comprehensive income  
of P105.6 million recorded for the year 
ended 31st December 2019. The decline in 
comprehensive income was attributable 
to changes in fair value of financial 
assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income which reduced 
from P282.0 million for the year ended 
31st December 2019 to P189.8 million for 
the year ended 31st December 2020. 

Income

The Fund recorded total operating 
income of P210.6 million for the year 
ended 31st December 2020 being a 
significant decrease in comparison 
to total operating income of P248.7 
million recorded for the year ended 
31st December 2019. The decline in 
total operating income was due to the 
combined effects of lower fuel levy 
income, lower third party income and 
lower investment income.

Fuel levy income reduced significantly 



Customer Services Department

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          15 14          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

from P109.1 million recorded for the year 
ended 31st December 2019 to P88.6 
million for the year ended 31st December 
2020 due to government’s efforts to 
control the spread of corona virus which 
resulted in restricted movements and 
lower consumption of fuel. A significantly 
lower fuel levy income was recorded 
during the lockdown months of April 
2020 and May 2020 respectively. Third 
party income also declined significantly 
from P8.6 million for the year ended 31st 
December 2019 to P3.6 million for the 
year ended 31st December 2020 as a 
result on limited cross border activities. 
There was no income collected in April 
2020 and May 2020 owing to lockdowns, 
while there was limited cross border 
travel in subsequent months which was 
restricted to supplies of essential goods 
and services.

Investment income of P119.4 million for 
the year ended 31st December 2020 was 
also below an amount of P134.3 million 
recorded as at 31st December 2019 
owing to lower dividends received as 
most local companies were significantly 
affected by the COVID – 19 pandemic. 
Some companies did not declare 
dividends while others did not declare 
interim dividends owing to difficult 
trading conditions. 

Expenses

The Fund recorded total expenses of 
P382.4 million for the year ended 31st 
December 2020 being below P418.7 
million recorded for the year ended 31st 
December 2019 owing to lower claims 
and road safety campaign costs. Claims 
costs reduced significantly from P185.9 
million for the year ended 31st December 
2019 to P141.2 million for the year ended 
31st December 2020 owing to lower 
claims received which was attributable 
to lower road traffic crashes and 
associated fatalities and serious injuries. 

Road safety campaign costs declined 
from P7.3 million for the year ended 
31st December 2019 to P5.0 million for 
the year ended 31st December 2020 as 
most of the campaigns which require 
physical interactions were suspended 
to comply with government directives. 
Administrative expenses marginally 
increased from P82.5 million for the 
year ended 31st December 2019 to P82.7 
million for the year ended 31st December 
2020 as most of the planned activities 
in year 2020 were affected by lockdowns 
and movement restrictions.

Financial position

The Fund’s statement of financial 
position improved from P4.1billion as at 
31st December 2019 to P4.3 billion as at 
31st December 2020, largely driven by 
increase in non-current assets from P3.6 

billion at 31st December 2019 to P4.0 
billion as at 31st December 2020. Current 
assets on the other hand declined from 
P0.47 billion as at 31st December 2019 to 
P0.27 billion as at 31st December 2020.

Our People

Our employees continue to discharge our 
mandate diligently in order to provide 
superior service to people affected by 
road traffic crashes. Our service delivery 
model is based on our core values 
and the guiding principle of botho. 
We recognise that for our employees 
to offer superior service to claimants 
and other key stakeholders, the work 
environment must be conducive and 
enable employees to excel while also 
achieving a work-life balance. 

The Fund supports employees through 
various wellness programmes to cope 
with life challenges which can negatively 
impact on employee’s social and 
professional lives.

The Fund’s performance management 
and rewards system contributes to 
employees’ positive performance and 
those who excel are rewarded accordingly. 
The performance management aligns 
individual targets to departmental 
and organisational targets to ensure 
attainment of the Fund’s mandate and 
strategic plan initiatives.

The Fund invests in training and 
development to prepare employees for 
positions of higher responsibilities while 
other training is undertaken to close the 
gaps identified during the performance 
evaluations or those identified during 
recruitment. The Fund offers equal 
employment opportunities to all who 
meet the requirements of the vacant 
positions.

The Talent Management Strategy, which 
is at the heart of the people management 
process and the Competency Framework 
were revised during the year and 
will continue to play an integral part 
of nurturing talent and employing 
the right people in all positions for 
improved organisational performance. 
The performance management system 
was also automated and performance 
contracting in year 2021 will be done 
through the system.

The Fund participated in the 2020 
Deloitte Best Company To Work For 
Survey to determine and improve 
employee engagement levels with a view 
to create a conducive work environment.  
The survey covered four (4) dimensions 
namely; Human Experience, Culture, 
Talent and Leadership. The Fund achieved 
a Gold Seal index of 65.6% compared to 
an index of 68.2% (Gold Seal) attained 
in the previous survey year. The survey 

feedback is used to develop initiatives 
to address low scoring dimensions and 
to improve organizational policies to 
support human capital development for 
the Fund to be an employer of choice.

Stakeholder Engagement

In order to foster good stakeholder 
relations and improve service delivery, 
the Fund continues to engage its various 
stakeholders in different forums through 
meetings with key industry players such 
as local authorities, workshops for health 
care professionals, CEO’s courtesy visits, 
social workers and psychosocial support 
service providers’ seminars.

The Fund addressed Maun Administrative 
Authority and Chobe District Council 
sittings during the year. The Fund 
also held social workers and caretaker 
workshops in Pilane and Gaborone  
respectively. These forums provide 
an opportunity for the Fund and its 
stakeholders to discuss issues of mutual 
interest geared towards improved 
collaboration to enhance service 
delivery. The forums in addition, provide 
the Fund with a platform to educate the 
stakeholders about its mandate as well 
as how the public can access and benefit 
from its products and services.

Outlook

Though our performance was 
significantly affected by the pandemic, 
we believe that performance will greatly 
improve in year 2021 as the Covid – 19 
vaccines rollout continues which will 
result in improved economic activities 
and relaxing of international travels 
which boost the economies of many 
countries including Botswana.

The Fund will continue to invest in 
information technology to improve 
service delivery to the claimants and 
the public. The Fund will be upgrading 
its core information technology 
platform to SAP (S/4 Hana) which will 
improve operational efficiencies. Other 
investments in information technology 
will be geared towards supporting the 
Fund’s working from home programme.

The Fund will review its Succession Plan 
to align it with changes to both the 
organisational structure and personnel. 
Investment in training and development 
which were affected by the pandemic 
will be accelerated. 

Re a leboga.

...................................................................................
Mr. Michael M. Tlhagwane 
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The Customer Services Division is the 
first point of contact between the Fund 
and claimants. The Fund is mandated to 
compensate all those who are affected 
by road traffic crashes and this core 
mandate is largely executed by the 
Division. The Division ensures the delivery 
of the mandate to the satisfaction of 
customers and stakeholders and all 
concerted efforts are made to reach all 
those who are eligible for compensation. 
The role of the Division is to facilitate the 
delivery of compensation from receipt of 
claims to closure of the claim file. The 
Division undertakes claims assessments, 
facilitates provision of medical care and 
rehabilitation, supports and follow up of 
those affected by road traffic crashes. 
The Fund understands the ordeal that its 
customers have been through owing to 
road traffic crashes, therefore, customer 
centricity and empathy are at the core of 
the delivery of services.

Year 2020 was a peculiar year in which 
the world came to a standstill due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic 
has affected the Fund’s operations as 
outlined in this report.

CUSTOMER 
SERVICES
DIVISION

The role of the Division is to facilitate the 
delivery of compensation from receipt 
of claims to the closure of the same, this 
is done through facilitation of claims 
assessments, provision of medical care 
and rehabilitation as well as support 
and follow up of those affected by road 
traffic crashes.
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Customer 
Services 

Department

Case 
Management 
Department

Claims 
Assessments & 
Investigations 
Department

The Customer Services Division consists of three Departments as illustrated in Figure 1 above; 

Figure 1: Departments of the Customer Services Division

Our customers come first; we are committed to serving them with Botho
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01
The Department plays a pivotal role 
in the delivery of quality service to its 
customers. Delivery of quality service 
is done by continuously finding ways 
of improving internal processes to 
consistently meet and exceed customer 
expectations, as well as providing 
customers with a positive experience in 
all the interactions with the Fund. 

CUSTOMER 
SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

Customer Services Department is the 
entry point where claims are received, 
enquiries and complaints are lodged and 
resolved. 

Since the Department interacts directly 
with claimants and the public, it is 
customer focused and service oriented. 
The Departmental staff is empowered to 
address customer’s needs in an efficient, 
professional and courteous manner. 

The Department plays a pivotal role 
in the delivery of quality service to its 
customers. Delivery of quality service 
is done by continuously finding ways 
of improving internal processes to 
consistently meet and exceed customer 
expectations, as well as providing 
customers with a positive experience in 
all the interactions with the Fund. 

Service quality is underpinned by the 
Fund’s core values which represent the 
attitudes, behaviours and characteristics 
that will create an enabling environment, 
guide the Fund and shape a high 
performance culture for the successful 
implementation of the Fund’s mandate 
and corporate strategy.
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Source: MVA Fund revised Strategic Plan 2018-2022

Customer
Focus Empathy Teamwork Integrity Innovation

In delivering our mandate, we 
will always place ourselves in 
the situation that our customers 
find themselves in, so that we 
create value for them.

Our environment provides 
opportunities for us to 
develop team spirit and work 
together to create more 
value for our customers. 

We exploit our potential 
by continuously improving 
on what we do and how we 
do it, in pursuit of service 
excellence.

We proactively assist 
our customers by 
delivering timely, 
consistent and 
quality service.

We do business in a transparent 
manner and treat everyone with 
respect by displaying consistent 
moral and ethical standards.

Figure 1: The Fund Core Values 
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Claimants Testimonials 
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I was involved in a car crash in 2012 and suffered a dislocation and fracture on a knee. Since then, I have been receiving 
medical assistance from MVA Fund. The biggest assistance I have received has been through medical expenses where 
all my hospital visits and counselling sessions have been fully paid for by the Fund. After the car accident I experienced 
post traumatic disorder, but the counselling sessions offered by the Fund assisted me to accept my injuries and gain my 
self-confidence. Had it not been for MVA Fund, I have no idea where I would be. The staff has been patient, understanding 
and very supportive.

Gorata Mositwane

I had a car accident on the 28th of June 2014. I received so much assistance from MVA Fund from the date of the accident 
to the present. I am very happy and satisfied with the services rendered by the Fund. In dealing with the Fund, I did not 
feel that I was in a foreign country owing to the professionalism and empathy of MVA Fund employees. In my dealings 
with the Fund, I reflected on the challenges faced by my fellow nationals in Zimbabwe who are involved in road traffic 
accidents, sustain serious injuries and cannot be assisted as there is no similar compensation body in Zimbabwe. I am 
grateful to MVA Fund for their assistance and their willingness to assist others. Sometimes I wonder how I can thank 
MVA Fund.

Elvis Ncube

I lost a son in 2018 while I was based in South Africa. At the time, and I did not know of the existence of MVA Fund. My 
brother then linked me to the Fund, and I was assisted with the funeral expenses for the burial of my late son. My late son 
did not have a funeral insurance cover, so the compensation by the Fund assisted to a great extent to cover the costs of 
the funeral. I was compensated within a very short time, and this enabled us to bury my son on the planned date. Since 
the death of my son, i have been receiving loss of support benefit from MVA Fund.

Elizabeth Pilane
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The Customer Services Department is responsible for claims lodgement, customer communication and education, handling of 
customer queries and complaints, as depicted in Figure 2 above. The Customer Services function exists in all the branch offices to 
enable the Fund to reach out to prospective claimants to assist them to lodge claims and benefits from the Fund.

Figure 2: Pillars of Total Customer Experience
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Service Distribution Network

In its endeavour to serve its esteemed 
claimants and stakeholders, the Fund 
has strategically expanded its footprints 
geographically, with seven (7) offices 
across Botswana, mainly along the A1 
Route. In addition, there are two (2) 
mobile offices which are used to reach 
out to areas where the Fund does not 
have offices and these areas have high 
numbers of car crashes as per the MVA 
Fund Annual Crash Report. 

The Fund is currently in the process of 
building a regional office in Francistown 
to improve convenience, accessibility 
and capacity to serve communities in 
the northern part of the country. The 
envisaged office will be strategically 
located near the bus rank and other 

service oriented offices/ centres like 
major shops and banks.

Claims Received

The Fund received 2 086 claims for the 
year ended 31st December 2020, being 
a significant decrease of 26% when 
compared to 2 828 claims received for 
the year ended 31st December 2019. 
The reduction in claims received was 
as a result of lower road traffic crashes 
and associated fewer fatalities and 
serious injuries. Owing to Government 
restrictions to contain the spread of 
Covid – 19 virus, travel restrictions were 
imposed resulting in fewer vehicles on 
the road which contributed to lower road 
traffic crashes. The claims received by 
office are shown in Table 1 below.

Figure 3: Geographical Location of MVA Fund Offices 
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Table 1: Claims Received by office in 2019 and 2020

Offices 2019 2020 Increase/Decrease

Head Office 916 916 0

Rail Park 777 184 -593

Francistown 284 258 -26

Palapye 295 216 -79

Mobile Office South 42 135 93

Mobile Office North 136 115 -21

Maun 191 149 -42

Selebi-Phikwe 114 64 -50

Kang 73 49 -24

TOTAL 2 828 2 086 -742

Figure 4: Claims received by office in year 2020
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The Fund recorded a significant reduction 
in the number of claims received during 
the National Lockdown period in the 
months of April 2020 and May 2020. The 
number of claims received post national 
lockdown remained below those received 
during the corresponding period in 2019 
with the exception of October 2020 
where there was a marginal increase 
in claims lodged compared to October 
2019. 

Post the lockdown period (June 2020 to 
December 2020), the Fund recorded 204 
fatalities compared to 311 recorded in the 
corresponding period in 2019. Fatalities 
give rise to funeral expenses and loss of 
support benefits.

Claims Received by Benefit Types

The Fund received 2,086 claims in 2020 
and these were categorised by benefit 
types as shown in Table 2 below.

The decrease in the 
number of claims received 
in 2020 is attributable to 
fewer road traffic crashes 
owing to movement 
restrictions to control the 
spread of the Corona virus. 

Table 2: Claims received by benefit types in 2019 compared to 2020 

Benefit Type Claims received in 2019 Claims received in 2020 Increase / Decrease in claims 
received

Funeral Expenses 458 324 -134

Loss of Support 554 485 -69

Medical Assistance 1 702 1191 -511

Loss of Income 114 86 -28

Total Submissions 2 828 2 086 -742

Table 2 above shows that there was a decline across all benefits for claims received in 2020 which was attributable to the 
movement restrictions.
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Fig 5: Claims Received by Months in 2019 compared to 2020
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Figure 6 above shows that medical 
claims accounted for 57% of the claims 
lodged, followed by loss of support 
claims at 23%, funeral assistance claims 
at 16% while loss of income accounted 
for the remaining 4%. Medical claims are 
higher as most claimants suffer physical 
injuries during road traffic crashes hence 
require medical and rehabilitation 
assistance.

Eligible vs Lodged Claims for 
crashes that occurred in the year 
2020

The Fund proactively follows prospective 
claimants to encourage them to lodge 
claims and utilise the benefits as early 
as possible to avoid either delayed 
medical interventions or compromising 
the quality of their lives by delayed 
financial compensation. Information 
of prospective claimants is received 
from the Botswana Police Service, 
government and private hospital and 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
providers.

Medical Claims 

Out of the 1 890 eligible medical claims 
shown in Table 3, the Fund received 1 191 
claims representing a lodgement rate 
of 63%. The remaining 37% were minor 

injuries and these potential claimants 
are not eligible to lodge claims as they 
were treated on an outpatient basis and 
healed and further they do not qualify 
for monetary compensation. The minor 
injuries are low risk claims hence the 
Fund expends minimal resources to 
follow-up the potential claimants to 
submit the claims for compensation.

Due to the Covid-19 restrictions enforced 
in health institutions, conducting hospital 
visits for purposes of assisting all eligible 

claimants remains a challenge. The Fund 
therefore relies on notifications from 
some hospitals and the EMS evacuation 
reports to assist those eligible to lodge 
medical undertaking claims. 

The Fund is currently in consultation 
with major health facilities to design 
processes that will accommodate the 
“New Normal” and this will go a long way 
in assisting the Fund to identify eligible 
claimants amid the challenges imposed 
by the pandemic.
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Figure 6: Categorisation of claims received in 2020 by Benefit Type

Table 3: Eligible Vs Lodged Claims
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Table 4: Funeral Expenses claims received by nationality 

Claims 
Received

Nationality of Deceased

Citizens
Citizen not RTA 

related
Non-Citizens 
with permit

Non-Citizens (visitors)

306 4 5 13

Totals 324

Figure 8 below gives a summary of Funeral Expenses claims lodged and how they 
translate to Loss of Support.

Loss of Income

For the year under review, the Fund 
received forty-three (43) loss of income 
claims from the Risk 1 and Risk 3 
categories of claimants. Risk 1 represents 
claimants who are severely injured and 
were employed at the time of the injury, 
whilst Risk 3 are claimants who suffered 
moderate injuries and were employed at 
the time of the injury. 

Funeral Expenses  

For the year ended 31st December 2020, 
300 funeral claims were lodged by the 
families of deceased people from 309 
eligible claims resulting in a lodgement 
rate of 97%. The remaining nine (9) 
families of deceased persons who have 
not lodged claims during the period 
under review are for accidents that 
occurred at the end of December 2020 
and these will be processed in 2021.

Loss of Support

Loss of Support claims are not reflected 
in Table 3 as those eligible to receive the 
Fund’s compensation are unknown until 
the families of the deceased submit the 
claims.  Of the 300 deceased persons 
whose families lodged funeral expenses 
claims, 39 deceased were minors while 
the remaining 261 were adults.  

Deceased adults who had dependants 
were 208 while 53 adults did not have 
dependants and their funeral claims 
were paid and the files closed. From 
the 208 eligible claims, 189 families 
submitted 372 claims which translated 
to a lodgement rate of 90%. The families 
of the remaining 19 deceased adults have 
been contacted and are being assisted 
to lodge Loss of Support claims. 

The Fund will receive an estimated 
38 claims from the families of the 19 
deceased adults who did not submit their 
claims for the Loss of Support claims. 
The estimated claims are based on the 
historical figure of two dependants per 
one deceased adult.  None of the 39 
deceased minors had a dependent and 
the claim files were closed after payment 
of funeral expenses claims.

24

300

2019 and prior years

2020

There were 324 funeral expenses claims received in 2020 of which 24 claims were for 
the fatalities that occurred in 2019 and prior years.

Funeral Expenses claims by year of accident

Figure 7:  Funeral Expenses claims received in 2020 by year of accident
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Service Management

The Fund uses a Customer Interaction 
Portal, which is a queue management 
system to improve service delivery. The 
Customer Interaction Portal monitors 

the average customer waiting and 
service times at customer contact points. 
In 2020, the Fund achieved a service 
rating of 72% being an improvement 
of 11% from the 65% attained in 2019. 
The improvement in service rating was 

attributable to improved efficiencies 
introduced within the Division which 
include the use of technology to assist 
claimants remotely and the introduction 
of the call centre to enhance the 
resolution of queries and complaints. 

The service rating as indicated in Table 5 
above gives an analysis of tickets issued 
to claimants by each office. Palapye 
Office scored 90.8% whilst the lowest 
score of 41.3% was recorded at the Head 
Office. 

The low rating of the Head Office was 
attributed to the significant increase 
in number of claimants without a 
corresponding increase in staff because 
of temporary closure of Rail Park Office. 
The situation was also exacerbated by 
the fact that the Fund was operating at 
50% of staff to comply to the Covid-19 
protocols, hence it took longer to assist 
claimants.

MVA Fund Service Standards

The Fund Service Standards define a 
framework for meeting or exceeding 
customer expectations. The standards 
commit the Fund to timely compensation 
claimants. 

The service standards are measured 
on weekly basis for Medical assistance, 
Loss of Income, Funeral Expenses, and 
Loss of Support. In 2020, the Fund’s 
average performance rate was 75% 
against a target of 88%. In comparison 
to the year 2019 performance rate of 
78%, the current year’s performance 
has declined by 3%. Early in year 2020, 

before the first national lockdown, 
the Fund recorded service standards 
performance rating of 85%, but during 
the period of limited movements, the 
Fund started experiencing a decline in 
the performance of its service standards. 

Improvements were noted immediately 
after the lock down though there was 
still a challenge of restricted movements 
and other Covid-19 guidelines making it 
difficult for officers to undertake follow 
up of claimants. The performance of 
Service Standards is reflected in Table 6 
below. 

Table 6: Service Standards Performance

Benefit Type Service Standard Achievement 2019 Achievement 2020

Funeral Expenses Within 8 hours 100% 97%

Medical Expenses (non-Emergency) Within 5 days 78% 68%

Loss of Earnings 6 weeks 70% 76%

Loss of Support 2 months 64% 60%

Average Performance 78% 75%

Table 5: Service Rating by Office

Branch
Name No. of counters Tickets Served

Tickets Served 
Within Targeted 
Queuing  Time

Tickets Served 
After Targeted 
Queuing Time

Service Level 
Achieved

Palapye 2 3,302 3,007 295 90.8%

Francistown 2 4,686 3,860 826 82.4%

Rail Park 2 4,056 3,095 961 76.3%

Maun 1 1,856 1,393 463 71.3%

Head Office 2 13,746 5,706 8,040 41.3%
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External Customer Satisfaction Survey

For the Fund to remain relevant to claimants and stakeholders, it periodically conducts 
surveys. For the year under review, the Fund conducted an External Customer 
Satisfaction Survey as a way of soliciting feedback from the customers. The study 
sample included claimants across all the benefit types and was extended to all the 
offices. The Fund scored an index of 76.5% compared to the target of 84.7%. Results 
showed that Selebi-Phikwe Office scored the highest at 77% followed by Palapye at 
75%, while Mobile Offices scored lowest at 62%. 

The low scoring is impacted by the fact that the mobile offices covers vast areas 
and experienced delayed feedback to claimants due to poor network connectivity in 
remote areas. The benefit type that scored high was Loss of Support at 82%, followed 
by Funeral expenses at 78% while loss of income scored the lowest at 65%. The Fund 
also scored lowly on queries and complaints management recording a score of 35.47% 
as customers were not happy with the Fund’s complaints procedure and were also 
unhappy with the limitations brought about by the MVA Fund Act. The Fund will in 
year 2021 plan to address the challenges which resulted in low scores.

“We are totally commited to the challenges of meeting these standards. Indeed 
they are a reflection of our shared aspirations to serve our customers”. 

In light of the feedback received the 
Fund has developed  a plan to implement 
measures aimed at improving the low 
performing areas which were:

• Unclear and inadequate information on 
products and services;

• Long customer services processes; and 
• Queries and complaints management.

The report provided some 
recommendations to assist the Fund 
to transition to an outcome-based 
organisation. The summary of the 
recommendations are as follows:

• Create an inclusive approach to involve 
staff to gain their perspectives of the 
organisational goals;

• Review Fund operations to 
eliminate those which no longer aid 
organisational goal attainment;

• Goal mapping; developing measures 
of success that goes with organisation 
strategic direction.

Call Centre Facility

The implementation of the Call Centre 
supports the strategic objective of 
Improving Customer Satisfaction as 
outlined in the MVA Fund Strategic Plan 
2018 – 2022. The objective is anchored 
on the following goals that the Fund 
seeks to achieve:  

• To improve customer experience;
• To reduce customer complaints. 
• To improve the external customer 

satisfaction index.

The call centre facility was set up to 
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Figure 9: MVA Fund Service Standards
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Figure 10: Some of the comments shared by the participants are as shown:
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segregate walk-in customers from those 
requiring assistance through the phones. 
The implementation of the facility is so 
far achieving its purpose of promptly 
addressing the needs of the customers. 
The average ring time has improved from 
15 seconds to 9 seconds. Furthermore, 
the implementation of the call centre 
has facilitated segregation of duties 
which has improved efficiency of the 
customer services operations at the 
Head office. The department continues 
to monitor the facility to identify further 
opportunities for improvement.

The Call Centre facility was rolled out 
from the month of March 2020 and 
is manned by two officers. For the 
months of March 2020 to June 2020, 
the call centre received 735 calls at an 
average ring time of 9 seconds. There 
was no activity during the months of 
April 2020 and May 2020 due to the 
lockdown. For the remaining months to 
end of December 2020, the Call Centre 
received an average of 600 calls per 
month.  The calls received were largely 
from claimants residing in and around 
the Gaborone area. Figure 11 shows 
the category of assistance  required by 
claimants who were assisted through 
the Call Centre. 

The figure shows that the highest 
number of calls are on enquiries followed 
by Loss of Support payment follow-ups. 
The enquiries are mostly on the products 
and services offered by the Fund and the 
claim lodgement process.  

Impact of COVID- 19 to the Fund’s 
Operations

The Fund’s operations were negatively 
affected by the need to comply with 
the presidential task force directives 
to curb the spread of the Covid – 19 
virus. The Fund had to act proactively 
to ensure business continuity and that 
service to customers was not disrupted, 
especially those who required immediate 
assistance. The Fund implemented its 
Business Continuity plans to ensure 
service to priority cases which were:

• Medical Assistance: Urgent Medical 
Cases were handled by case 
management to ensure swift delivery 
of services; and

• Funeral Assistance:  Arrangements 
were made with funeral undertakers 
to provide services directly to the 
claimants upon authorisation by the 
Fund and thereafter submit invoices 
directly to the Fund for payment.  These 
arrangements resulted in seamless 
service to claimants and further limited 

the claimant’s movements during the 
lockdowns.

In April 2020, the Rail Park Office was 
declared not compliant to the Covid-19 
health protocols due to the size of 
the office and further that the office 
was sharing communal ablutions with 
other offices in the premises where it is 
located. The office was closed from April 
2020 to the end of the year as it posed 
a health hazard to both employees and 
visitors. Staff located at Rail Park were 
transferred to Head Office to mitigate 
against the risk of contracting the 
Covid-19 virus. The two (2) mobile offices 
did not operate optimally due to the 
movement restrictions within certain 
zones.

During the lockdown period, the Fund 
continued to serve its claimants through 
remote working and continued to do so 
with a decongestion plan that included 
shift work.

Outlook 

The disruptions brought about by 
Covid-19 pandemic prompted the Fund 
to quickly mobilise resources to address 
the challenges of service delivery to the 
claimants and stakeholders.  The Fund 
heavily relied on its Business Continuity 
Management Plan which helped it 
to quickly adapt to the changed 
environment and modify its processes 
to ensure that service delivery was not 
compromised by the need to comply 
with government directives.

The Fund commits to continue 

leveraging on technology to improve its 
efficiencies which will lead to increased 
customer satisfaction. The increased 
use of technology also offered the 
Fund an opportunity to continuously 
receive feedback through social media 
platforms. The feedback will enable the 
Fund to respond to customer’s needs 
and improve technology to match the 
ever changing needs of customers.

The External Customer Satisfaction 
Survey results have presented the 
Fund an opportunity to gain insight 
on customer needs and requirements. 
Through this, the Fund commits to 
continuously improve its services to 
its customers and by improving its 
communication platforms to make 
it easier and convenient to service 
claimants. The Fund is currently 
reviewing the queries and complaints 
policy and the review is anticipated to be 
concluded in year 2021. The revised policy 
will guide claimants on the process and 
procedures to follow in escalating their 
complaints.

The Fund will in year 2021 enhance the 
website to make it more interactive 
and incorporate a self-service where 
claimants can track their claim status 
and receive real time updates from the 
Fund. The Fund will further upload a 
short video on the website containing 
a checklist of information required to 
lodge a claim to ensure that claimants 
submit the necessary information first 
time which will improve the speed of 
settlement of claims. 

Call Centre Telephone Interactions

Figure 11: Interventions requested by call-in claimants
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Claims Assessment and Investigations 
Department is responsible for 
the assessment of claims and the 
determination of the Fund’s liability and 
benefits due to claimants in accordance 
with provisions of the MVA Fund Act 
No. 15 of 2007. The MVA Fund Act, the 
MVA Fund Regulations of 2008 and 

other internal policies guide the Fund in 
determining its liability to claimants. 

The Department consists of three units 
namely, Claims Assessments, Claims 
Investigations and the Right of Recovery 
and Review as depicted in Figure 1 below.

CLAIMS 
ASSESSMENT & 
INVESTIGATIONS
DEPARTMENT

02
This department is responsible for 
the assessment of claims and the 
determination of the Fund’s liability 
and benefits due to claimants. This is 
executed in accordance with provisions 
of the MVA Fund Act No. 15 of 2007. 

Claims 
Investigations

Claims 
Assessment

Right Of 
Recovery

Figure 1: Claims Assessment and Investigations Units
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Claims Assessment Unit

Claims Assessment Unit has the primary 
responsibility of assessing all claims 
lodged by determining the Fund’s 
liability and the extent of that liability 
where it exists in terms of the MVA Fund 
Act 2007 and MVA Fund Regulations 
2008. The Act outlines circumstances 
under which the Fund is liable to provide 
compensation to the claimants as well 
as the benefits due and payable to 
claimants. The Fund has also developed 
policies and guidelines to assist in the 
assessment of claims.

Benefits Payable

The benefits payable as prescribed by 
the MVA Fund Act No. 15 of 2007 and 
the MVA Fund Regulations of 2008 are 
as follows:  

a. Medical treatment and Rehabilitation;
b. Incidental Expenses;
c. Enhancement of Quality of Life;
d. Loss of Income;
e. Funeral Expenses; and
f. Loss of Support.

The Act and Regulations define the 
parameters for each benefit listed 
above as well as extent of liability of the 
Fund. Where the Fund is fully liable, the 
claimant’s compensation for all benefits 
is cumulatively capped at P1 million 
while the cap for limited claims is P 300 
000.00. Section 22 of the Act outlines 
the factors that may lead to limitation 
of a claim whilst Section 23 lays out 
circumstances in which the Fund will not 
be liable to compensate the claimant. 

The Fund has also established internal 
policies to support the legislation and 
aid in achieving as much consistency and 
coherence in the assessment and award 
of benefits, to ensure equitable provision 
of benefits to all those who are affected 
by road traffic crashes.

Medical treatment and Rehabilitation 
benefit

One of the Fund’s core mandates is to 
provide medical care and rehabilitation 
to people involved in road traffic crashes. 
Upon acceptance of liability for the 
injuries sustained in a road traffic crash, 
the Fund pays for the cost of medical 
treatment, care and rehabilitation 
rendered by a health practitioner 
including consultations, treatment and 
hospitalization costs. The payment 
includes both past and future medical 
costs. The medical undertaking and 
rehabilitation benefit takes precedence 

over other benefit types as prescribed by 
the MVA Fund Regulation 19. 

In accordance with Section 22(11) 
of the Act, the Fund is a secondary 
insurer, therefore a claimant who holds 
medical cover either through private 
insurers, their employment contracts 
or through any social security scheme 
will only be entitled to medical and 
rehabilitation assistance from the Fund 
upon exhausting their benefits with 
their private medical covers. In instances 
where the Fund is a secondary insurer, 
it will pay or reimburse the claimant for 
the co-payments made to the medical 
facility and medical and other health 
practitioners. Where the injured claimant 
is a visitor, then the Fund is liable for 
their medical and rehabilitation costs for 
the duration of their stay in the country 
and this benefit ceases upon their return 
to their domicile. 
 

Incidental Expenses

This benefit is supplementary to the 
medical treatment and rehabilitation 
benefit. These expenses are incidental 
to sustaining injuries as a result of road 
traffic accidents. Incidental expenses 
include accommodation, transport 
and subsistence costs incurred or to 
be incurred by the claimant. Incidental 
expenses are claimable upon submitting 
proof of such expenditure. In accordance 
with Regulation 14, the Fund shall pay 
incidental expenses that are considered 
reasonable in each case.  

Enhancement of Quality of life

Road traffic crashes in most cases leave 
permanent physical and psychological 
scars which may totally alter the 
lifestyle of a claimant. Accordingly, the 
Fund has the responsibility to provide 
special support to the claimants to 
alleviate the challenges they face as 
a consequence of road traffic crashes. 
The support includes, but is not limited 
to psychosocial support, provision of 
assistive devices such as wheelchairs, 
crutches, specialized beds, shoe 
raises, housing modifications, office 
modifications and vehicle modifications 
to make the environment conducive for 
the claimant and enable him/her to gain 
functional independence.

Loss of Income

Loss of Income benefit can be disbursed 
as a past or future benefit.Future Loss 
of Income is offered where the claimant 
will be unable to work for a specified 

period or for the rest of their working life. 
Medical experts are engaged to advice 
on the functional capacity of a claimant 
and on the probable period the claimant 
would take to recover. It is however 
important to note that the Fund’s priority 
is not awarding lifetime cash pay outs, 
but rather, on rehabilitating claimants to 
gain full functionality and independence 
or to achieve their Optimum Level of 
Functioning (OLOF). 

The Fund has a Return to Work 
Programme which has benefits to 
the claimant, employer and the Fund. 
Through this programme, during the 
claimant’s rehabilitation, the Fund 
engages the claimant’s employer with 
a view to returning them to work. It 
has been found that once the claimant 
returns to work, their healing process 
improves because of re-integration to 
the community. 

Returning claimants to work also has 
a direct benefit to the Fund’s financial 
sustainability as the Fund will no longer 
be required to pay the loss of income 
benefit. The employer also benefits 
as they do not have to incur expenses 
related to recruiting and training of the 
replacement employee if the injured 
claimant is returned to work. Past loss 
of income pertains to those losses the 
claimant has already incurred between 
the date of accident and the time of 
lodging his/her claims. It is upon the 
claimant to prove such loss.

Funeral Expenses

Funeral expenses benefit is paid to a 
family of a deceased person who died 
as a result of injuries sustained in a road 
traffic crash. The benefit is to assist with 
the burial costs and is payable upon 
proof of incurred burial expenses and the 
maximum amount payable is currently 
P 7, 500.00. The Fund relies on medical 
evidence to ascertain if the deceased’s 
death is accident related. Visitors as 
defined in the Immigration Act are not 
entitled to this benefit. However, a 
foreign national who has a Botswana 
resident permit will be entitled to funeral 
expenses benefit.

Loss of Support

Dependants of a person who dies as a 
result of a road traffic crash are entitled 
to Loss of Support benefit. This benefit 
is awarded to spouses, children below 
the age of 21 years, parents and/or other 
family members upon proof of indigence 
and dependency on the deceased. 
Where the claimant is the parent or any 
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other relative of the deceased, the Fund 
conducts the claimant’s socio-economic 
assessment to determine if they are 
eligible for compensation. 

The income of the deceased is capped at 
a maximum of P6,000.00 per month for 
the calculation of the Loss of Support 
benefit. The maximum amount payable 
to each dependent is limited to P 300 
000.00 subject to a maximum limit of P1 
million for all dependents.  

Claims Assessment Performance 

The year under review was inundated 
with challenges associated with the 
deadly Covid -19 virus. The Government, 
as a way of curbing the spread of the 
virus, introduced some measures such 
as national lockdowns, curfews and 
extreme social distancing. 

The restrictions affected the Fund’s 
operations and consequently, claims 
assessments were delayed. The Fund 

however, performed relatively well 
in discharging its mandate amid the 
challenges. For the year ended 31st 
December 2020, the Fund managed 
to assess and conclude 93% of claims 
received despite the challenges posed 
by the COVID -19 Pandemic. 
 
A total of 2,422 claims were processed 
consisting of part of 2,086 claims 
received during the year and 529 claims 
which were brought forward from 2019 
and prior years.

1. NB: Settled: relates to claims in 
respect of which the claimant has 
accepted the Fund’s offer.

2. Repudiated: refers to claims declined. 
3. Offered: claims for which Offers were 

dispatched during the period.
4. Outstanding: all claims which have not 

been finalized.

As at 31st December 2020, there were 193 
claims outstanding for various reasons; 
24 or 12% of these outstanding claims 
were received in 2019 and prior years 
while 169 or 88% were received in 2020. 

The highest number of outstanding 
claims is Loss of Support. 

Determination of loss of support benefit 
is dependent on extensive investigations 
and the Fund must undertake physical 
visits to the claimants to obtain accurate 
information to enable the Fund to make 
an informed decision on whether to 
offer or repudiate a claim. Owing to 
movement restrictions, some inter-zonal 
visits could not be undertaken resulting 
in a high number of outstanding claims 
under this benefit.

As indicated in Figure 2 below, 262 of 
2,615 claims were repudiated which 
translates to a repudiation rate of 10%. 
The claims were repudiated because 
the claimants did not qualify for 
compensation as per the MVA Fund Act. 

The majority of the repudiated claims 
were for Loss of Support benefit 
amounting to 164 claims where claimants 
were in accordance with the Indigence 
Policy not eligible for compensation by 
the Fund.

Table 1: Categorisation of claims performance by status as at 31st December 2020

 CLAIMS STATUS

Lodgement Year Settled Repudiated Offered Outstanding Total Claims

2019 and prior Years 350 64 91 24 529

2020 1553 198 166 169 2086

Total Claims 1903 262 257 193 2615

Percentages 73% 10% 10% 7% 100%

Analysis of Claims Repudiations by Reasons

Figure 2: showing analysis of repudiated claims by reasons as at 31st December 2020
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Claims Investigations

Claims Investigation is an important 
auxiliary function within the Claims 
Assessment and Investigation 
Department. It is responsible for 
collecting and analysing evidence 
needed to establish negligence and 
contribution to the road traffic accident 
for purposes of limitations of benefits 
where applicable under the Act. The unit 
is also charged with the responsibility 
to serve Court documents to MVA Fund 

debtors in the Right of Recovery process. 

The Fund works closely with the 
Botswana Police Traffic Division and 
obtains police reports about the cause 
of the accident and this information is 
then used to assess the Fund’s liability. 
The cooperation of the community 
in volunteering important evidential 
information is also of great value in 
assisting investigators to make timely, 
appropriate and fair conclusions in 
assessing a claim.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 
123 claims were referred for investigation 
comprising 24 quick response claims 
(on call accidents) and 99 non-quick 
responses which were referred in the 
ordinary course of claims assessments.  
From the 123 claims, 120 claims 
were concluded while three (3) were 
outstanding at the end of the financial 
year. The outstanding files were due to 
the fact that the potential claimants 
were still hospitalised.

Right of Recourse & Review

The Fund is entitled through Section 
30 of the MVA Fund Act, to recover 
monies spent in compensating victims 
of road traffic crashes from the person 
responsible for that crash or the owner 
of the vehicle as the case may be. 

The Right of Recourse is aimed at 
promoting road safety by deterring 
irresponsible driver behaviour on 
the road. Such behaviour or conduct 
includes, 

1. driving under the influence of alcohol 
or drugs to the extent of being 
incapable of having proper control of 
the vehicle;

2. driving recklessly;
3. driving without being a holder of a 

valid driver’s licence;
4. driving a defective motor vehicle and 

the said defect led to the accident;

5. driving a stolen vehicle;
6. where being the owner, or lawful 

possessor of the vehicle, permitted 
the vehicle to be driven in any of the 
above mentioned instances & lastly

7. driving a foreign registered motor 
vehicle having failed to pay and obtain 
a third party insurance cover for such 
vehicle.

The Fund uses all available interactive 
forums including its public education 
activities to sensitise the public about 
this initiative. The right of recourse 
process follows the normal debt 
collection route.

During the year ended 31st December 
2020, the Fund cumulatively collected 
P481,942.60 from ROR matters against 
target of P605,000.00 as depicted in 
the table below.
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Figure 3: The performance of the Unit in the year under review
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Table 2 above shows that the lowest 
collections were in the months of April 
2020 and May 2020 due to restricted 
movements caused by Covid-19 
Pandemic. The Fund could not serve 
court process on a timely basis during 
the national lockdown. 

It was also noted that debtors were 
going through hardships during this 
period and not always able to make any 
payments. On a positive side however, 
the department reached its target on 
three occasions during the course of the 
year and the team is working hard to 
maintain this feat.

As part of its efforts to improve 
recoveries, the Fund uses the SMS Alert 
System and telephone calls on a monthly 
basis, to alert those owing to advance 
payment. The Fund has also engaged 
Trans Union (Pty) Ltd  to assist in tracing 
debtors that the Fund is unable to 
locate. Through this system, the Fund 
accesses database of all major financial 
institutions and can obtain the most 
recent contact details of the debtors. 

The system also allows the Fund to 
flag debtors and in return gets alert 
when such individuals apply for any 
financial assistance from the banks. 
Other institutions who have subscribed 
to the Trans Union System are also 
alerted when they conduct credit 
verifications when such debtors are 
flagged by the Fund. The department is 
also in consultation with the Information 
Technology department to find an IT 
solution that will assist in tracking and 
monitoring our debtors.

Claims Review

Before a claimant who is dissatisfied 
with the outcome of claim can take his/
her grievances to court, the MVA Fund 
Act makes it mandatory that a claimant 
should first submit a written statement 
to the Fund setting out their grounds for 
dissatisfaction or complaint to which the 
Fund should respond within a reasonable 
period.

The Fund has established a Claims 
Review Panel to address grievances 
before the claimants can refer them to 
the courts. This panel is a quasi-judicial 
body, which is obliged to objectively 
assess the grievances and any 
supporting facts and draw conclusions 
there from.

Once the grievance has been heard, the 
Review Panel may direct that the claim 
be reassessed, order an investigation or 
medical assessment to be conducted on 
the claimant depending on the nature 
of the complaint, or uphold the findings 
of the initial assessment. The Claims 
Review Panel is the final authority in so 
far as the internal claims appeal process 
is concerned. 

For the year ended 31st December 2020, 
the Fund received 32 complaints of 
which 31 were rejected and one (1) was 
upheld. The Panel also ensures that the 
matters brought to it are resolved within 
the 14 days prescribed by the MVA Fund 
Act.

80000

70000

60000

50000

40000

30000

20000

10000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC0

Target Collections

2020 ROR COLLECTIONS

Table 2: showing Right of Recovery (ROR) collections as at 31st December 2020.
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OUTLOOK

During the year under review, the Claims Assessment & Investigations Department commenced a review of the claims calculator 
to improve its efficiency in calculating claims benefits. 

Furthermore, the Fund is working on upgrading its SAP system to S4 Hana and it is envisaged that the new system will be able to 
improve the Right of Recovery processes. 

Table 3: showing complaints status as at 31st December 2020

Benefit Type No of complaints received Complaints Rejected Complaints Upheld

Loss of Income/ Earnings 6 6 0

Loss of Support 18 18 0

Medical Undertaking 4 4 0

Caretaker 2 1 1

Request for Student 
Sponsorship 1 1 0

Request for enhancement of 
quality of Life benefit 1 1 0

Total 32 31 1
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Since its inception in 2009, the Case 
Management Department continues to 
execute its key function of enabling and 
enhancing the quality of life of those 
affected by road traffic crashes, thus 
underpinning the Fund’s vision of “Best 
Chance to Normal Life”. 

The year 2020 was challenging owing to 
the emergence of COVID -19 Pandemic 
and Government introduced stringent 
measures to control the spread of 
the virus which included lockdowns, 
inter-zonal movement restrictions 
and curfews. In order to alleviate 
the challenge of reduced interaction 
between the Fund, claimants and 
stakeholders, the Fund devised new and 
innovative ways of doing business. The 
Fund also implemented its Business 
Continuity Plans to ensure delivery of 
service to its priority cases.

The fund developed processes that 
leveraged on technology to reach out and 
assist its customers and stakeholders. 
These processes assisted the Fund to 
attend to high priority cases needing 
urgent medical care, rehabilitation and 
support. Through collaboration with key 

stakeholders, the Department continued 
with its main function of offering support 
and meeting the Fund claimants’ needs 
and goals. To that end, the Department 
worked tirelessly to deliver its mandate 
to guarantee claimants quality health 
care and rehabilitation.  
  
The Department consists of three (3) 
sections namely Rehabilitation, Welfare 
and Bill Audits as depicted in Figure 1.

CASE  
MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT

03
The Department’s goal is to facilitate 
and manage benefits discharge 
towards achieving the Fund’s mission of 
improving quality of life of the claimants. 
The main function of Case Management 
is to offer support through collaboration 
with key stakeholders to the Fund 
claimants to meet their needs and goals.
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Bill Audits

Invoice processing, 
ensures compliance 

with billing rules,  
tariff and contract 

management

Rehabilitation

Facilitation and 
monitoring of 

medical care and 
rehabilitation (Acute 
care and long term 

rehabilitation)

Managing Loss of 
Income benefit

Welfare

Psychosocial and 
welfare interventions 

for severely injured 
claimants

Managing Loss of 
Support benefit

Figure 1 above shows the synergy 
between the three sections and depicts 
the contemporary international best 
practice in Case Management that has 
been adopted by the Fund and brings 
together the sections to support the 
claimant holistically.

The Fund collaborates with key 
stakeholders to deliver its services and 
support claimants to enable them to 
attain optimal level of functioning and 
re-integration into their communities. 

These key stakeholders include 
emergency medical service providers, 
health and welfare professionals, funeral 
parlours and the business community. 
This key function is summarised in Figure 
2 below.

Figure 1: Case Management Department

Figure 2: The integrated function of Case Management 

• Clinical Assessment
• Case Creation
• Hospital Visit
• Level of care monitoring
• Post Discharge Planning
• Medical Undertaking 

Utilisation Review
• Referral Management

• Advocacy
• Return to work
• Return to independence
• Participation in Leisure
• Housing/car 

Modification 
• Re-admission 

management

• Post discharge care
• Claim Lodgement
• Referral Management
• Post Discharge home visits
• Interventions to resolve 

barriers to care

• Treatment Authorisation
• Post discharge referrals
• Monitoring adherence to 

treatment plans

Acute Care

Re-integration

Post Discharge Care

Outpatient Care
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Medical Care and Rehabilitation

The Fund through its Rehabilitation Section is proactively involved in trauma management from evacuation of the injured people 
from a road traffic crash scene to long-term rehabilitation. Evacuation and rehabilitation of claimants is in line with the United 
Nations’ advocacy to member states to implement measures to ensure that significant number of lives are saved on the roads. The 
pictorial presentation of the process is shown in Figure 3 below.

Evacuations from road traffic accident scene

The Fund signed memoranda of agreement with six (6) private emergency medical service (EMS) providers to offer the injured 
timely access to emergency medical care to achieve the “golden hour” goal of assisting the injured people. EMS providers respond 
to the notifications of accidents from Botswana Police Service or a passer-by and dispatches ambulances that will offer medical 
support to the injured and depending on the extent of injuries evacuate the injured person to an appropriate health facility.

Road 
Traffic 

Accident

Emergency 
Medical 

Evacuation

Outpatient 
Care 

Admission 
(Multidisciplinary 

Approach)

Post Discharge 
Rehabilitation 

(Multidisciplinary 
Approach)

Socioeconomic
Reintergration

Figure 3: Medical care and Rehabilitation process flow

Figure 4:  Some of the EMS providers
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Table 1 above depicts the number 
of claimants evacuated by private 
emergency medical services in the years 
2019 and 2020. 

During the year 2020, 1,030 people 
injured on the roads were evacuated 
by private emergency medical services 
being a decrease of 19% when compared 
to 1,271 injured people recorded in 2019. 

The decrease in evacuations was 
attributed to the decrease in the 
number of road traffic accidents, which 
was a consequence of the movement 
restrictions imposed by government 
to combat the Covid -19 Pandemic. In 
addition to the private EMS providers, the 
Ministry of Health and Wellness plays a 

key role in assisting the Fund in realising 
its vision of “Best Chance to Normal 
Life” by also evacuating the injured from 
the road traffic accident scenes across 
the country where there are no private 
emergency service providers. 

Hospital Admissions 
 
The emergency medical services 
providers respond to reports on 
accidents and evacuate the injured 
people to the nearest appropriate health 
facilities, which in turn send notifications 
to the Fund regarding claimants 
whom they have evacuated. Once the 
notification of the accident reaches the 
Fund, the officers carry out hospital visits 
to monitor the claimants’ care plans and 

progress. 

During the year 2020, hospital visits 
were greatly affected by the Covid 
-19 restrictions. Nevertheless, the 
Department leveraged on technology 
to monitor claimants’ progress and 
treatments. The private hospitals shared 
daily updates on the claimants’ progress 
through emails and assisted the Fund 
to keep track of these claimants. 
Unfortunately, public hospitals were 
unable to give regular updates due to 
resource constraints.

Table 2 below shows a two years’ 
comparison of claimants admitted in 
private and public hospitals.
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Table 1: Claimants evacuated by private emergency medical services

Table 2: Admissions in Public / Private Hospitals
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During the year under review, hospital 
admissions declined significantly due 
to the national lockdowns and the 
restriction on movements which were 
introduced to curb the spread of the 
corona virus. During the lockdown, 
elective surgeries were cancelled and 
the hospitals only admitted medical 
emergencies. Table 2 above shows that 
admissions dropped from 1 914 in 2019 to 
494 in 2020. 

Post Discharge Rehabilitation

The Fund supports the injured claimants 
on their journey to recovery even after 
they are discharged from the hospital 
to integrate them back to independent 
living. Case Management staff visits 
claimants at their homes to facilitate 
ongoing outpatient medical reviews 
and the long-term rehabilitation. 
As claimants go through the 
rehabilitation, the Fund follows a holistic 
multidisciplinary approach to support 
claimants with complex care needs, as 
depicted in Figure 5. 

Multi-disciplinary Approach 

A coordinated approach through 
a multidisciplinary team plays an 
important role in ensuring attainment of 
positive rehabilitation outcomes.

As depicted in the Figure 5, a 
multidisciplinary healthcare approach 
brings together different expertise 
to support, assist and advocate for a 
claimant to enhance their understanding 
and participation in their rehabilitation, 
improve health outcomes and support 
family members assisting the injured 
claimants. 

The claimants are supported to 
reintegrate them back into the 
community, return them to work and 
independent lives to the extent possible. 

Returning claimants to meaningful lives 
has positive implications on their well-
being and further reduces their long 
term financial dependency on the Fund.

For the year ended 31st December 2020, 
claimants’ rehabilitation outcomes are 
depicted in the Table 3:

Patient

Health care 
Team

Improve 
Communication

Review 
Treatment 

Options

Mediate 
Conflict

Family

Health 
Coaching

Locate 
Resources

Educate

Adopted from: www.piciki.com/stillwatershealthgroup

Figure 5: Claimant multidisciplinary support circle
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105%

Minor injuries

100%

Moderate injuries

89%

Severe injuries

87%

100%

95%

90%

85%

80%

Table 3 above shows that for minor 
injuries, the Fund achieved 100% of 
positive rehabilitation outcomes and 
those who suffered minor injuries 
returned to their normal lives within one 
month from the date of injury. On the 
other hand, the Fund attained positive 
rehabilitation outcomes of 89% for 
moderate injuries and 87% for severe 
injuries. 

The claimants with moderate injuries 
who did not meet the rehabilitation 
standards of expected full recovery of 
two months had complications which 
were still under medical management. 
Claimants who suffered severe injuries 
are expected to fully recover or reach 
their optimum level of functioning within 
the eight months from the date of injury 
in accordance with the Medical Disability 
Guidelines Predictive Models. 

From the year 2020 statistics in Table 
3 above, thirteen percent (13%) of the 
severely injured claimants experienced 
residual disabilities that cannot be 
reversed and will not be able to return to 
independent functioning. The claimants 
are provided with assistive devices to aid 
their everyday lives and are placed under 

the care of their caretakers. Example of 
severely injured claimants include severe 
head injuries where the cognitive domain 
is severely impaired or high lesion spinal 
cord injuries where the claimants lost 
function of all the four limbs.

Medical Undertaking Claims 
Management

The injured claimants who are admitted in 
private and public hospitals are followed 
up by Customer Services staff to assist 
them to lodge claims. The in-patient 
claimants are identified through hospital 
notifications by admitting hospitals and 
hospital visits by the Fund. During the 
national lockdown, the Fund could not 
undertake hospital visits which affected 
early identification of claimants and 
monitoring their rehabilitation progress. 
Other claimants who required urgent 
medical assistance also had challenges 
of physically accessing the Fund’s office 
owing to movement restrictions. In order 
to improve accessibility of the Fund’s 
services to claimants, the Fund through 
Covid – 19 Response Team shared 
valuable information of how those in 
urgent need of its services could be 
assisted. 

The Covid – 19 Response Team used 
the print, electronic and social media to 
inform the claimants and the public of 
the new service delivery arrangements. 
Claimants used emails and WhatsApp to 
contact the Case Management officers 
and were then assisted through these 
technology platforms.  In addition, the 
private hospitals also sent requests 
and treatment motivations to the Fund 
through emails and WhatsApp and 
authorisations by the Fund to hospitals 
were done on-line.

The Fund received 1 191 medical benefit 
claims in 2020 being a decline of 30% 
when compared to 1 702 claims received 
in 2019. The decrease in medical benefit 
claims was attributable to the positive 
impact of Covid - 19 Pandemic which 
resulted in fewer road traffic crashes 
because of movement restrictions. Road 
traffic crashes declined by 19% in year 
2020 compared to year 2019 owing to 
government movement restrictions to 
reduce the spread of corona virus. 

Figure 6 below illustrates the distribution 
of medical claims per office. 
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Figure 6 shows that the highest 
number of claims received were from 
the Gaborone catchment area, which 
correlates with the high number of road 
traffic accidents reported in the area. 

The medical claims have been profiled 
according to the risk exposure which 
assists the Fund to effectively manage 
the claims as it shows high priority 
claims. The risk profiles are categorised 
as follows;

• Risk 1 – Severe and employed; 
• Risk 2 – Severe, unemployed and 

students;
• Risk 3 – Moderate and employed; and 
• Risk 4 – Moderate unemployed and all 

minor injuries.

Table 3: Rehabilitation Outcomes

Figure 6:  Number of medical undertaking claims received by Office for the year 2020
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Table 4 above shows that 569 or 48% of medical claims received fall under risk 4 category and have low value because they are 
minor injuries. Claims under risk 1 category account for 16% of total claims, however in terms of monetary value when combined 
with Risk 2, account for 55% of the medical reserves. 

The medical benefit claims are further segregated by severities and diagnosis as per  below.

Table 5 shows that among the severe 
injuries, the most common injuries 
recorded in the year 2020 are lower 
limbs fractures followed by head injuries 
and upper limbs fractures. According to 
Botswana Police Service’s statistics, the 
most common collision types are those 
involving direct force to the frontal part 
of the car and these cause lower limb 
injuries as the car frontal compartment 

comes into contact with the human body. 
Head injuries are second highest injuries 
and this is attributable to claimants 
being injured in roll-over accidents and 
these injuries leave the claimants with 
lifetime impairments.

The Fund mainly refers claimants who 
have suffered head and spinal cord 
injuries to South African hospitals 

for intensive rehabilitation. During 
the year 2020 owing to cross border 
travel restrictions, these claimants 
were treated locally in non-specialized 
rehabilitation facilities which will in the 
long term compromise attainment of the 
positive rehabilitation outcomes.    

Categorisation of Severe Injuries 
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Table 4: Risk profiling of Medical claims received in the year 2020

Table 5: Severe injuries sustained during the year ended 31st December 2020
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Promotion of Independent living

Improving claimants’ quality of life 
is the Fund’s core mandate and this 
aspiration is an integral part of the 
Case Management Strategy. To reduce 
claimants’ dependency on their Activities 
of Daily Living (ADLs), their long-term 
rehabilitation focuses on returning them 
to gainful employment and modifying 
their environment for ease of access.

Return to Work Advocacy

The Fund introduced a Return to work 
Program in 2010, as a way of enhancing 
claimants’ quality of life after their 
injuries. To further support its Return 
to Work (RTW) program, in 2020 the 
Fund embarked on a strategic initiative 
to advocate for National Legislation on 
Return to Work.

The legislation if passed, will compel 
organisations to develop policies 
and programmes that will support 
return to work of employees post 
injury. The legislation will also improve 
understanding of return to work subject 
and ease the burden of financial support 
of former employees on the Fund and on 
government social security programmes.

Preceding this, the Fund and its regional 
sister Funds hosted RTW conferences 
which informed the need for the 
legislative support. 

The aims of these conferences were to;

• Raise awareness on the return to work 
process, successes, challenges; 

• Advocate for persons with disabilities 
to return to work;

• Promote effective case management 
for return to work following an injury;

• Establish a platform for professionals 
and all stakeholders to engage in group 
interactions, networking, research and 
best practice; and

• Influence policy making at national 
level in light of the African Union and 
United Nations protocols and the 
Convention on the Rights of Persons 
with Disability (CRPWD).

This advocacy initiative is expected 
to be completed in the year 2022 
after thorough engagements with 
key stakeholders in the area of labour 
and advocacy for equal rights. As 
a preliminary work, the Fund has 
commenced engaging key stakeholders 
being employers and employees through 
focus groups and targeted interviews 
to appreciate challenges faced with 
returning claimants to work. Figure 7 
below shows a picture from one of the 
Focus Groups. 

Figure 7: Road crash victim who has returned to work with MVA Fund’s support
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Caretaker Training and Counselling

The Fund supports claimants through 
caretaker training and counselling in 
realisation that following a serious road 
traffic accident, it is often difficult to 
face new challenges and adapt to the 
changed environment. Depending on 
the severity of the injuries sustained, 
claimants may experience memory 
loss, loss of concentration, difficulty in 
processing information, inability to move 
independently and impairment of sight 
and hearing and will therefore require to 
be assisted by a dedicated caretaker.

The claimant’s medical undertaking 
benefit also includes money payable to 
a caretaker to support severely injured 
claimants with activities of daily living. 
Caregivers are a critical component of the 
rehabilitation process as in addition to 

assisting claimant with activities of daily 
living, they also provide psychosocial 
support. Caregivers are often family 
members such as parents, children, or 
partners and they are offered caregiver 
training and counselling provided by the 
Fund.

During the year, the Fund conducted two 
(2) caregiver training and counselling 
workshops and these were attended by 
eighty (80) severely injured claimants 
and their caretakers. 

Housing and Car Modifications 

Reintegrating claimants back into the 
community and to their pre-injury life 
involves making it easy for them to 
access their homes and public areas. The 
Fund modifies homes and cars, for those 
who qualify, to make them accessible 

and thus promoting independent 
living. The modifications are done with 
help of rehabilitation professionals, 
including occupational therapists 
and physiotherapists who make 
recommendations for the modifications 
to be undertaken and other devices 
needed by the claimant. 

Housing modifications include widening 
doorways and bathrooms for ease 
of accessibility by a wheelchair and 
installing handrails to enable claimants 
to independently move around in their 
homes. The main house entrances 
are also fitted with ramps to improve 
accessibility by a wheelchair. 

The following pictures show some of the 
housing and car modifications that the 
Fund carried out during the year. 

Figure 8: Car and house modification
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WELFARE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

In line with best practices in personal injury claims management, the Fund has adopted the World Health Organisation’s (WHO) 
Model of Function which considers a holistic approach to persons’ wellbeing, and to achieve this the Fund has a dedicated Welfare 
Section.  

The Welfare Section facilitates the provision of psychosocial support services to injured claimants and coordinates provision of 
compensation and support to dependents who have lost their breadwinners as a result of road traffic crashes.

Figure 9 above shows the holistic nature 
of the Fund services; the injured claimant 
receives medical assistance for their 
physical injuries and simultaneously 
receive psychosocial support to help 
them deal with the ordeal of the car 
crashes. 

Arrangements are made to support 
claimant’s return to school and work 
by assessing social barriers that may 
impede their rehabilitation progress and 
designing suitable programs for them to 
adapt to the changed environment.

Loss of Support Undertakings 

The Fund’s cumulative loss of support 
undertakings files as at 31st December 
2020 were 5 139 with 5 811 beneficiaries. 
Minor children were the majority of 
beneficiaries at 4 359 (75%), followed 
by parents who numbered 755 (13%) 
while 697 (12%) were spouses. Figure 10 
depicts the number of claimants with 
loss of support benefit.

Road 
Traffic 
Crash

Injured 
Person

Psychosocial Support 
Psychotherapy

Advocacy 
Enhancement 

of Quality of Life

Return to School
Special Education

Educational 
Enhancement (Tutorial, 
Educational Assistive 

Devices)

Loss of Support 
Compensation (Spouse, 
Minor <21yrs, Indigent 

Parents/Relative)

Deceased 
Person

75%

13%

12%

Spouse Parent Minors

Figure 9: Welfare Section functions 

Loss of support claims by beneficiaries

Figure 10: Loss of Support Claims by beneficiary for the year ended 31st December 2020
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Pre Settlement Activities 

Once the dependents of deceased persons have been identified, the Fund conducts investigations to determine whether the 
dependants are eligible for the Loss of Support benefit in accordance to the Loss of Support Guidelines and other statutory 
regulations. During the year under review, the Fund conducted 396 indigence and paternity investigations.  Table 6 below shows 
the number of submitted claims which were investigated and their eligibility to be offered loss of support benefit.

From Table 6 above, 274 or 69% of 
the total files investigated for loss 
of support benefit met the eligibility 
criteria and were recommended for 
compensation whilst 31% were not 
eligible for compensation.

Loss of Support Follow - Ups

Upon settlement of the loss of support 
claims, the Fund manages the benefit 
by conducting annual follow-up visits 
to the claimants. These visits assist 
the Fund to check on the welfare of 
vulnerable dependents and to curb 
possible misappropriation of their funds, 

as well as to ascertain whether the 
claimants still meet the requirements 
of being a beneficiary.If the claimants 
no longer meet the requirement, the 
benefits are ceased. Instances which 
may result in cessation are when the 
benefiting spouse re-marries, or the 
benefiting children have been adopted.  

Table 7 below shows that the Fund 
conducted 1 930 loss of support follow 
up visits comprising of all beneficiaries; 
minors, parents and spouses. The Fund 
continues to place priority in visiting 
minors as they are the most vulnerable 
beneficiaries. 

Beneficiaries visited during the period of 
review were risk profiled as below;

• RISK 1 – Minors who have lost both 
parents;

• RISK 2 – Minors who have lost mothers;
• RISK 3 – Minors who have lost fathers;
• RISK 4 – Husbands who have lost 

wives;
• RISK 5 – Parents / Relatives; and
• RISK 6 – Wives who have lost husbands.

Table 7 below shows the beneficiaries 
who were visited in accordance with the 
risk profiling.

Table 6: Pre-settlement investigations for the period ended 31st December 2020.

Activity Claims Investigated Non eligible Claims Eligible Claims

Indigence 209 121 88

Paternity 187 1 186

Total 396 122 274

Percentage 100 31 69
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Table 7: Risk Profiling Beneficiaries visited 
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The Fund continues to prioritize visiting minors in Risk 1 who have lost both parents as they are the most vulnerable group. 
However, the highest number of visits remain at Risk 3; minors who have lost fathers as most claims received by the Fund are for 
loss of fathers (statistically the highest group involved in accidents are men.)

Psychosocial Support and Vocational Rehabilitation to Injured Claimants

As part of its rehabilitation policy, the Fund also extends psychosocial support to its claimants to address mental health issues 
resulting from the road traffic accident to equip claimants with coping skills to improve their quality of life and to support school-
going children as they resume their studies.

Figure 11 shows that the majority of 
psychosocial interventions for severely 
injured claimants and their families 
was psychotherapy accounting for 183 
claimants or 83%, followed by return to 
school benefit for 30 injured students 
representing 14% and enhancement of 
quality of life for 6 claimants translating 
to 3%. 

Stakeholder Engagements

MVA Fund recognises the stakeholders 
who play an important role in ensuring 
that severely injured claimants attain 
optimal level of functioning and are 
reintegrated into the society. The Fund 
continues to engage key stakeholders as 
a way of building strategic relationships 
that will assist in delivery of its mandate. 
During the year, the following stakeholder 
engagements were conducted under 
strict Covid-19 protocols.

Stakeholders’ Engagements in Maun 
and Chobe Districts

The Fund held seminars with healthcare 
professionals in Maun and Chobe. 
Furthermore, the Fund was invited to 
Full Council meetings for Northwest 
and Chobe District Councils respectively 
to continue to share its mandate with 
emphasis on its products and services.

Social Workers Forum 

Social workers play a vital role in 
supporting the Fund’s mandate as their 
work involves among others, advocacy, 
registration and monitoring of welfare 
programs for orphans, elderly and 
vulnerable children. In addition, they 
have full coverage in remote areas, which 
will complement service delivery to 
claimants who reside in far and remote 
areas.

MVA Fund through Case Management 
Department and in collaboration with 
Social and Community Development 
(S&CD) Office, Department of Social 
Protection and Botswana National 
Association of Social Workers (BONASW) 
hosted a social workers’ engagement 
seminar in Pitsane on October 8th 2020. 
The seminar attracted 30 social workers 

Psychosocial Support Interventions

Psychotherapy Return to School Enhancement of 
Quality of life

83%

14%

3%

Figure 11: Number of claimants assisted with Psychosocial Support 
and Vocational rehabilitation interventions

Figure 12: Participants at the stakeholder session
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from Goodhope Sub District Council. The 
objectives of the seminar were:

• to intensify engagements with key 
stakeholders to effectively drive the 
Fund’s mandate; and

• to provide a holistic understanding of 
the functions and operations of the 
Fund by sharing and reinforcing MVA 
Fund’s products and services in terms 
of Loss of Support claims management 
and Psycho Social Rehabilitation to 
the injured claimants.

Psychosocial Support Service 
Providers

Mental health is key to the recovery 
and lifestyle adjustments of trauma 
survivors and it affects how claimants 
respond to their injuries and post RTA 
lives. The Fund held a seminar for 

psychosocial support professionals for 
Gaborone and its catchment areas on 
October 14th 2020. These professionals 
offer psychosocial support to severely 
injured claimants who have weak social 
support and those claimants who had 
brain injuries and are living with residual 
mental challenges.  

Bill Audits

The Bill Audits Section’s main 
responsibilities are to ensure that 
medical bills are audited and paid 
in accordance with service level 
agreements.  The Section manages 
service providers’ tariffs, audits the 
submitted medical invoices from the 
health practitioners and hospitals to 
ensure compliance with billing rules and 
to also ascertain accuracy of billing by 
medical service providers. 
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ProcedureEvaluation

ComplianceOperations

AssessmentsQuality

Audit

Adopted from https://integrarehabsolutions.com/medicare-claim-audits-steps-to-compliance/.

Figure 13 above highlights important 
steps to compliance that the auditors 
follow to ensure the service providers 
meet the billing and documentation 
requirements before payment can 
be authorised. Bill auditing is critical 
for cost containment, as it ascertains 
whether the costs are in line with the 
services received and the diagnosis. 

Bill auditing also mitigates against 
overbilling by the service providers. 
Whenever the Fund finds any 
discrepancies within the medical bills, 
the invoices are rejected and sent back 
to the service provider for corrective 
action before resubmission and approval 
for payment.  

In addition to monitoring service 
providers’ queries and payments, the 
Section ascertains that claimants have 
funds in their trust  accounts before a 
service is authorised. 

During the year, the Fund received 18 
454 invoices from different medical 
service providers with a total value 
of P71.1 million while in 2019 the Fund 
received 20 870 invoices amounting to 
P68.7 million. The increase in monetary 

value of the invoices in year 2020 is 
attributable to the tariff increase for the 
private hospitals which was effected at 
the beginning of the year. 

The Fund is working with major health 
service providers to integrate its case 
management system with their billing 
systems.  Gaborone Private Hospital 
successfully completed this integration 
and is submitting its hospital bills 
online. Bokamoso and Sidilega Private 
Hospitals in Gaborone, Francistown 
Academic Hospital are working on their 
billing systems to also integrate with 
the Fund. The Fund continues to engage 
other service providers to migrate to 
electronic submission of invoices to 
improve efficiency in handling supplier 
invoices. 

Outlook

The Case Management Department 
relies heavily on physical interaction 
with claimants and potential claimants 
in order to discharge service. Social 
distancing, restrictions of movement, 
restrictions of regular visits to the 
hospitals, reduction of meetings 
deemed nonessential, and limited 

contact became necessary in protecting 
human health. The restrictions resulted 
in the Fund fundamentally changing its 
processes in order to serve its customers 
and meet their expectations.  

To safeguard lives, the Fund supported 
the work from home measures advised 
by the national Covid-19 taskforce 
and quickly shifted the way its service 
is delivered by heavily relying on 
technology. This “new normal” work 
environment enabled the Fund to get 
hospital notifications and updates 
remotely and authorisations were also 
done timely through the same means. 
However, this was not achieved without 
challenges.

As a way forward, the Fund is working 
around the clock to stabilize a newly 
virtualized workforce and work 
environment so that it can be effective, 
efficient, and secure. Hospital-based 
service centres are being established in 
major hospitals to bring services to the 
claimants and further decongest the 
offices to minimise the spread of the 
virus.

Figure 13: Compliance steps
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MVA Fund continues with its quest of 
promoting road safety and accident 
prevention to reduce road traffic crashes 
and associated fatalities and injuries, in 
furtherance of its mandate as prescribed 
by the MVA Fund Act No. 15 of 2007.  
To effectively promote road safety, the 
Fund developed its maiden Road Safety 
Strategy 2019-2023 which emphasises 
the need for improved collaboration 
with key stakeholders in view of the fact 
that effective road safety management 
requires a multi-sectoral approach. 

MVA Fund’s primary focus is on public 
education geared to improve road safety 
knowledge and enhance safe road user 
behavior. Our road safety vision is “to 
create a culture of road safety through 
education and advocacy”. Advocacy 
is critical in this regard as the Fund 
does not have direct control over some 
strategic interventions to road traffic 
safety. 

Advocacy is aimed at influencing key 
stakeholders and policymakers to play 
active role in the promotion of road 
traffic safety and adopt best practices 
for provision of a conducive environment 

for safe mobility. The financial year 2020 
was the second year of implementation 
of the strategic plan and notable 
progress was achieved.

Promotion of road safety is coordinated 
by Injury Prevention Department which is 
made up of three sections as illustrated 
in Figure 1 below.

INJURY 
PREVENTION 
DEPARTMENT

04
MVA Fund continues with its quest 
of promoting road safety and 
accident prevention to reduce 
road traffic crashes and associated 
fatalities and injuries, in furtherance 
of its mandate as prescribed by the 
MVA Fund Act No. 15 of 2007. 
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Road Safety Management

Road safety management embodies 
strategic planning and coordination 
of road safety at national level. Road 
safety management is coordinated by 
a statutory body, National Road Safety 
Committee which is comprised of diverse 
stakeholders as road transport safety 
impacts on health, socio-economic 
development and other demographic 
factors.  

National Road Safety Committee is 
guided by its founding statute being 
the Road Traffic Act, National Road 
Safety Strategy and other international 
frameworks such as the UN Decade of 
Action. The Committee meets quarterly 
to monitor implementation of road 
safety action plans and to consider areas 
for policy or strategic improvement. 

During the year  ended 31st December 
2020, National Road Safety Committee 
met once in the first quarter as other 
meetings were cancelled due to Covid 
– 19 pandemic challenges. The meeting 
among other things, deliberated on the 
need to plan for the development of 

the new national road safety strategic 
plan. Furthermore, it was resolved that 
Botswana should participate in the 3rd 
Global Ministerial Conference on Road 
Safety which was held in  Stockholm, 
Sweden in February 2020. 

The 3rd Global Ministerial 
Conference on Road Safety

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund was part 
of the Botswana delegation to the 3rd 
Global Ministerial Conference on Road 
Safety which was held in Stockholm 
Sweden in February 2020. The Delegation 
which comprised of representatives from 
Botswana Police Service, Department of 
Road Transport and Safety, Ministry of 
Health and Wellness, Ministry of Youth 
Empowerment, Sports and Culture 
Development, Private Sector and Road 
Safety NGOs was led by Minister of 
Transport and Telecommunications, Hon. 
Thulagano Merafe Segokgo. 

The conference reflected on how 
countries implemented the UN Decade 
of Action for Road Safety 2011 – 2020 
and confirmed that the 50% target of 
reducing road traffic deaths and serious 

injuries was not achieved. Since the 
UN Decade of Action 2011 – 2020 was 
coming to an end, the meeting made 
recommendations to the UN General 
Assembly to declare another decade 
called the 2nd Decade of Action for 
Road Safety 2021 – 2030 aligned to the 
2030 Sustainable Development Goals. 

The Decade of Action calls for UN 
member states to commit to reducing 
road traffic deaths and serious injuries 
by 50% by year 2030. This resolution 
was adopted as the 2020 Stockholm 
Declaration and was adopted by the UN 
General Assembly in September 2020. 
The 2nd Decade of Action for Road 
Safety 2021 – 2030 will be a critical 
guiding framework for the development 
of the next Botswana National Road 
Safety Strategic Plan 2021–2030. 

Strategic partnerships  
 
For effective road safety promotion, the 
Fund collaborates with key road safety 
stakeholders including Botswana Police 
Service, Department of Road Transport 
and Safety and District Road Safety 
Committees. Under this partnership, 

Road Safety 
Campaigns

Road Safety
Community 

Projects 

Injury
Prevention

Department

Public 
Education

Figure 1: Injury Prevention sections
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we jointly undertake road safety 
educational campaigns geared towards 
behavioral change. 

Effective from the second quarter of the 
year, road safety educational activities 
which require face to face interactions 
were stopped in order to comply with 
the Covid-19 health protocols, hence the 
Fund leveraged on the use of media to 
disseminate road safety educational 
messages.  

The Fund also partnered with the civil 
society through community volunteer 
groups, churches under the auspices of 
Botswana Christian AIDS Intervention 
Program (BOCAIP), schools through 
Botswana Social Studies Association 
(BOSSA) and Botswana Chamber of 
Mines. 

Community projects are supported 
under the Community Road Safety 
Grant Scheme (CRSGS) which provides 
financial support to road safety projects 
and activities done by community groups 
to incentivize community participation 
in road traffic safety. Groups which 
benefited from the programme during 
the year under review are road safety 
NGOs, Youth Road Safety Clubs and 

School Road Safety Clubs and an 
amount of P756,900 was used to 
support community road safety projects 
under road safety grant scheme. 

The following community road traffic 
safety activities were undertaken in the 
year under review.

Botswana Christian Aids 
Intervention Programme (BOCAIP)

The Fund entered into partnership with 
Botswana Christian Aids Intervention 
Programme (BOCAIP) in order to involve 
the civic community in the fight against 
road carnage and to promote road traffic 
safety. The Fund targeted BOCAIP in the 
promotion of road safety to leverage on 
their large following. 

Churches, like all communities are 
exposed to road traffic crashes during 
their pilgrimage and conferences which 
are mostly held during public holidays 
and it is imperative that churches should 
actively be involved in road safety 
promotion. During the year, BOCAIP 
organised sixteen (16) activities and 
pastors’ workshops in different regions 
through Pastors Fraternal structures and 
achieved an attendance of 752 participants. 

Botswana Social Studies 
Association (BOSSA)

The Fund partnered with the Ministry  
of Basic Education through Botswana 
Social Studies Association (BOSSA) to 
roll out road traffic safety to secondary 
schools using social studies fairs. Five 
(5) teachers’ workshops were conducted 
during the year while no social studies 
fairs were held due to the Covid -19 
Pandemic challenges which negatively 
affected school programmes.

Community Groups (NGOs)

Out of nine (9) NGOs that have partnered 
with the Fund, seven (7) implemented 
their road safety community projects 
and interacted with 79,609 people. 
To embrace the new normal, some 
community groups were innovative 
and leveraged on the use of media 
campaigns such as radio interviews on 
Duma FM, Gabz FM, RB2 and Yarona FM. 
Table 1 below shows active community 
groups and the projects undertaken in 
year 2020.

Table 1: Community road safety NGOs activities and interactions

NAME OF 
COMMUNITY GROUP

TARGET 
ROAD USERS ROAD SAFETY ACTIVITIES AREA NO. OF 

ACTIVITIES
NO. OF 

INTERACTIONS

Botswana 
Association of the 
Blind and Partially 
Sighted

Visually 
Impaired 

Pedestrians

Scholar Patrol, Training Blind on 
Safe Use of White Cane

Greater 
Gaborone

8 10 440 

Diphalana 
Empowerement 
Centre

Farmers, 
Passengers

Bus Stop Campaign, Mobile Public, 
Address & Wall Banner Campaigns

Goodhope 
District

7 1 596

Namane Ya Moroba Drivers, 
Passengers

Mobile Public Address Campaign, 
Mall Campaigns, Scholar Patrols 

and Wall Banner Campaign

Moshupa-
Thamaga 
District

30 35 089

Remmogo 
Organisation

Drivers, 
Passengers

Road Safety Song & Radio 
Campaigns

National 2 23 000

Society of Road 
Safety Ambassadors

Passengers, 
Pedestrians & 

Drivers
Post Office Outreach Gaborone 1 154

Tse Dikgolo House of 
Theatre

Passengers, 
Pedestrians 

Social Media & Church Outreach 
Campaign

Mmankgodi 6 9 141

Voices of Women 
Centre

Passengers, 
Pedestrians

School Outreach &            Kgotla 
Meetings

Mahalapye 6 189

   TOTAL 60 79 609 
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School Road Safety Clubs

The Fund continues to engage schools 
and supports them to form road safety 
clubs and thirty school road safety 
clubs have since been formed across 
the country. Only Matlala JSS road 
safety club was active and held three 
(3) activities and interacted with 220 
students. Other schools suspended 
their planned activities  owing to need 
to comply with the health protocols. 
Nevertheless, two (2) new road safety 
clubs were formed at Diphetogo Primary 
School and AWIL College. The Fund also 
made eight (8) presentations to schools 
where 2 816 students were addressed on 
road safety.

Research, Monitoring & Evaluation

In September 2020, the Fund organized 
a virtual road safety stakeholder 
engagement forum to share and rollout 
the results of two surveys which were 
conducted in year 2019. 

The first study was Impact Assessment 
of Road Safety Initiatives in Botswana 
which sought to establish the 
implementation rate of Botswana 
National Road Safety Strategy 2011 
– 2020 as well as effectiveness of 
interventions such as public education, 
enforcement, driver training and others 
on road traffic safety. The results of the 
study were presented to key stakeholders 

including the recommendations and the 
proposed monitoring and evaluation 
framework. The second survey 
results which were presented to the 
stakeholders was for the Road User 
Risk Awareness Survey which was also 
conducted in 2019. The survey assessed 
and established road user knowledge 
and behavior index. The two reports 
are critical source documents for future 
planning and development of the next 
national road safety strategic plan. 

Road traffic crashes data 
management

For purposes of improving data collection 
and management, the department in 

Youth Road Safety Clubs

In addition to NGO Community Groups, the Fund supports twelve (12) youth road safety clubs to promote road safety at local 
level. For the reporting period, youth clubs conducted different road traffic safety activities and  reached 10 780 people. Table 2 
below shows Youth Road Safety Clubs that were active in the year.

Table 2: Active Youth Road Safety Clubs in the year 2020

NAME OF YOUTH 
CLUB

TARGET 
ROAD USERS ROAD SAFETY ACTIVITIES BRIEF AREA NO. OF 

ACTIVITIES
NO. OF 

INTERACTIONS

North West 
Tertiary 
Road Safety 
Educational 
Programme

Pedestrians,     
Drivers,    

Passengers

Scholar Patrols, Bus Stop 
Campaign, Farmers'Outreach

Maun 11 581

Bokgoni Youth 
Road Safety Club

Pedestrians, 
Passengers

Mall Campaigns, School Outreach 
&   Bus Stop Campaigns

Francistown 9 3 687

Debators Without 
Borders

Pedetrians, 
Passengers

Secondary Schools Student and 
Teachers Workshops

Gaborone 9 30

Bana Ba Motho 
Thearter Artists

Passengers, 
Pedestrians

Mall Campaigns, Scholar Patrol 
& Bus Stop Campaign, Mobile 

Public Address and Wall Banner 
Campaigns

Kanye 8 5 550

Metsimotlhabe 
Youth Road Safety 
Club

Pedestrians, 
Passengers

Clinic Outreach Metsimotlhabe 1 110

Oodi Youth Road 
Safety Club

Pedestrian,       
Drivers

Clinic Outreach & Wall Banner 
Campaign

Oodi 2 68

Molepolole 
Charity Marshals

Pedestrian, 
Passengers 

Kgotla Meetings, Church Outreach Molepolole 8 394

Kopong Road 
Safety Club

Pedestrian, 
Passengers 

Church Outreach, Clinic Outreach 
and Kgotla Meetings

Kopong 10 318

Trish Wa Boraro   
Sound of Worship

Pedestrians, 
Passengers

Church Outreach Gaborone 1 42

   TOTAL 59 10 780
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collaboration with Information and 
Technology Department developed a 
mini-database to manage the traffic 
crash data that the Fund receives on 
weekly basis from Botswana Police 
Service. 

The database will enable the Fund 
to analyse data and inform strategic 
decisions geared towards improving our 
responses to road safety challenges. 

Road safety campaigns

During the year under review, the Fund 
had planned to undertake one hundred 
different road safety promotion activities 
across the country. 

The planned activities were outreach 
campaigns which requires physical 
interaction with road users, farmers 
and other stakeholders. The planned 
activities included road safety 
activations focusing on pedestrians, 
child safety, speed, drunk driving, use 
of safety restraints, distracted driving, 
fatigue, farmers ’workshops, public 
holidays roadside campaigns, roadshows 
and corporate events.

Owing to Covid-19 Pandemic, all 
physically interactive activities had to 
be cancelled from mid-March 2020. 
Nevertheless, the Fund adjusted its 
plans and leveraged on digital media, 
radio and television advertising, as 
well as use of mobile PA Systems to 
disseminate road safety information to 
the public.
 

Road user behaviour change 
programmes

Child safety campaign

Four (4) Mobile Children Traffic School 
(MCTS) campaigns were planned 
for each quarter and only one (1) 
was conducted in the first quarter in 
Mahalapye area where 2 163 students 
were taken through road traffic safety 
lessons. Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the 
remaining three MCTS campaigns were 
cancelled and replaced with PA System 
activations and scholar patrols where 12 
546 students were reached in 19 schools 
in Lobatse, Gaborone, Selibe Phikwe and 
Palapye. The total interactions under 
this initiative for the reporting period is 
14 709 students.  

Pedestrian/Passenger safety 
activations

The Fund focused most of its effort 
towards pedestrains and passenger 
safety as these road users collectively 
account for  about 65% of annual 
fatalities. 

The road safety activations were 
conducted using mobile PA System at 
bus stops, bus ranks, shopping centres, 
community services centres such as Post 
Offices and Kgotla.In all, 151 activations 
were undertaken around the country 
reaching out to 41 560 people. 

The messages disseminated to the 
public centred around use of safety belt, 
safe crossing of the road and avoiding 
distractions while crossing the road.

Roadside educational campaign

Ten (10) roadside campaigns targeting 
drivers  were undertaken in the first 
quarter before Covid-19 restrictions on 
movement and gatherings were imposed. 
The campaigns were undertaken in 
collaboration with  Botswana Police 
Service and District Road Safety 
Committees. The Fund interacted with 
10 251 motorists during these campaigns 
and the message centred on avoiding 
overspeeding, distracted driving, drunk 
driving and driving while fatigued. 

LED Speed Campaign and surveillance 

For the year ended 31st December 
2020, LED Variable Message System 
was deployed around greater Gaborone 
and Palapye,  but within build-up and 
semi-build-up areas of speed limits of 
60 km/hr and 80km/hr. The System 
is used to sensitive drivers to drive 
within recommended speed limits and 
further  to determine the rate of non-
compliance to speed limits. The system 
recorded 295 713 vehicles of which 134 
593 vehicles or 46%  were driven above 
the recommended speed limits. Most 
of the non-compliance to speed limits 
happened in build-up areas where the 
speed limit is 60km/h, and it is prevalent 
in Gaborone than Palapye area. Gaborone 
recorded 70% and 24% non-compliance 
within 60km/h and 80km/h speed limit 
respectively, compared to 21% and 19% 
recorded in Palapye area. Refer to Table 
3 below for further analysis of the LED 
VM System speed campaign results.

 Table 3: LED Speed Campaign and surveillance statistics

Area SPEED 
LIMIT

NO OF VEHICLES 
DETECTED

NO OF VEHICLES 
OVER SPEEDING

% OVER 
SPEEDING

HIGHEST SPEED 
RECORDED IN 

KM/H

AVERAGE NON-
COMPLIANCE 

SPEED 

Palapye

60 km/h 64 482 13 482 21% 145 104 Km/h

80 km/h 43 774 8 158 19% 199 154 km/h

Gaborone

60 km/h 147 319 103 380 70% 157 132 Km/h

80 km/h 40 138 9 578 24% 177 148 Km/h

TOTAL 295 713 134 598 46%



Injury Prevention Department

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          57 56          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

Farmers campaigns

The Fund also engages farmers and 
farmworkers to encourage them to keep 
domestic  animals away from the roads 
in realisation that some road traffic 
crashes were caused by collission with 
stray animals, especially cattle. During 
the year, four (4) farmers workshops 
were held in Kweneng, Mahalapye and 
Serowe areas which were attended by  
89 farmers and farmworkers.

Media Campaign

Influencer marketing

Since the Fund’s campaign plan was 
negatively affected by Covid -19 

challenges, the Fund used digital media 
campaign to spread its road safety 
messages. The Fund adopted influencer 
marketing strategy and partnered with 
a local comedian Mjamaica in order to 
benefit from his Facebook page of over 
550 000 followers. 

As at 31st December 2020, Mjamaica 
produced and posted seven (7) road 
safety video clips focusing on drunk 
driving, passenger safety, speed, 
pedestrian safety, fatigue and World 
Day of Remembrance commemoration. 
The videos attracted viewership 
ranging between 73 000 and 469 000 
viewers (figures rounded to the nearest 
one thousand). Figure 2 below shows 
analysis of viewership by video clips.

RB2 Radio Show sponsorship

The Fund partnered with RB2 and 
sponsored a popular Sunday morning 
radio show named Sunday Ballads. 

The programme was used to educate the 
public about MVA Fund’s products and 
services in October 2020 and November 
2020 while in December 2020 was 
dedicated to road safety promotion.

Road Safety TV Documentary

The Fund developed and screened a 
thirteen (13) episode television road 
safety documentary that was aimed at 
educating road users on safe use of the 
road. The documentary was launched 
on 18th September 2020 and started 
airing on Botswana Television (BTV) on 
20th September 2020 for 13 consecutive 
weeks. The documentary was aired on a 
prime time at 1930 hours every Sunday 

with repeats on Wednesdays during the 
day. The programme proved popular and 
positive feedback was received from the 
public.

Public Education and Publicity Of 
The Fund

In an effort to raise awareness of the 
Fund’s products and services, different 
initiatives were undertaken towards 
disseminating information to the public.

Figure 2: Viewership by video clips
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Taking into consideration the health 
restrictions hindering face to face 
interactions, there was an increased use 
of social media as well as traditional 
media to disseminate information to the 
public. 

Major exhibitions such as the Annual 
Consumer Fair and other corporate 
events and exhibitions including 
team building activities by various 
government departments were cancelled 
thereby significantly affecting physical 

interactions.  The Fund managed to 
interact with 6,617 people during the 
year under review. Table 4 below shows 
the face to face interactions conducted 
by various MVA Fund offices;

Although there was a significant decline 
in physical interactions, the Fund’s usage 
of various media platforms improved 
significantly. “The #Itse Letlole La Gago 
#Know Your Fund” campaign continued 
to disseminate information on RB2 and 
gained recognition amongst its target 
audience. 

The campaign was aimed at improving 
the public’s knowledge of the Fund’s 
products and services. MVA Facebook 
page was also extensively used to 
interact with the public and advertise 
the Fund’s products and services.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY

The Fund concluded the review of the 
MVA Fund Occupational Health and 
Safety Policy. The revised Policy and OHS 
Management System were approved by 
management on 15th July 2020. 

A new SHE Committee was constituted 
in line with the revised Policy and 
thereafter staff training was conducted.  
The rollout of the revised Policy was in 
progress at the end of the year and will 
be concluded in the first quarter of year 
2021.

Covid – 19 response 

In response to the outbreak of Covid-19 
Pandemic, the department through 
SHE Committee and MVA Fund Covid 
-19 Response Team, played a key role in 
ensuring that Covid -19 health protocols 
are in place and adhered to in order to 
avoid the spread of the pandemic. 

Decongestion guidelines were 
developed, implemented and compliance 
to the guidelines monitored. Flexible 
working arrangement was implemented 
with some officers working on weekly 
shifts while others worked from home. 

Table 4: Statistics of Public Education Interactions by MVA Fund Offices 

 Month  Gaborone Francistown  Palapye Maun S/Phikwe Kang TOTAL 

January 0 1 169 0 0 0 0 1 169

February 10 702 0 0 0 0 712

March 3 306 0 0 0 0 0 3 306

April 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

May 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

June 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

July 0 0 0 0 22 0 22

August 91 52 0 95 0 159 397

September 0 95 0 0 29 0 124

October 0 114 0 0 0 122 236

November 0 35 581 0 0 0 616

December 0 0 35 0 0 0 35

GRAND TOTAL 3 407 2 167 616 95 51 281 6 617
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The arrangement targeted officers who 
mainly work either in open spaces or 
shared smaller offices. An Incident Report 
was developed for all departments to 
report suspected cases of Covid – 19 
virus. A position was taken for meetings 
to be held virtually where possible, and 
to adhere to social distancing, use of 
face masks and regular sanitizing is 
enforced in all gatherings. 

All necessary personal protective 
equipment or material in the form of 
facemasks and sanitizers are provided 
to staff. Constant communication is 
made to staff to encourage them to take 
personal responsibility and adhere to 
safety protocols. The Fund did not record 
any positive case of Covid-19 virus in the 
year 2020.

TRAFFIC SAFETY PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31st December 
2020, the country recorded a significant 
reduction in road traffic crashes, injuries 
and deaths owing to National Lockdown, 
inter-zonal restrictions, curfew and 
restrictions on sale of alcohol imposed 
by Government to contain the spread of 
the Covid – 19 virus. 

Statistics obtained from Botswana 
Police Service indicate that 15 075 
crashes were recorded during the year 
compared to 18 623 recorded in the 
year 2019, being a reduction of 19.1%. 
Recorded fatal crashes in 2020 were 265 

resulting in 325 deaths compared to 361 
fatal crashes in 2019 in which 457 people 
died. During 2020, the number of deaths 
declined by 28.9% while fatal crashes 
dropped by 26.6%. In addition, serious 
injuries also declined by 30.8% from 1 
183 in 2019 to 819 in 2020. Furthermore, 
minor injuries declined by 18.6% from 4 
802 in 2019 to 3 908 in 2020. 

During the eight (8) weeks of the 
National Lockdown period in April 2020 
and May 2020, only eight (8) deaths were 
recorded, resulting in an average death 
of one (1) person per week compared to 
the historical averages of nine (9) deaths 
per week. During that period, fatalities 
only grew by 8% from 88 deaths to 96 
deaths compared to an increase of 52% 
in the corresponding period in 2019. Post 
the National Lockdown, Government 
continued to impose inter-zonal 
restrictions and curfew which reduced 
movement of people, hence the lower 
statistics recorded above. The Greater 
Gaborone was also under lockdown 
during July 2020 and August 2020. 

In relation to population growth, 
fatality rate declined by 29.1% from 19.5 
deaths/100 000 population in 2019 
to 13.8 deaths/100 000 population 
in 2020. Similarly, the rate of serious 
injuries dropped by 31% from 50.5/100 
000 population in 2019 to 34.8/100 000 
population in 2020. Figure 3 below is an 
analysis of crashes and casualty for the 
year 2020 against the year 2019.
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Figure 3: Comparative analysis of road crashes and casualty count for 2019 and 2020
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The number of motor vehicles continues 
to grow at an alarming rate in Botswana 
increasing risk of exposure to road traffic 
crashes. During 2020, the number of 
registered vehicles increased by 5% 
from 829 284 vehicles in 2019 to 871 

023 vehicles. In the contrary, road traffic 
crashes relative to vehicle population 
declined primarily driven by movement 
restrictions. Figure 4 below shows 
the relationship between road traffic 
casualties and claims rate per 1 000 

vehicles for the past decade (year 2011 to 
year 2020). Casualties per 1 000 vehicles 
declined from 16.5 in 2011 to 5.8 in 2020 
whereas claims declined from 6.0 per 
1 000 vehicles in 2011 to 2.4 per 1 000 
vehicles in 2020.

Outlook

Following the discovery of a new variant 
of Covid-19 virus which is more deadly 
in Botswana, we expect to continue 
operating under similar restrictions for 
the larger part of 2021. That being the 
case, the road traffic safety situation is 
expected to maintain a positive outlook.

The Fund will continue with the 
implementation of its Road Safety 
Strategy 2019 – 2023 with more 
focus on advocacy. In this regard, the 
Fund intends to partner with the civic 
community and engage a Road Safety 
Patron who will play a pivotal role in 

road safety advocacy programme. 
Having reached the midpoint of its Road 
Safety Strategic Plan and in view of the 
changing operational environment due 
to Covid - 19 pandemic, the Fund will 
also consider reviewing its road safety 
strategy for alignment and relevance in 
2021. 

The Covid-19 era introduced new 
measures of service delivery, hence the 
need to leverage more on technology 
to enhance service delivery and 
further decongest the work place. 
The Fund commits to optimise the 
use of technology, particularly in the 
digital media space in the promotion 

of road safety. We further anticipate to 
drive business meetings, road safety 
stakeholder engagement and other 
strategic engagements through virtual 
platforms. 

At national level through the National 
Road Safety Committee, we anticipate 
the process of developing Botswana 
National Road Safety Strategy 2021–
2030 in line with 2nd UN Decade of 
Action on Road Safety 2021 – 2030 
to be initiated. The 2020 Stockholm 
Declaration and the Impact Assessment 
of Road Safety Initiatives Study results 
are critical source documents in the 
development of the national strategy.
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The Finance and Administration 
Department is responsible for financial 
management and reporting and 
ensuring that the Fund’s financial report 
is in accordance with MVA Fund Act No. 
15 of 2007 and International Financial 
Reporting Standards.  

The Department maintains a system of 
sound financial controls to enable the 
Fund to continue as a going concern into 
the foreseeable future. 

The Department is divided into the 
following three (3) sections;

Financial accounting

This section is responsible for the day-to-
day processing of financial transactions, 
disbursement of funds to claimants and 
service providers, payroll administration 
and arranging for reinsurance.

Management Accounting

This section is responsible for producing 
management accounts and variance 
analysis, cost management, fixed assets 
management and arranging long term 
insurance.

Administration

The Administration section is responsible 
for procurement, fleet management, 
office administration, management of 
outsourced services (security, cleaning 
and messenger services) and arranging 
short term insurance.

SOURCES OF INCOME 

Section 17(1) of the MVA Fund Act No. 
15 of 2007 provides that monies of the 
Fund shall consist of fuel levy, third 
party cover, investment income and 
government subvention.

Fuel Levy Income

The primary source of income for the 
Fund is the fuel levy which is currently 
9.5 thebe per litre of petrol and diesel 
sold and it is included in the pump 
price of the petrol and diesel. Fuel levy 
is collected directly by the importer or 
seller of petrol and diesel and is remitted 
to the Fund within twenty-five days 
following the month of collection.

The Fund recorded fuel levy income of 

FINANCE & 
ADMINISTRATION
DEPARTMENT

05
The department follows a framework 
of financial procedures to promote and 
instil a culture of financial discipline 
in the operations of the Fund. The 
other key roles of the Department are 
management of working capital, design 
of the system of internal controls, 
procurement, facilities management, 
Insurance and reinsurance.
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P88.6 million or the year ended 31st 
December 2020 being a significant 
reduction of 18.9% when compared 
to P109.1 million recorded or the year 
ended 31st December 2019 as a result of 
lockdowns, movement restrictions and 
curfews.

Motor Vehicle Third party cover
 
Motor Vehicle Third party is the levy 
imposed on every person who drives 
a foreign registered vehicle into 
the country. The Act has mandated 
collection of this income to Botswana 
Unified Revenue Services (BURS) at all 
points of entry.

The cover is valid for ninety days 
following the date of payment and is 
charged as follows:

P50 for any vehicle, except a bus or mini 

bus; P100 for a mini bus and P200 for a 
bus. 

Third party cover income of P3.6 
million received or the year ended 31st 
December 2020 reduced significantly by 
58% when compared to an amount of P 
8.6 million recorded or the year ended 
31st December 2019 due to closure of 
borders during lockdowns and limited 
cross border activities post lockdowns 
owing to Government’s efforts to curb 
the spread of Covid-19 virus. 

Investments Income

The Fund has invested funds locally 
and offshore in accordance with the 
Investment Policy Statement.

Detailed investment income report is 
included in the Investment Department 
section and Annual Financial Statements 

within this annual report.   

Government Subvention

In accordance with Section 17(1)(b) the 
Fund can be funded through government 
subvention. Owing to the Fund’s strong 
balance sheet, the Fund has to date, not 
requested for the subvention funding. 

Income Distribution

Figure 1 below shows the contributions 
of various sources of income at net basis 
to total income. The Fund’s total income 
reduced from P248.6 million recorded 
or the year ended 31st December 2019 
to P210.6 million or the year ended 31st 
December 2020, mainly attributable to 
the negative effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic.

Expenses

The Fund incurred total expenses of 
P382.4 million in the year ended 31st 
December 2020 in comparison to P418.7 
million incurred in the year ended 31st 
December 2019. The reduction in total 
expenses was mainly attributed to 
reduced claims costs due to reduction 
in road traffic crashes as a result of 
movement restrictions introduced 

by government to curb the spread of 
COVID-19 virus. 

Claims and claims related costs including 
interest accounted for 73.2% of the total 
expenses, followed by Administrative 
expenses at 21.6%. Investment and 
Property Management fees, Reinsurance 
and Road Safety expenses accounted 
for the remaining 5.2%. A breakdown of 
total expenses is shown in Figure 2;
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Statement Of Financial Position 

Trust Liability

The Fund reserves monies for claimants 
in trust accounts and payments are done 

as per the discharge certificate signed 
by the claimants and the Fund. In the 
financial year ended 31st December 
2020, the Fund paid P173.1 million 
into trust accounts for various benefit 
categories. As at 31st December 2020, 

the cumulative trust liability was P1.6 
billion compared to P1.4 billion as at 31st 
December 2019.

Payments to trust accounts are indicated 
in Figure 3 below.

Figure 2: Total Expenses Breakdown in Pula

Figure 3: Payments to trust accounts in financial year 31st December 2020 
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Assets Vs Liabilities

The Fund’s assets cover its liabilities as 
shown in Figure 4 below. The Fund’s total 

assets were P4.3 billion while liabilities 
amounted to P1.8 billion, resulting in 
a solvency rate of 235%. Owing to this 
strong financial position, the Fund 

has not requested for government 
subvention funding.

Procurement and Administration 
Unit

Procurement Process

The Fund developed the Tender 
Regulations and Procurement Procedure 
Manual to guide procurement and 
disposal of its assets. The Fund ensures 
that its policies are aligned to those 
of the Public Procurement and Asset 
Disposal Board (PPADB) and other 
directives issued by Government to 
ensure transparency, accountability, 
integrity and effectiveness in all its 
procurement processes.

Eight (8) tenders were advertised as 
formal tenders during the year and 
were all were awarded to locally based 
companies. 

Insurance and Reinsurance

As part of its risk mitigation strategies, 
the Fund outsources its insurance 
portfolio to local insurance companies. 
All policies are renewed annually to 
ensure alignment with the Fund’s risk 
appetite.  

The Fund further reinsures its claims 
expenses against catastrophic events. 
The Fund has reinsurance policy against 
claims in excess of P5 million with both 
local and international reinsurance 
companies. Both portfolios continue to 
have very low claims pay-out hence the 
Fund has negotiated for a reduction of 
the premiums over the years. 
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Figure 4: Assets Vs Liabilities
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Investment Performance In The 
Midst Of The New Normal

The Investment Department’s mandate 
is to manage the Fund’s investment 
portfolio in accordance with the 
investment strategy as provided in the 
Investment Policy Statement (IPS). The 
activities of managing the portfolio 
include buying and selling of securities, 
portfolio monitoring, transaction 
settlement, performance measurement 
and reporting at Board Investment 
Committee and Board meetings.

The Fund invests any monies not 
immediately required for the conduct 
of its day to day business in order to 
generate investment income for the 
Fund. The Fund’s primary objective is   to 
grow the asset base to ensure that the 
Fund attains financial sustainability and  
honors its obligations as they fall due.

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic on 
Investments 

The year 2020 was an eventful and 
turbulent year which saw the global 
financial markets detracting on the back 

of plummeting oil prices, the impact of 
the on-going COVID 19 pandemic and 
the on-going trade war between China 
and the United States of America. In 
an effort to try and curb the spread 
of COVID 19 virus, most countries 
around the world went on lockdown 
thus limiting economic activity to only 
essential services. The most impacted 
sectors were tourism and transport 
owing to imposition of travel restrictions. 
Global business supply chains were also 
negatively affected by this phenomenon.

Global market volatility increased 
significantly in the first quarter of 
2020 with most equity markets on the 
decline. The Fund’s offshore managers 
positioned the Fund’s portfolios to take 
advantage of the market sell off and 
bought quality securities that were 
significantly underpriced by the market.  
The local equity market on the other 
hand appeared somewhat resilient in the 
first quarter as the Domestic Company 
Index registered small changes during 
the quarter. As it turned out, this would 
prove to be a delayed reaction to the 
impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the 
local economy.  

INVESTMENT
DEPARTMENT

06
The year 2020 was an eventful and 
turbulent year which saw the global 
financial markets detracting on the 
back of plummeting oil prices, the 
impact of the on-going COVID 19 
pandemic and the on-going trade 
war between China and the United 
States of America. 
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Table 1 above shows that listed equities 
accounted for 58.83% of the total assets 
under management, this was well within 
the target range of 45-65%. Listed 
equities, although more volatile and 
risky compared to other asset classes, 
tend to deliver high returns for the 
Fund’s investment portfolio. 

Fixed income/ bonds and property 
investments on the other hand are a 
good portfolio diversifiers and capital 
preservatives. These two asset class 
allocations stood at 20.4% and 9.8% 
respectively and both asset classes were 
within their allocation limits.

Cash and Cash equivalents are 

essentially what the Fund uses to 
finance daily operations and this was 
maintained within the target range to 
ensure the Fund has adequate cash to 
pay its obligations. 

Figure 1 below shows the relative asset 
allocation of different asset classes.

As global markets started to rebound 
in the second quarter of 2020 on the 
back of material monetary and fiscal 
interventions to support economic 
activity, the local equity markets started 
its downward trajectory as local Covid-19 
virus transmission rates increased and 
as a result another national lockdown 
was effected. 

During the third and fourth quarters, 
financial markets continued to rally 
as lockdown restrictions were eased 
across the globe and support from fiscal 
and monetary authorities deepened. 
However, market volatility remained 
high. 

The Fund Portfolio Overview

Investment portfolio performance 
is measured and tracked against 
respective benchmarks for the following 
asset classes:  

• Listed equities;
• Fixed Income securities;
• Unlisted equities/private equity;
• Cash and cash equivalents; and
• Property investments. 

The Fund’s assets under management 
as at 31st December 2020 was P4.210 
billion, of which 58% was invested and 
managed locally while the remaining 
balance of 42% was invested in offshore 
markets. 

The IPS allows 60% of the investment 
portfolio to be invested in local markets 
and 40% to be invested in offshore 
markets to ensure geographical 
diversification of the portfolio. The 
offshore portfolio management was 
awarded to Ninety-One Botswana 
(Pty) Ltd (Ninety-One) and Botswana 
Insurance Fund Management Limited 
(BIFM) for a period of five years following 
a formal tender.

The Fund’s investment portfolio 
recorded an increase of P225.1 million or 
5.65% from the P3.985 billion reported 
as at 31st December 2019  to close the 
year at P4.210 billion.  

The portfolio growth is attributable to 
the offshore portfolio portion which 
registered a 16.3% growth to close the 
period at P1.750 billion and local bond 
portion which posted a 24.5% increase 
to close the period at P550.8 million 

from P442.4 million as at 31st December 
2019 . The portfolio however registered 
some detractors on the local money 
markets and local equities portions. The 
local money market portion declined by 
P120.9 million to close the year at P228.4 
million from P349.3 million reported on 
31st December 2019 whereas the local 
equities portfolio declined by P26.2 
million to close the year at P1.247 billion 
compared to P1.2736 billion as at 31st 
December 2019. 

Asset Allocation Strategy Performance 

The recommended Strategic Asset 
Allocation (SAA) weights as outlined 
in the IPS are meant to ensure the 
investment portfolio is well diversified 
and generates the highest rate of return 
at a given level of risk. These target 
weights have been set in accordance 
with the Fund’s overall risk tolerance, 
and preferred investment time horizon. 

Table 1 below shows overall 
performance of each asset allocation 
as at 31st December 2020 against the 
recommended allocation ranges in the 
IPS.

Table1: Asset Under Management (AUM) per asset class vs IPS benchmark portfolio ranges for year 2019 and 2020

Asset Class Asset allocation Allocation Limits AUM (Million) 
(BWP) Dec  2020

AUM (Million) 
(BWP) Dec 2019 Movement

Unlisted Equities/
Private Equity 0.21% 0-5% 8.9 8.1 0.8

Listed Equities 58.83% 45-65% 2 476.6 2 379.9 96.7

Fixed Income  20.4% 20-40% 859.9 692.8 167.1

Property Investments 9.8% 5-15% 413.3       393.4 19.9

Cash & Cash 
Equivalents 10.7% 3-13% 451.4 510.8 (59.4)

Total 100% 4 210.1 3 985.0 225.1
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Local Investments

Local listed equities

The market value of Local Listed Equities 
was P1.247 billion as at 31st December 
2020 recording a decline of P26.2 million 
when compared to the opening balance 
of P1.273 as at 31st December 2019. 

The main contributors to the capital 
loss were First National Bank Botswana 
(FNBB) which recorded a capital loss 
of P26.7 million, followed by ABSA 
Bank Botswana at a loss of P2.6 million 
and finally Standard Chartered Bank 
Botswana which posted a capital loss of 
P2.2 million. 

On the positive side, Sefalana Holdings 
Company Limited, Sechaba Holdings 
and Botswana Insurance Holdings 
Limited (BIHL) recorded some capital 
gains of P9.3 million, P2.2 million and 
P1.3 million respectively. 

Figure 3 below shows rebased share price 
performance for security constituents 
with significant price movements during 
the year under review.
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Figure 1: Overall Asset Allocation as at 31st December 2020
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Negative investors sentiments continued 
to adversely affect local stocks as 
evidenced by the downward trajectory of 
share prices as shown in Figure 3 above 
as listed companies equally experienced 
the challenges brought about by the 
Covid - 19 pandemic particularly on 
the back of National lockdowns and 
movement restrictions. The Domestic 
Company Index (DCI) declined by 8.21% 
for the twelve (12) months ended 31st 
December 2020. Notwithstanding the 
decline in the DCI, the majority of the 
companies maintained dividend payouts 
amid declining profitability and this has 
cushioned the adverse performance of 
share prices, thus causing the DCI Total 
Return Index (DCTRI) to decline by a 
lower amount of 3.6%.

The banking sector saw both FNBB 
and Standard Chartered registering a 

decline in share value of 22.8% and 13.2% 
respectively. FNBB closed the period at 
P2.20 per share compared to P2.85 per 
share reported as at 31st December 2019 
and Stanchart closed the period at P1.45 
per share compared to P1.67 per share as 
at 31st December 2019. 

The hospitality sector was the hardest 
hit by Covid-19 travel movement 
restrictions.  Chobe Holdings share price 
shed 15.1% to trade at P9.43 per share 
as at 31st December 2020 compared 
to P11.10 per share registered as at 31st 
December 2019.  

Cresta Holdings on the other hand lost 
2.99% to trade at P1.30 per share as at 
31st December 2020 compared to P1.34 
per share as at 31st December 2019. The 
Property stocks were also not spared 
by the negative effects of the pandemic 

as Turnstar Holdings declined by 11.03% 
to close the period at P2.50 per share 
compared to P2.81 per share as at 31st 
December 2019 while Primetime lost 
6.14% to close the period at P2.75 per 
share from P2.93 per share as at 31st 
December 2019. 

However, Sefalana Holdings in the Retail 
sector showed some resilience as it 
continued to record an increase in share 
value as it closed 31st December 2020 
trading at P9.34 per share, recording 
a 4.1 % increase compared to P8.97 per 
share traded as at 31st December 2019. 
To minimize concentration risk and 
maximize portfolio return, the Fund’s 
equity portfolio remains diversified 
across industries. Figure 4 below 
shows diversification across industries 
within the local listed equity as at 31st 
December 2020.

Unlisted Local Equities

As at 31st December 2020, the Local 
Unlisted Equity section comprising of 
MRI Ltd and KYS Ltd was cumulatively 
valued at P8.85 million compared 
to P8.05 million recorded as at 31st 
December 2019. The increase of P0.802 
million in value was due to an increase 
in KYS Ltd’ share price from P0.90 per 
share recorded as at 31st December 2019 
to P1.00 per share as at 31st December 
2020.

Local Fixed Income 

The Local Fixed Income portion was 
valued at P550.8 million as at 31st 
December 2020 having increased by 
P108.3 million from the 31st December 
2019 value of P442.4 million. 

The increase  in Local Fixed Income 
portion was on the back of four (4) new 
bond investments made during the 
year being Primetime (PT030) at P40 
million, RDC Properties (RDCP002) at a 
value P35 million, BBS Limited(BBS011) 
amounting to P25 million and finally 

Botswana Development Corporation 
(BDC004) at P30 million resulting in a 
cumulative nominal value of P130 million. 
In addition, two (2) new Government 
bonds with total nominal value of 
P28 million were purchased during 
the current period being Botswana 
Government’s BW011 at P15 million and 
BW007 at P13 million. In addition, three 
(3) bonds cumulatively valued at P32.5 
million being SBBL065, BW008 and 
BHC020 matured between June 2020 
and December 2020.

Commercial Banks

Financial Services

Tourism/Hospitality

Property

Energy

Retail

ICT

Beverages

Consumer Services

0.3%

1.4%

16.6%
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Figure 4: Local Listed equity holdings by Industry
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In light of the interest rate cuts of 50 
basis points effected by the Bank of 
Botswana in April 2020 and October 
2020, the local bond market experienced 
increased participation in terms of new 
issuances as well as reissuances. The 
Fund was well positioned in terms of its 
cash reserves, to take long position in 
quality bond issuers thereby increasing 
the portfolio’s resilience during times of 
declining local equity markets. 

Property Investments

The Property portfolio consists of 
the MVA Fund Head Office building, 
residential property investments in 
Gaborone and Francistown as well as 
retail properties in Gaborone, Palapye, 
Francistown, Maun and Feune (Pty) Ltd 
(Airport Junction mall).

The portfolio was valued at P413.2 million 
as at 31st December 2020 compared 
to P393.4 million recorded as at 31st 
December 2019 million thus posting an 
increase of P19.9 million.  The increase 
in value of the portfolio was mainly 
attributable to the increase in Net Asset 
Value (NAV) of Feune (Pty) Ltd from 
P218.1 million as at 31st December 2019 
to P239.7 million as at 31st December 
2020. 

Total portfolio vacancy as at 31st 
December 2020 was 8.26% due to 
vacancy of 600 sqm in the Head office 
building, a house in Phakalane Golf 
Estate and three residential units in 
Molapo Estate, Francistown.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Cash and Cash equivalents section 
comprises of local cash at bank, offshore 
cash holding and local fixed term 
deposits. This section declined by P59.4 
million from P510.82 million recorded 
as at 31st December 2019 to close the 
year under review at P451.4 million.  The 
decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
was mainly attributable to the decline 
in the local fixed term deposits from 
P344.34 million as at 31st December 2019 
to  P228.4 million as at 31st December 
2020 as some funds from the local 
fixed term deposits were withdrawn to 
fund both investments in bond  and the 
Fund’s  daily operations.

Local fixed deposits placements are 
done in accordance with the Fund’s 
Fixed Deposit Placement Guidelines 
which provides the criteria for 
placement of deposits based on the 
financial institution’s short term credit 
ratings, interest rates offered, financial 
performance as well as balance sheet 
size. 

Offshore Investments

The Fund’s offshore mandates are 
managed by two (2) offshore Managers 
being Ninety-One Botswana previously 
named as Investec Asset Management 
(Pty) Ltd and Botswana Insurance Fund 
Management (BIFM) Limited.

The offshore portfolio was valued 
at P1.75 billion as at 31st December 
2020 and accounted for 42% of the 
total portfolio. The offshore portfolio 

recorded an increase of P249.5 million or 
16.63% when compared to the value of 
P1.5 billion reported as at 31st  December 
2019. In USD terms, the portfolio grew by 
USD 21.3 million or 14.6%.

The mandate managed by BIFM 
increased by 2.35% in US Dollar terms 
to close the year ended 31st December 
2020 at $81.5 million compared to $79.6 
million reported as at 30th November 
2020 when the mandate was transferred 
from Vunani Fund Managers. In Pula 
terms, the mandate was valued at 
P855.4 million as at 31st December 2020 
having increased from P746.72 million 
reported as at 31st December 2019 
owing to foreign exchange gains as the 
Pula depreciated against the US Dollar.

The mandate managed by Ninety - One 
Botswana grew by 16.27% in US Dollar 
terms to close the year at $85.3 million 
from $73.3 million as at 31st December 
2019 as the recovery of the global 
equity markets continues. In Pula terms, 
the mandate closed the year valued at 
P894.6 million having increased from 
P758.3 million as at 31st December 2019 
owing to foreign exchange gains as the 
Pula depreciated against the US Dollar.

The Pula closed the year ended 31st 
December 2020 trading at P10.49 
against the US Dollar compared to 
P10.34 as at 31st December 2019.

Figure 5 and 6 below show the market 
value of the Fund’s offshore investments 
for the year ended 31st December 2020 
in both US Dollar and Pula respectively. 
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Investment Outlook

The global economy is expected to 
bounce back strongly in the second half 
of year 2021 as the Covid-19 vaccines 
rollout continues. Domestic demand is 
set to gradually recover, while firming 
global demand should bolster the 
external sector, particularly key diamond 
exports.  However, a key downside risk to 
economic recovery is a protracted health 
crisis as African countries try to contain 
the spread of the virus and procure 
vaccines. 

Financial markets volatility is expected 
to remain high into year 2021 due to 
a combination of Covid-19 vaccine 
approvals and rollouts, weak economic 
activity due to lockdowns and policy 
responses. However, the environment 
is expected to be supportive as central 
banks are most likely to maintain loose 
monetary policies across the Globe. 

The Fund will seek to continue to take 
advantage of opportunities as they 
are presented by market volatility to 
increase its investments. 
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The Strategy Department is established 
to coordinate the development, 
implementation and monitoring of 
the organizational Strategic Plan. 
This is achieved through continuous 
performance monitoring and evaluation, 
coordination of enterprise risk 
management, facilitation of change 
management, research and development 
and coordination of business continuity 
management. 

Strategic Plan (2018 – 2022) 
Performance

The Fund is currently operating under 
the Strategic Plan 2018 - 2022, which 
was approved by Board of Directors 
in December 2017 for implementation 
effective January 1st 2018. The Strategy 
places more emphasis on service 
accessibility (assisting all eligible 
claimants), road safety promotion, 
effective post-crash care (rehabilitation) 
and financial sustainability of the Fund. 

The emergence and rapid spread 
of COVID -19 virus both locally and 
globally had a significant impact on the 
operations of the Fund.  Government’s 

interventions to reduce the spread of 
the virus such as lockdowns, curfews 
and movement restrictions necessitated 
for a dramatic shift in the way the 
Fund operates and dispense service to 
customers and stakeholders. 

Notwithstanding, internal response 
strategies which sought to balance 
employee and customer safety with 
business continuity still affected 
the performance of the Fund, as 
demonstrated in different parts of this 
Report.

Against this background, the Fund’s 
summary Strategy implementation for 
the year ended 31st December 2020, is 
indicated on Table 1:

STRATEGY
DEPARTMENT

07
The Fund is still pursuing 
its Strategic Plan, which 
was approved by Board of 
Directors in December 2017 
for implementation effective 
January 2018. 
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Perspective Strategic 
Objective Weight

2020 Performance

Thresholds  Variance
Performance 

Analysis 
(2019 - 2020)Targeted 

(%)
Actual 

(%)

Impact Perspective

Assist all of 
Eligible Claimants 

(Compensation 
and 

Rehabilitation)

0.08 94.6 87.3 9.0 -7.3

Improve Post 
Crash Care

0.08 95.0 81.4 10.0 -13.6 ↔

Reduce Fatalities 
and Injuries 
per 100 000 
populations

0.07 100 136.2 5.0 37.9 ↓

Maintain Fund 
Sustainability

0.07 100.0 81.3 10.0 -18.7 ↑

Customer/ 
Stakeholder Results

Improve Customer 
Satisfaction

0.15 83.5 69.7 8.3 -13.8 ↓

Core Business 
Process Perspective

Improve 
Partnerships and 

Collaboration
0.06 85.5 89.7 10.0 4.2 ↓

Improve 
Operational 
Excellence

0.07 83.0 * 10.0  ↔

Advocate for Safer 
Road Use

0.06 78.1 * 5.0  *

Improve Strategy 
Performance

0.06 95.0 91.6 10.0 -3.4 *

Learning and Growth
Build Leadership 

Capabilities
0.04 97.5 88.5 10.0 -9.0

Improve Employee 
Performance

0.03 100.0 100.0 10.0 0.0

Improve Employee 
Engagement

0.03 74.0 65.6 10.0 -8.4

Financial Stewardship
Improve 

Investment 
Management

0.10 75.0 129.0 50.0 54.0

Table 1: Strategy Performance as at December 31st 2020
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0.05
Improve 
Income 

Collection
100.0 79.6 5.0 -20.4

0.05
 Reduce 

Operational 
Costs

100.0 83.1 10.0 -16.9

Weighted 
Performance 1.0 91.0 91.5 0.5

Performance Level Key Number of Objectives

Above Target 3

Within Target 5

Below Target 5

Objective Not Measured  * 2

The Fund attained an implementation 
score of 91.5% which was marginally 
above a target of 91.0%.  However, in 
calculating the performance, two of 
the fifteen strategic objectives were 
not measured owing to inadequate 
performance data. 

Further, the performance reveals that 
from the measured thirteen strategic 
objectives, three were above the set 
targets, five were within targets whilst 
the remaining five scored below the set 
targets.

Strategic Plan 2018 – 2022 Mid 
Term Review

As part of continuous improvement in 

strategy implementation, a mid-term 
review of the Strategic Plan was done 
during the year 2020. The objectives of 
the review were to assess progress made 
towards achieving planned strategic 
objectives, assess relevance of identified 
strategic interventions and identify 
opportunities for improvement. 

In conducting this review, Management 
relied on feedback from the Strategy 
Performance Review Audit conducted in 
the financial year 2019 and the Board’s 
guidance, among other sources. 

For the financial years 2018 to 2020, the 
Fund’s performance against targets is 
summarized in Figure 1.

The objectives of the 
review were to assess 
progress made towards 
achieving planned 
strategic objectives, 
assess relevance of 
identified strategic 
interventions and 
identify opportunities for 
continuous improvement.
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For the year ended 31st December 2018, 
the Fund achieved an implementation 
rate of 83.8% being marginally below a 
target of 88.9%. 

The performance results were mainly 
influenced by the fact that the first year 
of the Strategy was frontloaded with 
key initiatives which were foundational. 

For the subsequent two years, the actual 
performance exceeded targets. In the 
financial year ended 31st December 2019, 
the actual strategy performance was 
91.7% against the target of 89.5% while 
in financial year ended 31st December 
2020, the actual performance was 91.5% 
against the target of 91.0%.  

Strategy Management Process 
Improvements

Based on feedback from the strategy 
review workshops, improvements were 
proposed for the Revised Strategic Plan 
2018 – 2022.

Tagert (%) Actual (%)

100

90

80

70
2018

88.9
91.7 91.6

83.8
89.5 91

2019

Year

2020

Table 2: Summary of Improvements/Changes from the Review Workshops 

Improvement/Change Rationale 

The Review process followed the Balanced Scorecard’s Nine 
Steps to Success Framework.

It is comprehensive and some employees of the Fund have 
been trained on it, and therefore there is internal capacity to 
champion the System. 

Updated SWOT Analysis To accommodate latest developments.

Development of Customer Value Proposition
To define and document our service offering to our customers. 
Ensures a common understanding of the proposition across 
the organization. 

Perspectives are arranged as Leading and Lagging. To align with Balanced Scorecard Methodology.

The proposed Strategic Plan has Strategic Themes, Strategic 
Theme Definition and Strategic Results.

For clarity and common understanding by all.

All Strategic Objectives are described and have Intended 
Results.

For clarity and ease of measurement

Strategy Map improved to tell a value creation story by 
aligning the perspectives and arrows in the Map.

To align with proposed changes. 

All Performance measures are defined, have objectives 
owners, intended results, formula 

For clarity and common understanding. 

Proposed Strategic Initiatives are defined. They are described 
have Initiative Owners, Intended Results and the Objectives 
they cover.

For clarity and common understanding. 

From the processes above, the Fund’s Strategic Objectives were refined and reduced from sixteen (16) to nine (9). As a result, the 
Fund’s Strategy Map was revised as shown in Figure 2 below.

Figure 1: Strategy Implementation from 2018 to 2020



Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2020

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          77 76          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)

To ensure attainment of the Fund’s strategic objectives, the Fund has put in place an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) process 
to manage both threats and opportunities in its business. The risk management processes are documented in the form of ERM 
Policy, ERM Guidelines and Risk Appetite Statement.

During the year 2020, the Fund managed a portfolio of sixteen strategic risks, five of them being ranked ‘High’ (i.e. rating between 
a range of 16 and 25). A summary of high risks is outlined below;
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Figure 2: MVA Fund Strategy Map 
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From this processes, the Fund’s Strategic Objectives were refined and reduced from sixteen (16) to nine (9). As a result, the Fund’s 
Strategy Map was revised as follows. 

Table 3: Purpose of Key ERM Documents
 

Document Name Document Purpose 

Enterprise Risk Management Policy Expresses MVA Fund’s commitment towards management of risks at all 
levels of the organization. 

Enterprise Risk Management Guidelines Clarifies the Fund’s underlying approach and process to risk management. 

Risk Appetite Statement Defines the Fund’s capacity and willingness to accommodate in 
management of risks. 

During the first quarter of 2020, the Board approved the revised versions of the above documents. The review was intended to 
ensure effective risk management practices across the Fund and also align with best practice guiding documents, specifically the 
ISO 31000 and Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway (COSO) Guidelines. Effective implementation of these 
documents remains the responsibility of all employees across the organization. 

For the year 2020, the Fund was managing a portfolio of sixteen Strategic Risks, five of them being ranked ‘High’ (i.e. rating 
between a range of 16 and 25). A summary of high risks is captured in Table 4;
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Abbreviation Full Name Number of Objectives Definition

II Inherent Impact 
Overall size, value and nature of the consequences of a risk materi-

alizing, in the absence of controls and mitigation strategies

IL Inherent Likelihood
Probability or frequency of an event materializing, in the absence of 

controls and mitigation

IR Inherent Rating
Inherent Impact multiplied by Inherent Likelihood, to give the risk 

rating in the absence of controls and mitigations

RI Residual Impact
Overall size, value and nature of the consequences of a risk 

materializing, when controls and mitigation strategies have been 
implemented

RL Residual Likelihood
Probability or frequency of an event materializing, when controls 

and mitigation strategies have been implemented.

RR Residual Rating 
Residual Impact multiplied by Residual Likelihood, to give the 
risk rating, when controls and mitigation strategies have been 

implemented.

Legend

The performance of the Fund’s High 
Risks as at 31st December 2020 is 
summarized below;

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk of financial 
loss resulting from fluctuating foreign 
exchange rates. The effect of this risk 
is mainly on the Strategic Objective of 
Improve Investment Management. The 
Pula closed the year 2020 trading at 
P10.49 against the US Dollar compared 
to P10.34 recorded as at 31st December 
2019 translating to P17.83 million 
exchange gain on offshore investments  
between 31st December 2019 and 31st 
December 2020. 

On the other hand, the COVID 19 
pandemic has resulted in global 
economic uncertainty as most economies 
went on lockdowns thereby restricting 
economic activities. However, during 
this time of economic uncertainty, the 
US dollar continued to gain strength in 
value as its demand continued to grow. 
As the lockdown restrictions were eased 
and economic activity increased, the US 
dollar shed some value as evidenced by 
the decline from trading at P11.17 on the 

Pula in October 2020 down to trading at 
P10.49 on the Pula in December 2020. 

Management continues to monitor 
currency movements and maintain 
adherence to Investment Policy 
Statement approved limits as a way of 
mitigating the Fund’s exposure to this 
risk.

Escalating Injuries and Deaths

This is the risk of increasing number 
of people who sustain injuries or die 
due to road traffic crashes and the risk 
impacts on the Strategic Objective 
of Reduce Fatalities and Injuries. The 
Fund measures the performance of the 
Objective against the World Health 
Organization’s standard of number of 
crashes per 100 000 populations. 

For the period ended 31st December 
2020, 325 deaths were recorded being a 
decline of 28.9% when compared to the 
457 deaths recorded as at 31st December 
2019. The recorded deaths translated 
to fatality rate of 13.7 deaths/100 000 
population compared to 19.5 deaths/100 
000 population in year 2019. During 
year 2020, eight hundred (800) serious 

injuries were recorded representing 34.0 
injuries/ 100 00 population compared to 
one thousand one hundred and eighty-
three (1 183) serious injuries recorded in 
2019 representing 50.5 injuries/100 000 
population. 

The improvement in road safety 
performance above is largely 
attributable to the implementation of 
COVID 19 movement restrictions across 
the country. In light of the temporary 
nature of this intervention, the residual 
rating of this risk will be maintained as 
is, until sustainable measures are put in 
place. 

Failure to Meet Liabilities

This is the risk of the Fund’s assets 
not meeting its financial obligations 
as they fall due, with direct impact 
on the strategic objective of Maintain 
Fund Sustainability. Management 
continuously monitors the solvency ratio. 
In order to address the Fund’s financial 
sustainability, the Fund is in the process 
of developing a Financial Sustainability 
Strategy. An actuarial valuation of the 
Fund’s assets will be conducted in order 
to inform the optimal funding options. 
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Further, the Fund continues to pursue 
the proposed legislative changes with 
the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development. Some of the proposed 
changes are anticipated to increase 
revenue while some are intended to 
improve service delivery and reduce 
claims costs.

Ineffective Data Management

This risk recognizes that inadequate 
processes in acquiring, validating, 
storing, protecting and processing data 
may affect the quality of information 
across the Fund. This will further have a 
direct impact on the Fund’s operational 
efficiencies, including data integrity. 

As part of the ongoing SAP System 
upgrade to SAP/S4 HANA, Management 
will review its key business processes to 
ensure that they are optimized before 
migration into the upgraded system. 
Further, all departments in the critical 
value chain have provided areas of 
improvements within their processes to 
be accommodated during the upgrade.  
All these are expected to improve 
data acquisition and management 
processes, going forward. Regarding the 
upgrade, the server hardware set up was 
concluded in December 2020 and the 
actual system upgrade will commence 
during the financial year 2021. 

As part of the Strategic Plan mid-
term review process, Management has 
developed scorecard data sheets to 
enable continuous reporting on the 
performance of each strategic objective. 
Maintenance of these data sheets is 
assigned to objective owners, who 
report on a monthly basis to Strategy 
Department for consolidation and 
further analysis of performance. 

Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk of financial loss due 

to changes in market interest rates. 
The effect of this risk is mainly on 
the Strategic Objective of Improve 
Investment Management. In response to 
the COVID 19 pandemic challenges, and 
in an effort to support local economic 
growth, Bank of Botswana embarked 
on easing of Monetary Policy wherein 
the bank rate was cut by 50 basis points 
from 4.75% to 4.25% in April 2020 and a 
further 50 basis points cut to 3.75% in 
October 2020. 

These rate cuts have negatively affected 
interest earned by the Fund from the 
fixed deposits as well as interest earned 
from variable rate bonds.   The rate cut 
also means new bond fixed deposit 
investments will be done at lower 
interest rates, thus impacting negatively 
on interest income. The Fund continues 
to negotiate favorable interest rate 
terms with financial institutions for 
money market securities. In addition, 
the Fund continuously identifies fixed 
interest securities, in the market, as a 
way of diversifying its bond portfolio. 

Business Continuity Management

The Fund’s Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) Programme was 
developed in 2015 and with passage 
of time, it became necessary for the 
Programme to be reviewed. The review 
process commenced in September 
2019 and was completed and approved 
by the Board during the first half of 
year 2020. The review was intended to 
ensure effective business continuity 
management practices across the Fund, 
through alignment of the Programme 
with best practices such as the Business 
Continuity Institute’s (BCI) Good 
Practice Guidelines (GPG) OF 2018 and 
ISO 22301. 

Various governance structures within 
the MVA Fund’s BCM Programme were 
reconstituted in order to align with new 

organizational structure of the Fund. 
Further, key learnings from the COVID 
19 virus pandemic were incorporated 
into the BCM Strategy for effective 
management of the pandemic, going 
forward.     

Change Management 

To support effective implementation 
of its strategic initiatives and other 
change oriented projects, the Fund 
has developed a change management 
process to guide delivery of projects, 
specifically the ‘people aspects’ of 
projects. 

The process involves a representation of 
a Change Agent in all projects to provide 
change management support in order 
to increase the likelihood of projects 
success. Automation of Performance 
Management System and the review 
of BCM Programme are some of the 
projects that were supported by the 
change management process and were 
successfully completed during the year.  

Research and Development 

In fulfilling its role under research 
and development, the Strategy 
Department collaborated with a third 
party consultant for the conduct of the 
External Customer Satisfaction Survey. 
The Survey objective was to determine a 
customer satisfaction index by collecting 
feedback from customers through a 
structured questionnaire. The Fund 
attained a Customer Satisfaction Index 
on 76.6% against a target of 85.5%. More 
details on the Survey are articulated 
under Customer Services Department 
portion of this Report. The Department 
evaluates performance of the Fund’s 
service standards on a periodic basis and 
where there are performance deviations 
then remedial actions are taken to bring 
performance in line with the service 
standards.
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The Human Capital Department’s 
primary role is to develop and implement 
the human capital structure to support 
the Fund to deliver its mandate and 
strategic plan. 

Further, the department promotes a 
conducive work environment where 
employees can unleash their potential 
and contribute towards improved service 
delivery and minimize work related 
conflicts. 

The department works closely 
with all functional departments to 
facilitate recruitment, onboarding, 
benefits administration, performance 
management, talent management, 
employment laws, labor relations, 
training and career development, 
wellness and support programs, 
employee records management, staff 
service awards and staff surveys.

HUMAN CAPITAL
DEPARTMENT

08
Further, the department 
promotes a conducive work 
environment where employees 
can unleash their potential and 
contribute towards improved 
service delivery and minimize 
work related conflicts. 
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Summary of the Human Capital 
Processes

Recruitment 

MVA Fund recruitment processes are 
streamlined to give equal employment 
opportunities to those meeting the 
position requirements. 

In accordance with internal policies, 
vacancies are advertised first internally 
to deserving employees to enhance 
succession planning. Giving priority to  
internal candidates, however, depends 
on an objective assessment of the skills 
and experience of the workforce to 
ensure that the quality of recruitment is 
not compromised.

Executive management positions 
where there are no suitable candidates 
internally, are advertised directly in the 
open market to enhance diversity within 
the organization.  

Onboarding

The Fund has a robust “Onboarding” 

programme for new hires which equips 
employees with necessary environmental 
awareness, risk management 
approaches, broader understanding of 
roles of different departments, wellness 
and support programs. The programme 
for onboarding includes face-to-face 
interaction with representatives of the 
different departments and sections as 
well as hands on experience on system 
related areas.

Benefits Administration 

The Department maintains all key 
employee records in the SAP- HCM 
Organizational Management database 
and is custodian of Payroll processing, 
Employee Self Service (ESS) and Leave 
Management. 

Performance Management

The Fund launched an automated 
performance management system in 
September 2020. The system allows 
employees to create Objective Plans 
and formulate Performance Contracts 
in line with their Operational/Functional 
Strategic Objectives aligned with 

the MVA Fund Corporate Strategy 
(Kgogamasigo 2018-2022). This 
platform allows employees to initiate 
their performance appraisals online and 
supervisors and reviewers to appraise 
and review employee’s performance 
online which improves the integrity of 
the performance management system 
as there is an audit trail.  

Talent Management

The Fund’s objective is to sustain a 
culture of high performance coupled 
with effective employee engagement 
and organizational attractiveness. This is 
achieved through consistently building 
on a progressive culture by developing a 
strong talent pipeline using the custom 
MVA Fund Talent Identification matrix 
and tools.  The Talent Management 
Strategy seeks to build new capabilities 
and revitalize the organization by 
investing in the development of 
employees to prepare them for higher 
positions of responsibilities and enhance 
succession planning.  

The MVA Fund’s Talent Management 
process outlines distinct requirements 
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which employees must satisfy, being 
consistent positive performance and 
potential. The process covers employee 
experience and qualifications, and other 
intermediate steps of talent assessment, 
review, selection, deployment and 
retention which factors are focused on 
creating opportunities for all in a fair and 
equitable manner.

Employment Laws

The Human Capital Department as a 
custodian of employer and employee 
rights does an exceptional job to 
balance application of statutory labor 
law requirements with organizational 
policies. The Fund has several policies 
and guidelines which govern employer 
/employee relationships and these 
among others include the following;

• General Conditions of Employment; 
• Code of Conduct;
• Disciplinary Policy & Grievance 

Procedure;
• Performance Management;
• Talent Management;
• Competency Framework;
• Training and Career Development; and
• Attraction and Retention, etc.

Labor Relations

The Fund promotes employment equity, 
peace and harmony in the workplace 
by allowing eligible employees to join a 
union of their choice subject to meeting 
the statutory requirements to form 
a union. The Fund recognized staff’s 
affiliation to BOPEU and have signed a 
Collective Labour Agreement (CLA) with 
BOPEU. 

This agreement has been instrumental 
in the management of internal relations 
between the Fund and the Union. 
The Union members and the Fund 
Management represent interests of 

employees in the bargaining unit and 
the interests of the Fund respectively 
through a mutually agreed, collegial 
platform of negotiations.
 
The Human Capital Department 
champions the implementation of 
bargaining processes and executing 
signed agreements post negotiation by 
the parties. 

Training and Career Development

The Fund provides opportunities 
for employee self-development and 
professional growth through training 
and development geared towards either 
addressing identified performance gaps 
or to prepare employees for positions 
of higher responsibilities. Training and 
Career Development Policy supports 
those who aspire to enroll on technical 
or soft skills training  which is relevant 
to the operations of the Fund. The 
Fund provides funding for planned 
training pursued at accredited training 
institutions. Where training funds are 
inadequate to accommodate all those 
requiring training, the policy enables 
employees to request self-sponsorship 
through Educational Incentive loan. 

Wellness and Support 

The Human Capital Department on an 
annual basis develops a calendar of 
wellness and commemorative activities 
aimed at encouraging employees to 
maintain health and fitness, teamwork 
and to promote work-life balance. Below 
are some of the events celebrated at 
MVA Fund;

• Valentine’s Day;
• Women’s Day;
• Fathers’ Day;
• World Aids Day;
• Cancer Day;
• MVA Fund Sports Day; and

• Wellness and Christmas Day.

The Fund observes the above-mentioned 
days to raise awareness and to create 
experiences which are likely to trigger a 
more positive environment in future. 

As part of wellness, the Fund provides 
counselling to employees who need 
therapy to deal with professional or 
personal challenges. This counselling is 
outsourced to professional organizations 
to maintain confidentiality.

Employee Records Retention

The Human Capital Department 
maintains safe custody of employees 
records during their life cycle in 
accordance with the Records 
Management Policy. 

Service and Performance Awards

The Fund recognizes and celebrates 
employees’ service excellence and award 
prizes to employees for other areas of 
exceptional performance beyond that 
recognized through the performance 
management system.  

These awards are in line with the 
Guidelines for the Recognition Awards, 
which are coordinated bi-annually and 
annually as an incentive for staff to 
adhere to the Fund’s Core Values for 
the attainment of improved service 
delivery and to exceed customer service 
expectations. It is through these efforts 
that the Fund also seeks to enhance its 
Employee Value Proposition (EVP).
Below are the various categories of the 
awards:

• Adherence to MVA Fund Core Values;
• Best Cross Departmental Team;
• Best Branch/Department; 
• Long Service Awards; and
• Chief Executive Officer’s Award.
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Employee Engagement Survey

Deloitte Best Company To Work For 
Survey 

The Fund participated in the 2020 
Deloitte Best Company To Work For 
Survey to determine and improve 
employee engagement levels with 
a view to create a conducive work 
environment.  The survey feedback is 
used to develop initiatives to address 
low scoring dimensions and to improve 
organizational policies to support 
human capital development for the Fund 
to be an employer of choice. 

The four (4) dimensions covered by the 
survey are Human Experience, Culture, 
Talent and Leadership.
 
The Fund achieved a Gold Seal index of 
65.6% compared to an index of 68.2% 
(Gold Seal) attained in the previous 
survey year. 

The Engagement Index measures 
the overall engagement state of 
the organization’s employees and 
these are also based on perceptions 
and impressions of the Fund by the 
employees.

Figure 1 shows the MVA Fund High Level Structure. 

Statistical Summary

MVA Fund has a workforce of one-hundred and nineteen (119) placed within the various Functional Departments including those 
serving at the five (5) MVA Fund Branches in Maun, Francistown, Kang, Selibe-Phikwe, Rail-Park and Palapye.

Board of 
Directors

Chief Executive O�cer

General Manager-
Corporate Services

General Manager-
Customer Services

Senior Manager-
Human Capital

Senior Manager-
Finance & Administration

Senior Manager-
Investments

Senior Manager-
Strategy

Senior Manager-
Injury Prevention

Senior Manager-
Information Technology

Senior Manager-
Internal Audit

Senior Manager-
Case Management

Senior Manager-
Claims Assessment 
Investigations

Senior Manager-
Board Secretary / 
Legal Services

Senior Manager-
Corporate  
Communications

Senior Manager-
Customer  Services

Figure 1: MVA Fund High Level Structure
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Table 1: Staff by division and department/branch 

EXECUTIVE DIVISION DEPARTMENT COMPLEMENT

Board Secretariat & Legal Services 2

Chief Executive Officer’s office 2

Corporate Communications 2

Injury Prevention 11

Internal Audit 3

Information Technology 7

Strategy 3

Sub Total 28

CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION DEPARTMENT COMPLEMENT

Divisional Head (General Manager) 1

Finance & Administration 17

Human Capital 4

Records 4

Investments 4

Sub Total 29

CUSTOMER SERVICES DIVISION

DEPARTMENT/BRANCH COMPLEMENT

Case Management 17

Divisional Head (General Manager) 1

Claims Assessment & Investigations 7

Customer Services 7

Francistown Branch 9

Kang Branch 2

Maun Branch 4

Palapye Branch 8

Rail Park Branch 6

Selibe –Phikwe Branch 2

Sub Total 62

TOTAL STAFF COMPLEMENT 123

Table 1 above shows the number of positions per divisions and departments. The majority of employees (60%) are in the core 
departments; which drive delivery of the Fund’s mandate.
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18%
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29%
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Termination
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4

In Post Approved 
Establishment

123

20

0

>6-<10

+10

Figure 1 above represents the average staff length of service. The figure shows that 29%, which is the majority of staff have been 
in the employment of the Fund for a period of ten (10) years and above, while 27% of staff have been with the Fund for less than 
three (3) years. The figure further shows that 26% of staff have worked for the Fund for a period of between six (6) years and ten 
(10) years while the remaining 18% have been with the Fund for a period of between three (3) years and six (6) years. MVA Fund 
continues to retain staff through positive retention strategies, staff engagements and creating a conducive work environment.  

The Fund achieved an acceptable attrition rate of 4 % against the targeted rate of 7% which is inclusive of resignations, dismissal 
and retirement. 

119

Establishment as at 31st December 2020

Figure 1: Years of Service 

Figure 2: Movement in Establishment
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25-31

Masters

32-39

Bachelors / Professional

40-49

Certificate / Diploma

>50

Figure 3 above represents the age profiles of MVA Fund’s employees. The age bracket thirty-two (32) years to thirty-nine (39) years 
has the largest proportion of employees at forty-one percent (41%) followed by age bracket of forty (40) years to forty-nine (49) 
years at twenty-nine percent (29%), and these two age brackets account for seventy percent (70%) of the Fund’s employees. The 
age bracket twenty-five (25) years to thirty- one (31) years is generally mobile and career ambitious and the employee retention 
strategies will assist with effective management of the team together with the rest of the other employees. Eight percent (8%) of 
the workforce is nearing retirement and falls under the age bracket of fifty (50) years and above. 

22%

41%

29%

8%

60%

60%
21%

Figure 3: Staff by Age

Figure 4: Staff Qualifications Profile
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Figure 4 shows a breakdown of staff’s 
qualifications. Seventy-nine percent 
(79%) of staff possess a minimum of a 
Bachelor’s degree qualifications and/or 
higher qualifications, while the remaining 
twenty-one percent (21%) possess a 
certificate and/ or diploma qualification. 
As a knowledge based organization, the 
Fund primarily employs professional 
cadres in furtherance of delivery of its 
mandate.   

MVA Fund Core Values

The Fund has adopted five (5) Core 
Values of Customer Focus, Empathy, 
Teamwork, Integrity and Innovation. The 
core values represents the attitudes, 
behaviors and characters that will create 
an enabling environment, guide the Fund 
and shape the high performance culture 
for the successful implementation of 
the Fund’s strategy. The values also 
instill shared knowledge, direction and 
purpose among staff members and are 
held with high regard. The core values 
are an integral part of the Fund`s culture. 
These core values have been included in 
the Performance Management System 
in order to reinforce their importance to 
service delivery. 

Communication

Communication remains critical in 

driving the success of the Fund. The 
Fund has a robust communication policy 
to ensure a free flow of information 
across all levels.  The Human Capital 
Department acknowledges that without 
corporation between management and 
staff, it will be difficult to effectively carry 
the mandate of the Fund.  This mutual 
relationship thrives due to effective 
internal communication mechanisms 
which include the use of the following;

• Human Capital Circulars
• Memoranda
• Internal Letters
• E-Mail correspondences
• Power Point Presentations
• Formal Meetings
• Face to Face interactions, etc.

Outlook 

In the year 2021, the Fund will focus on 
implementation of the following: 

Implementation of the Automated 
Performance Management Policy

The Performance Management Policy 
automation project which focusses on 
the individual appraisal process was 
completed in 2020. Implementation will 
be carried out at the beginning of 2021 
where all employees will be expected to 
contract in the automated system. The 

solution will enable easier and effective 
performance management monitoring. 

Implementation of the Talent 
Management Strategy

The Fund commenced the Review and 
Development of the Talent Management 
Strategy which was subsequently 
completed during the year. The Talent 
Management Strategy is at the heart 
of the people management process. 
It is in this background that the Fund 
will be promoting one of the key pillars 
of Vision 2036 which talks about 
“Human and Social Development”. The 
Fund has developed Talent Plans for 
implementation in 2021.

Implementation of the Competency 
Framework 

The Fund commenced an exercise to 
review and develop the Competency 
Framework in September 2020 
and the project was successfully 
completed before the end of the year. 
The framework is meant to provide 
the competencies that will drive the 
achievement of the Kgogamasigo 
Strategic Plan 2018 – 2022. The Fund will 
procure a leadership assessment tool 
to support the implementation of the 
Talent Management strategy including 
development of succession pools. 

Employees listening attentively during one of the CEO’s address
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The role of Information Communication 
Technology Department is to provide 
information technology solutions to 
support the operations of the Fund and 
to protect the integrity of the Fund’s 
information.

The Fund developed the Information 
Communication Technology Strategy 
2019 – 2023 to guide on the information 
technology goals which will enable 
achievement of the organization’s 
mandate and strategic goals.  

The Fund is in the third year of 
implementing the Information 
Communication Technology Strategy 
and during the year 2020, focus was on 
ensuring that the existing core systems 
are upgraded to latest versions with 
minimal disruption to the business 
operations. 

The following initiatives were initiated 
during year 2020 to support the key 
areas as identified by the ICT Strategy 
2019 -2023. 

INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 
DEPARTMENT
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The department developed an 
Information Communication 
Technology Strategy 2019 – 2023 
to guide on the information 
technology goals which will enable 
achievement of the organization’s 
strategic goals.
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Table 1: Initiatives undertaken in year 2020
 

Key Area Initiatives

IT contribution to social outcomes The Fund uses the website and social media platforms to educate the public on road 
safety and the Fund’s products and services.  

e-services

MVA Fund   uses technology to schedule claimants’ appointments with medical ser-
vice providers.  This arrangement has enhanced service delivery to claimants as they 
do not need to assess the offices physically to seek medical attention and in addition, 
assists in decongesting the office during this COVID - 19 Pandemic era.  

Increased automation

The project to upgrade the SAP System to SAP (S/4 Hana) which is the latest Sap ver-
sion was initiated in 2020 with a tender to procure server hardware which is compatible 
with the new version of SAP (S/4 Hana).  The hardware was delivered and setting up 
and installation was concluded in December 2020.  The upgrade will commence in year 
2021.  As part of this upgrade, another SAP module will be implemented to provide 
interface between the existing SAP modules.

Improved integration

Integration with service providers’ systems was commenced in 2020. This integration 
enables submission and validation of electronic invoices from service providers. The 
integrations are geared towards improving service delivery to MVA Fund customers 
and to improve payment process to the service providers. One private hospital has suc-
cessfully completed the integration and has started submitting invoices to the Fund 
electronically. Other private hospitals are at different stages of the project.

Data governance

A data governance framework document was drafted during the year and will be con-
cluded early in 2021.  Data management is critical for operational efficiencies and man-
agement reporting. The data governance framework will guide the handling of data at 
all levels of the process chain.  

Strategic IT leadership

In recognition of the strategic role of the Information Technology Department within 
the Fund, the department now reports to the Chief Executive Officer.  Major decisions 
affecting information technology are handled by the Information Technology Steering 
Committee which is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer.  Information technology 
reports are reported to the Board through the Finance and Audit Committee. 

Information security

Due to the high level of automation of MVA Fund processes and requirement for sys-
tems to be accessible through public networks, systems security is critical to maintain 
the integrity of MVA Fund’s data.  An assessment of the firewall was done and imple-
mentation of the recommendations were concluded in 2020.  
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Security of claimants’ confidential 
information.

The Fund maintains confidential 
information about claimants’ clinical 
data and their benefit payment schedules 
and in order to maintain the integrity of 
this information, access to it is limited 
to only authorised personnel by way of 
passwords which expires periodically. 
Employees are encouraged to treat 
claimants’ information confidentially 
and to exercise due care when sharing 
such information with service providers. 

The integration of the Fund’s information 
technology systems to the systems of 
service providers who submit claims 
electronically has in-built controls to 
protect unauthorized access of the 
Fund’s information using the service 
provider’s networks. MVA Fund’s firewalls 
ensure that confidential information 
about claimants cannot be accessed by 

unauthorised third parties.  

Availability of systems and 
networks

The Fund is highly reliant on information 
technology for its operational needs 
and further to deliver service to its 
claimants and therefore systems and 
networks must be available at all times. 
The Fund has continued to periodically 
maintain its systems to ensure that 
there is no disruption to service while 
communication with other offices was 
enhanced. Systems availability was at 
100% during year 2020.

Data cleanup exercise 

Part of the migration to the SAP (S/4 
Hana) will require the Fund to undertake 
a data cleanup exercise to ensure that 
quality data is migrated to the new 
system. A team comprising of the 

core departments has been setup to 
undertake the data cleanup exercise 
under the supervision of super users.

Service Level Agreements

MVA Fund entered into service level 
agreements with SAP partners to assist 
with resolving system issues which 
cannot be resolved in-house.  

Service levels are closely monitored 
to ensure system issues are resolved 
in accordance with the turnaround 
times stipulated in the agreements. A 
service level agreement was signed with 
internet service provider for data links 
and internet connection.

Training and Capacity Building

The Fund continued to build capacity by 
providing training to users to ensure that 
systems are fully utilized.  Trained users 

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2021
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were paired with consultants during 
resolution of system issues for skills 
transfer purposes.  Continuous training 
is provided to reduce over reliance on 
consultants for system support.

Information Technology Projects

The following projects were carried out 
during 2020

Post Implementation Review of Case 
Management System

The Case Management system went live 
in 2018 and following the stabilization of 
the system a post implementation review 
commenced in 2019 and was concluded 
in the first quarter of 2020.  The post 
implementation review was carried 
out by SAP Africa.  The review report 
recommended some improvements 
to the system and these will be 
implemented as system enhancements.  

Disaster Recovery

MVA Fund’s disaster recovery setup 
was hosted at its Francistown Branch 
Office and following discovery that the 
setup did not comply with data center 
requirements, the recovery site was 
relocated to Metrofile. The objective 
of the disaster recovery is to enable 
the Fund to continue with business 
operations in case of a disaster affecting 
the productions site. 

COVID 19 Pandemic

The year 2020 was affected by the 
COVID-19 pandemic and this affected 
MVA Fund’s service to claimants and the 
public due to movement restrictions and 
lockdowns. The Information Technology 
Department capacitated critical 
business units to work from home by 
procuring the necessary technology tools 
and ensuring availability of networks. 

Claimants treatment authorizations 
were done electronically during the 
lockdown period.  The department also 
introduced platforms to enable meetings 
to be held virtually as a strategy to de-
congest the offices and comply with the 
health protocols. 

Outlook

In year 2021, the Fund will primarily 
focus on upgrading the SAP software to 
SAP 4 Hana and implementation of the 
new financial services collections and 
disbursement module.  The upgrade will 
come with enhancement of processes to 
ensure efficiency.  The department will 
continue to capacitate critical functions 
with information technology resources 
to enable them to work from home as 
a way of complying with the COVID 19 
protocols.  

Information Technology Department
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The Corporate Communications 
Department’s main responsibility is to 
facilitate and coordinate the Fund’s 
Corporate Communications Strategy. 
Key functions of the department 
include overseeing internal and 
external communications, internal and 
external stakeholder management, 
public relations, media liaison and 
press monitoring, marketing the 
Fund’s products and services as well 
as brand and image management. The 
Department ensures that the Fund 
has sound relationships with all its 
stakeholders, in the process maintaining 
a positive image.

The year 2020 was a peculiar year as 
it had significant challenges. Owing to 
the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
there was a total shift in operations 
in every field, with marketing and 
communications being significantly 
affected. Effective innovative ways of 
communication and reaching out to 
target audience had to be developed. 
Inevitably, contemporary models of 
communication had to be adopted and 
traditional models re-evaluated and this 
came with its rewards and challenges. 

It is against this background that the 
report will be based. 

Stakeholder Engagements

As a way of improving stakeholder 
relations geared towards improved 
service delivery, the Corporate 
Communications Department held 
stakeholder engagement forums in 
various regions across the country. The 
purpose of these forums was to engage 
on issues of mutual interest with various 
stakeholders and industry partners.  

Road Safety Promotion partners

The Fund has Memorandum of 
Understandings and Service Level 
Agreements with various road traffic 
safety stakeholders. 

For the effective implementation of these 
agreements, it is beneficial to periodically 
review these agreements and identify 
areas requiring improvement and draw 
effective intervention plans. During the 
period under review, the Fund conducted 
the following stakeholder meetings with 
key industry players;

CORPORATE
COMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT

10
The department develops, 
cultivates and manages healthy 
communication environment 
that gives birth to long term 
positive reputation around the 
Fund ‘s brand
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Council Meetings

The Fund addressed the Maun Sub 
Council and the Chobe District Council 
meetings during the first quarter of the 
year. The honourable councillors were 
educated on MVA Fund’s mandate as 
well as its products and services. The 
Councillors were then accorded the 
opportunity to engage with the Fund on 
areas of concern and to seek clarification 
on the presentation. 

The presentations were conducted 
in order to equip the Councillors with 
information to enable them to in turn 
educate their respective constituents on 
MVA Fund and its products and services.  
The engagements were fruitful as the 
Councillors appreciated the Fund’s 
efforts to sensitise people on road traffic 
safety issues and their impact on the 
economy and the communities at large.

District Road Safety Committees

The Fund held consultative meetings 
with key road safety players in Maun 
and Chobe in the first quarter. The 
participants among others included the 
District Commissioner’s Office, Botswana 
Police Service and The Department of 
Road Transport and Safety (DRTS). 

The objective of the meetings was to 
discuss issues of common interest, give 
each other feedback and come up with 
ways of enhancing the partnership in 
order to improve service delivery.

Post-Crash stakeholders 

Being a crucial part of the MVA Fund’s 
claims process, it is important that the 
Fund maintains a positive relationship 
with its post-crash service providers. 

These service providers play a critical 
role in the successful rehabilitation of 
our claimants. It is therefore important 
to foster a mutually beneficial 
relationship with the post-crash 
stakeholders. Despite the restrictions 
placed on movement and gatherings a 
series of workshops were held with these 
stakeholders. 

Hospital Workshops for Health Care 
Professionals

The Fund held workshops for the 
health care professionals in Mahalapye, 
Francistown, Maun and Chobe. The 
workshops were conducted to educate 
the hospital’s employees on the Fund’s 
products and services as well as its case 
management policies and procedures.  
As an integral part of the rehabilitation 
process and often the first to interact 
with the claimant, it is important for 
hospital personnel to be conversant with 
the services offered by the Fund. 

Presentations such as these do not only 
assist the personnel when engaging with 
the Fund, but they are also beneficial to 
the claimant as to a certain degree, the 
hospital personnel become an extension 
of the Fund’s information disseminators. 

CEO’s Courtesy Visits to Health 
Facilities 

In an effort to enhance the relationship 
with the private hospitals, the Chief 
Executive Officer had a meet and greet 
session with the Bokamoso Private 
Hospital, Sedilega Private Hospital and 
Gaborone Private Hospital.  The purpose 
of these sessions were to discuss issues 
of mutual interest and how the two 
parties can work together to improve 
service delivery as well as the experience 
of those in need of our services. 

Following fruitful engagements between 
the Fund and the private hospitals, the 
Fund was offered to establish service 
stations in the private hospitals to 
service its claimants. The service stations 
will bring our services closer to our 
claimants and improve convenience to 
the claimants and will further decongest 
the Fund offices.   
 
Social Workers Forum

The Fund, in collaboration with Social 
and Community Development (S&CD) 
and the Botswana National Association 
of Social Workers conducted a Social 
Workers Forum in Pitsane.
 
The objectives of the forum were 

to intensify engagement with key 
stakeholders in order to effectively 
drive the Fund’s mandate, to provide a 
holistic understanding of the functions 
and operations of the Fund as well as 
to enhance stakeholder relationships. A 
resolution was then made to prioritise 
the drafting of a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) which will be 
beneficial to the  parties.

Psychosocial Support Service Providers 

During the year, the Fund conducted 
a seminar for the psychosocial service 
providers with a view to address issues 
pertinent to the field and the services 
provided to the Fund and its claimants.
The objectives of the seminar were to 
engage new service providers in order to 
intensify stakeholder management and 
effectively drive the Fund’s mandate, 
to provide a holistic understanding of 
the functions and operations of the 
Fund by sharing and reinforcing MVA 
Fund products and services in terms 
of Psycho Social Rehabilitation to 
injured claimants. In addition, part of 
presentation was on fraud prevention 
and control.

The interactive seminar provided an 
opportunity for service providers and 
the Fund to discuss matters of mutual 
interest and to solicit feedback from the 
service providers. 

Media Engagement Seminar 

The media is an important stakeholder 
in disseminating key information of 
the Fund to its stakeholders. The Fund 
hosted the media on 19th November 
2020 to capacitate them on its products 
and services as well as provide an 
update on the financial position of the 
Fund amid the Covid-19 pandemic. 
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Corporate Communication

The Covid- 19 pandemic has significantly 
changed the communication 
environment as there is a major shift from 
the use of traditional media platforms 
to social media platforms. MVA Fund  
now relies more on these platforms to 
communicate and disseminate their 
messages to a wider online audience.

Social Media platforms

Following the approval of the Social 
Media Policy, which aims to provide a low-
cost method for the public to interact 
with the Fund to provide feedback, seek 
assistance and suggest ideas for service 
improvement, the Fund continues to 
communicate relevant information such 
as advertisements, announcements and 
the Fund’s services through its online 
platforms. 

The Fund‘s online presence has 
since improved as all information is 
communicated through these channels. 
The page followership has increased 
from 22 953 as at 30th June 2020 to 25 
490 as at 30th November 2020.

Towards the end of the year, the Fund 
engaged a social media content manager, 
to enhance the Fund’s presence in social 
media platforms to reach out to a wider 
audience during the festive season. This 
initiative increased the Fund’s outreach 
three fold within a short period of time, 
and it helped us to disseminate road 
traffic safety messages.

Website management 

The website is used as the first port 
of information about the Fund. The 
department continues to use the 
website as a marketing tool for products 
and services, tenders, vacancies and 
announcements. The website is currently 
functioning well though there are 
challenges with the update of statistics 
and this will be addressed during the 
revamp of the Website in year 2021. The 
revamped Website will easily integrate 
with other social media platforms for 
ease of access by users.

The Annual Report 

Following approval by National 
Assembly, the Annual Report was 
launched on the 19th November 2020 and 
duly distributed to all key stakeholders. 
The report was also uploaded on the 
website for access by the public. 

Production of the MVA Fund Today 
Magazine

The production and distribution of the 
quarterly MVA Fund Today Magazine, 
which is used to inform the public and 
stakeholders about the Fund’s products 
and service, road safety promotion and 
other developments within the Fund was 
affected by the lockdowns and travel 
restrictions. Owing to the Covid – 19 
Pandemic challenges, the Fund opted 
to issue only two magazines instead 
of the four in July 2020 and December 
2020, respectively. The issues also 
contained articles contributed by other 
stakeholders in order to give readers a 
wider view of socio-economic issues.

Road Safety TV Documentary

The Fund launched its first ever 
documentary dubbed “SAFETY ON 

THE ROAD” in September 2020. This 
educational documentary was aimed 
at educating the public about the risks 
associated with using the road and 
precautions to be taken by all road 
users with a view to instilling safer 
road safety behaviour.The launch of the 
TV Programme came amid the global 
COVID -19 scourge which had negatively 
affected the Fund’s interactive public 
education programmes. 

The documentary therefore went a long 
way in helping to impart knowledge on 
issues of road safety, address challenges 
attributable to behavioural factors such 
as drunken driving, driving above the 
recommended speed limits, recklessness, 
unlawful overtaking, negligence and loss 
of control. 

This initiative was timely as the 
nation required such interventions to 
reduce the escalation of road crashes 
countrywide. Although people are 
knowledgeable about issues of road 
safety, compliance to safety rules is still 
a concern, and non- compliance is largely 
influenced by individual perception. It 
is therefore important that our road 
safety education and communication 
programmes consistently address user 
road risk perception.

Sponsored Radio Programmes

The Fund considers the use of radio as 
critical media of communication mainly 
due to its wide coverage and diverse 
audience. Further, there are a number of 
radio stations which appeal to different 
audiences and therefore the packaging 
of messages is key in order to make an 
impact and increase audience of the 
programmes.

Montsamaisa Bosigo Radio Drama on 
Gabz FM 

Montsamaisa Bosigo radio drama is one 
of the innovative marketing tool that 
the Fund utilises to sensitise the public 
on road safety issues and the benefits 
available to those affected by road traffic 
crashes. The radio drama was aired on 
Gabz FM on weekly basis. The Fund will 
in the future extend airing the drama 
to other radio stations for improved 
coverage of listeners.

Sunday Ballads Programme on RB2
 
In 2019 the Fund broadened its 
communication space to reach out 
to its diverse stakeholders. The Fund 
sponsored the RB2 radio station Sunday 
Ballads programme in order to educate 
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the public on its products and services. 
The program plays an integral part in 
marketing the Fund and creating brand 
awareness. The program is aired on RB2 
on weekly basis.
 
Media Relations

The COVID 19 restrictions impacted 
the Fund’s programme to interact 
with the Media, who are important 
stakeholders in our communication 
efforts with the public. The Fund 
however continued using other forms of 
media communication to disseminate 
information to its stakeholders and the 
public. Press releases were issued on 
Fund’s preparedness and response to the 
COVID 19 pandemic and how claimants 
will be assisted during the Lockdown 
period. 

Several interviews were aired on radio 
and television to inform the public on 
how the Fund serviced the claimants 
during the lockdown, the challenges 
encountered, learnings and positives 
observed therefrom. The significant 
reductions in road traffic accidents, 
fatalities and injuries were highlighted 
as some of the positives from the 
Government restrictions on movements. 
The continuation of offering claimants’ 
services without them coming to our 
offices, was also considered a learning 
that could be taken forward and 
improved upon.

Corporate Social Investment

In 2020 the Fund, through its Social Club 

undertook a number of initiatives geared 
towards assisting underprivileged 
members of the community and to 
address other societal challenges. These 
initiatives were done in line with the MVA 
Fund’s corporate value of “empathy”, the 
MVA Fund Corporate Social Investment 
strategy and the MVA Fund Social Club 
objectives.

One of the beneficiaries of our 
contribution to society through the 
MVA Fund Social Club, was the Palapye 
Primary Hospital maternity ward which 
in February 2020 was assisted through 
a donation of P10,000.00 worth of 
clothing and consumables for needy 
mothers and their new born babies. 
The hospital was elated to receive this 
assistance as they often had a high 
number of needy mothers and new 
born babies, yet the hospital is under 
resourced to assist the needy.

The Social Club again assisted a staff 
member of one of the Fund’s outsourced 
services whose house caught fire and 
burnt down in Thamaga Village. The 
house accommodated six (6) family 
members who were left in dire need of 
shelter after the house was gutted by fire. 
The assistance offered to the beneficiary 
which amounted to P20,000.00 was in 
the form of building materials, labour, 
clothing and groceries.

In the midst of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
MVA Fund staff members as a collective 
heeded the President of Botswana, 
His Excellency Dr. M. E. K. Masisi’s call 
for assistance towards combating the 

pandemic and contributed an amount of 
P12, 760.00 to the Covid-19 Relief Fund 
in April 2020.

The Fund’s Social Club adopted seven 
less privileged students from Therisanyo 
Primary School in the Old Naledi ward 
in Gaborone, and the children are 
progressing well in their studies.

The Fund and the Social Club will 
continue to work collaboratively in 
pursuit of assisting the needy members 
of our society.

Outlook

Going into the year 2021, the Fund 
intends to intensify its stakeholder 
engagement efforts as well as to 
continue leveraging on social media 
platforms to communicate with its 
claimants and road users.

The Fund will review its Stakeholder 
Engagement Strategy with a view to 
measure its success and to enhance its 
performance. We intend to consolidate 
our relationship with our key stakeholders 
and engage them on matters of mutual 
interest.

The engagement of social media content 
managers will assist us as we continue 
to communicate with the public through 
respective social media platforms.
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The Fund has an independent in-house 
Internal Audit function whose operations 
are in accordance with the Internal Audit 
Charter. The Charter is approved by the 
Board of Directors on recommendation 
by Finance and Audit Committee.  

The purpose of Internal Audit Department 
is to provide an independent, objective 
assurance and consulting services 

designed to add value and improve the 
control environment of the Fund. 

The mission of the Internal Audit 
department is to enhance and protect 
organisational value by providing risk 
based and objective assurance, advice 
and insight. Figure 1 below depicts the 
Internal Audit Function.

INTERNAL 
AUDIT 
DEPARTMENT

11
It helps the Fund accomplish its 
strategic objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach 
to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, 
internal controls and governance 
processes. 

Internal Audit Function

Source: URL: https://www.iso-9001-checklist.co.uk/internal-audit-checklist.htm
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Figure 1: Internal Audit Function
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The Internal Audit Department helps the 
Fund accomplish its strategic objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve 
the effectiveness of risk management, 
internal controls and governance 
processes. 

Organisational Status

In order to enhance the independence 
and objectivity of the Internal Audit 
Department as well as to ensure an 
optimal accomplishment of the Internal 
Audit mandate as contained in the 
Internal Audit Charter, the Senior 
Manager Internal Audit in accordance 
with best practice reports functionally 
to the Board of Directors through the 
Finance and Audit Committee and 
administratively to the Chief Executive 
Officer.

Control Environment

The increased focus on accountability 
by those charged with Governance has 

propelled the need for an effective risk 
management strategy as an integral part 
of good corporate governance practice. 
This has put the Fund under increasing 
pressure to identify its business risks 
and develop risk mitigating strategies to 
ensure the delivery of its mandate.

During the year under review, the Board 
of Directors, through the Finance and 
Audit Committee and the Internal Audit 
Department, continued to provide 
assurance on the effectiveness of 
internal controls and to improve the 
Fund’s governance processes. 

The Internal Audit Department adopts 
a risk based audit approach in the 
conduct of its audit which is aligned to 
the Fund’s risk management framework. 
The Department’s core role in the risk 
management process is as follows;

• Providing reasonable assurance on 
the design and effective operation of 
internal controls;

• Providing active support and 

involvement in the risk management 
process;

• Facilitating risk assessment;
• Educating line staff in risk management 

and internal controls;
• Coordinating internal control 

effectiveness; and 
• Periodic reporting to the Board 

of Directors through the Finance 
and Audit Committee on the risk 
management process of the Fund.

Combined Assurance Model

Combined assurance model is a 
governance tool which considers 
business units and management 
control as the first line of defence in risk 
management, while the second line of 
defense includes the various risk control 
and compliance oversight functions 
established by the Board of Directors. 
Internal audit falls within the ambit of 
the third line of defence.

Assurance 
Providers

Identification & 
Management of Risk

Monitoring & 
Assurance

Control

Source:URL:https://ag.treasury.gov.za/org/rms/Shared%20Documents/Forums%20and%20Events/20130307%20
National%20Government%20Risk%20Management%20Forum/2.%20Combined%20Assurance%20-%20M%20Victor.pdf

Figure 1: Combined Assurance Model
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The model requires organisations to 
incorporate and optimise all assurance 
services and functions so that, taken 
as a whole, they would enable an 
effective control environment, support 
the integrity of information used for 
decision-making by the Board of 
Directors and its committees, Executive 
Management and support the integrity 

of the Fund’s external reports.  

King IV Report recommendations do not 
prescribe the design of the model, but 
allow for those charged with governance 
to exercise their judgement in this 
regard. The figure above illustrates the 
Combined Assurance Model as outlined 
in King IV Report.

Fraud Management

Fraud is an intentional act by one or more 
individuals among management, those 
charged with governance, employees, 
or third parties, involving the use of 
deception to obtain an unjust or illegal 
advantage.

The primary responsibility for the 
prevention and detection of fraud rests 
with the Board of Directors who in turn 
delegate the responsibility to Executive 
Management. Executive Management, 
with the oversight of those charged with 
governance, places a strong emphasis 
on fraud prevention, which may reduce 
opportunities for fraud to take place, and 
fraud deterrence, which could persuade 
individuals not to commit fraud because 
of the likelihood of detection and 
punishment. 

This involves a commitment to creating a 
culture of honesty and ethical behaviour 
which forms part of the Code of Conduct 
entailed in the Fund’s General Conditions 
of Employment. MVA Fund has also put 
in place internal controls to reduce the 
risk of fraud to the Fund’s risk appetite. 
Oversight by the Board of Directors 
includes considering the potential for 
management override of controls or 
other inappropriate influence over the 
financial reporting process and other key 
processes in the Fund.

Fraud and Ethics Whistleblowing 
Hotline

As part of its concerted efforts to 
optimise the fraud management process, 
the Fund operates an anonymous 
and independent Fraud and Ethics 
Whistle-blower Hotline. The facility is 
administered by Deloitte Anonymous 
Tip-Offs. The utilization of the line is not 
yet at the desired level and the Fund 
continues to create awareness of the 
facility through advertising via internal 
and external media platforms. 

COVID-19 pandemic continues to have 
a devastating impact across the globe. 
The combination of financial and health 
threats makes people more vulnerable 
and creates opportunities for fraudsters 
to thrive. On the backdrop of this, the 
Internal Audit Department received an 
increase in the number of fraud referral 
cases from the Customer Services 
Department. The number of cases 
referred increase from four (4) in the past 
financial year to eight (8) in the current 

financial year. 

There have not been any substantive 
cases reported through the 
whistleblowing hotline.  Figure 4 below 
depicts how to submit a tip-off.

Internal Audit &
External Pressure

Pressure

Source: URL: http://marleebayb115.blogspot.com/2017/05/the-fraud-triangle-lives-on.html

Rationalisation

Opportunity

Opportunity
Commit Fraud

Internal 
Controls

Companies are 
downsizing which has 
immediate effect on 
internal controls.

Budgets are decreasing. 
Companies & organisations 
are doing more with less

With increased pressure 
and decreased internal 
controls people will 
explore more opportunities 
to commit fraud.

People attempt to 
rationalise their criminal 
activities (bad company, i’ll 
pay it back, no one is hurt)

Layoffs 
Increasing

Stock prices 
are declining

Credit crisis & other 
external factors are 
increasing.

Figure 3: Fraud Triangle
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www.tip-offs.com 

Log onto our website 
and make your report 

 

  

  

email

website

FreePost

Landline

Cellphone

mvafundbots@tip-offs.com 

You can create a new web 
mail address and use it to 
report if uncomfortable with 
your existing personal mail  

Toll free code-
0800600644 

Avoid using your land 
line at work 

Toll free lines;
Orange-1144
Mascom-71119604

P O Box 448
Gaborone
Botswana 

May be used to 
make an initial 

report or to send 
evidence 

MVA Fund Fraud Remedies

In its efforts to combat incidences of 
fraud arising internally and externally, 
the Fund has several forms of redress 
which may be invoked any time once red 
flags for fraud are evident. These include 
amongst other things: 

• Revoking any Fund liability in the case 
of claimants;

• Recovery of embezzled funds;
• Blacklisting suppliers; and 
• Referring cases to the national law 

enforcement agencies.

In addition to the above penalties, the 
Fund has a statutory obligation to 
report fraudulent service providers to 
their respective governing bodies as part 
of the redress process. 

Figure 4: Whistle blowing hot line
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MVA Fund Act of 2007 also empowers 
the Fund in many respects to address 
fraudulent behaviour by claimants. 
Excerpts of the MVA Fund Act 2007 
which the Fund may use to seek redress 
in instances of fraud by claimants or 
their related parties are stated below: 

Section 21 (4) (5) Loss of support 

Any person who being a guardian, 
curator or caretaker receives monies on 
behalf of a claimant, who has suffered 
loss in accordance with the provisions of 
section 20, commits an offence, if he or 
she fraudulently misapplies such monies 
for purposes other than those intended 
by this Act. Any person who contravenes 
provisions of this section or who commits 
an offence under subsection (4) shall-
(a) Be guilty of an offence and liable 
to a fine not exceeding P 10, 000 or to 
imprisonment for a term not  exceeding 
seven years or both:

(b) Reimburse the beneficiary all monies 
misused by him or her; and 
(c) Be divested of his or her control over 
such trust funds.

Section 26 (6) Lodging False Claims

Any person who wilfully makes a false 
claim or produces false or misleading 
information or particulars concerning the 
vehicle accident, injury or death giving 
rise to the claim for compensation shall 
be guilty of an offence and shall be liable 
to a fine not exceeding P 5 000, or to 
imprisonment for a period not exceeding 
12 months or both.

Annual Audit Plan

The Annual Audit Plan outlines the 
internal audit activities that are planned 
to be conducted by the Department 
during any financial year. In developing 
the Audit Plan, the Fund adopted a risk 

based approach which is central to an 
effective plan as it is aligned to the risk 
management framework of the Fund. 
As part of the approval process of the 
Audit Plan by the Board of Directors, the 
Finance and Audit Committee considers 
a number of factors such as the overall 
business risks facing the Fund and 
measures put in place to mitigate those 
risks. 

Despite the adverse impact of the 
pandemic and the current working 
arrangements adopted by the Fund 
aimed at managing the risk posed by 
COVID-19 Pandemic, concerted effort 
was made to ensure achievement of the 
revised plan. The table below illustrates 
the implementation rate achieved by the 
Internal Audit department during the 
2020 financial year.

Table 1 –Internal Audit Service Year End Performance -2020
 

Performance Indicator

2020 2019

Target Achieved Target Achieved

% Implementation rate 
of the approved Audit 

Plan.
100% 86% 100% 73%
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Implementation of recommendations as at 31st December 2020

The audit plan for the financial year ended 
31st December 2020 was affected by the 
Government movement restrictions as 
some audit could not be undertaken. The 
Board of Directors through the Finance 
and Audit Committee approved a revised 
audit plan for the department as it had 
lost a significant number of man days 
during the various lockdowns imposed 
by the Government of Botswana. 

On the backdrop of this revision and 
approval, the Department achieved 
an implementation rate of 86% of the 
revised Internal Audit Plan as at 31st 
December 2020 compared to 73% 
achieved in the previous year.In the 
financial year 2020 the Department 
had planned to undergo an external 

Quality Assurance Review as required 
by the Internal Auditing International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). 

The review was not carried out amid the 
challenges posed by the pandemic and 
has been deferred to the financial year 
2021. The review will also assess the 
value add of Internal Audit Department 
to its stakeholders being Management 
and the Board of Directors.

Implementation of Audit 
Recommendations 

The Internal Audit Department 
periodically performs follow up on 
reported findings to ensure that 
Executive Management implements 

the audit recommendations within the 
agreed time frames. 

These also include follow ups of internal 
control weaknesses identified by the 
Fund`s external auditors through the 
Management Letter. The Finance and 
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis 
provide update to the Board of Directors 
on the implementation rate of internal 
and external audit recommendations as 
part of its assurance process.

During the year ended 31st December 
2020, the Fund achieved a weighted 
implementation rate of 72% compared 
to the 53% reported in the previous 
financial year. While there is noticeable 
improvement in the implementation rate 
in the current year, significant progress 
will be done once the Fund migrates 
from the current ERP system to SAP 4 
Hana as most of the remaining legacy 
recommendations are contingent upon 
the migration to SAP 4 Hana.

Internal Audit Software

The Internal Audit Department uses 
Teammate Audit Management Software 
(TeamMate Electronic Working Papers). 

TeamEWP is a Windows-based Audit 
Management System, designed 
to generate efficiency to the audit 
process. At its core, TeamEWP is an 
electronic project management system 
that facilitates the audit process 
from risk assessment to reporting. 
The Department also uses TeamMate 
Analytics a suite of more than 150 
Computer Aided Audit Tools (CAATs) 
that allows auditors to easily perform 
powerful data analytics to deliver 
significant value to the Fund. 

Outlook 

The Covid -19 pandemic has compelled 
organisations across the world to recast 

their risk profiles and strategic initiatives 
to mitigate the risks from crystallising, 
recalibrate their mode of operations 
in terms of delivering service to their 
clients and MVA Fund is no exception. 

The Internal Audit Department will 
continue to explore other innovative 
value creation avenues to the Fund 
through increased focus on process 
improvement, management’s responses 
to impediments inherent to the 
Fund’s regulatory environment and 
management’s overall response to 
managing risks associated with the 
Fund’s material cost drivers. 

On the backdrop of this revision and 
approval, the Department achieved an 
implementation rate of 86% of the revised 
Internal Audit Plan as at 31st December 
2020 compared to 73% achieved in the 
previous year.

Figure 5 – Shows implementation of audit recommendations as at 31st December 2020
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The Fund subscribes to and promotes 
best practice principles of corporate 
governance for its proper functioning.  
The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act No. 
15 of 2007, Board Charter, Committee 
Charters, King Reports on Corporate 
Governance and other applicable 
legislation provides guidance to the 
Fund on how it should conduct its affairs 
in an ethical and transparent manner. 

King IV describes corporate governance 
as the exercise of ethical and effective 
leadership by the governing body 
towards the achievement of ethical 
culture, good performance, effective 
control and legitimacy.

The Board as the custodian of good 
governance ensures that the Fund 
subscribes to and implement adopted 
principles of good corporate governance 
and best practices.  To achieve this, the 
Board amongst other things aims to 
ensure that:

• A culture of fairness, transparency and 
accountability is promoted throughout 
the Fund’s operations and personnel;

• The organizational structure of the 

Fund reflects the requirements of 
Corporate Governance principles;

• the Fund’s affairs are administered in 
conformance with adopted code(s) of 
good Corporate Governance;

• Establishing the Fund’s Policies 
and ensuring that Management is 
proactively seeking to build and 
promote the Fund’s customer focus, 
innovation, empathy, teamwork and 
integrity; 

• all Directors are periodically 
familiarized with, understand and 
subscribe to adopted principles of 
Corporate Governance, through 
continuous training and development;

• Ensuring that the Fund’s goals are 
clearly established, and that strategies 
are in place for achieving them.

Governance of the Fund

The Shareholder (Government)

The Fund was created through an 
Act of Parliament, the Motor Vehicle 

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT

12
The Motor Vehicle Accident Fund 
Act No. 15 of 2007, Board Charter, 
Committee Charters, King Reports 
on Corporate Governance and other 
applicable legislation provides 
guidance to the Fund on how it should 
conduct its affairs in an ethical and 
transparent manner. 
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Accident Fund Act of 2007 with the 
Government of Botswana being the 
sole shareholder.  The Board of the Fund 
strives to adhere to good governance 
principles in all the Fund’s dealings. As 
part of the performance improvement, 
the Shareholder and the Board signed a 
Shareholder Compact which represents 
the terms of agreement between 
Government and the Board of Directors. 

The Agreement reflects the expectations 
of each party towards the achievement 
of the Fund’s mandate. In addition, 
the Shareholder Compact strengthens 
corporate governance, sets out the 
expectations and harmonizes the 
relationship between Government and 
the MVA Fund Board.

Board of Directors

The Board consists of non-executive 
directors who are appointed by the 
Minister of Finance and Economic 
Development  in accordance with 
Section 6(1) of MVA Fund Act of 2007. 
Each member shall be appointed for a 

term not exceeding three years and are 
eligible for reappointment. The Board 
has a strong mix of industry-specific 
knowledge and general commercial 
experience that enables it to bring 
informed and independent judgment 
to all aspects of the Organization’s 
strategic development and performance. 

A maximum of eight (8) Directors are 
selected from suitable personnel that 
possess one or more of the following 
expertise or industries: Health 
Practitioner, Investment Skills, Road 
Accident reconstruction or prevention; or 
skills from a motor vehicle compensation 
industry, Attorney or Advocate, and 
Member of the Road Safety Committee. 

The Board meets a minimum of four 
times each financial year and more 
frequently as per the organization’s 
business dictates.  The Board retains 
powers of decision making on all 
matters of strategy, together with all 
significant commercial issues, including 
all expenditure in excess of a specified 
level.

Board Structure

The Board is responsible for the 
strategic direction of the Fund through 
the delegation of various roles to the 
Board Committees, Chief Executive 
Officer and Executive Management. The 
Board is conscious of its obligations and 
accountability to the shareholder, as 
well as other stakeholder expectations. 
In the execution of its duties the Board 
is guided by a Board Charter, which 
amongst others, clearly sets out the 
Board’s role, duties and responsibilities. 

The Charter provides for Board 
structures, procedures and processes 
which assists the Board in regulating 
how it conducts its business. The 
composition of the Board ensures a 
balance of authority precluding any 
one Director from exercising unfettered 
powers of decision making.

During the year 2020, The Board and its 
Committees were constituted as follows; 

Table 1: Membership of the Board and its Committees 

Name of Director Main Board Finance & Audit 
Committee

Board Investment 
Committee

Board Tender 
Committee

Human Resources 
Committee

Dr. Mompati Oganne 
Mmalane √*

Ms. Grace  
Sekwababe √ √ √

Mr. Keolebogile Pele 
Moleta √ √ √

Mr. Lawrence Thebe √ √ √

Ms. Macie Molebatsi √ √ √

Mr. Pelotshweu 
Motlogelwa √ √ √

Mr. Bugalo Maripe √ √ √

Mr. Thamsanqa 
Bernard Majova √ √ √

*Chairman

The Board is dedicated to the implementation of effective structures, policies and practices that improve corporate governance 
and create sustainable value for the Fund’s shareholder and stakeholders. In the course and scope of discharging their mandate, 
the Directors are empowered to delegate part of their duties to various Board Committees as per the below table;

C
O
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O
R

A
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E
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O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
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Table 2: Summary of the Committees of the Board 

Board 
Committee Roles & Responsibilities Quorum Frequency of 

meetings

1.
Board 
Tender 
Committee

• Ensures compliance to the Tender Regulations and Procurement 
Procedures Manual.

• Approval and award of tenders in accordance with the Tender Regulations 
and Procurement Procedures Manual.

• Ensures that high ethical standards are upheld in the award of tenders 
within the applicable limits and authority defined in the rules.

• Approves variations in the scope and conditions of previously approved 
contracts or service level agreements, including extensions, assignment 
and subletting.

• Approves the extension of existing contracts within its set limits

2 members 
present

At least 
once every 
quarter 

2.
Finance 
& Audit 
Committee

• Recommends to the Board approval of the annual audited financial 
statements of the Fund. 

• Recommends to the Board approval of the capital, operating and human 
capital budgets.

• Recommends to the Board the appointment and termination of external 
auditors and approval of the external audit plan.

• Consults with the external auditors to ensure resolution of issues raised in 
the Management Letter.

• Reviews the effectiveness of the internal controls.
• Considers and approve the Internal Audit Plan.
• Monitors financial reporting against best practice standards.
• Manage financial risks.
• Monitor compliance with legislation. 
• Considers the reports from both the internal and external auditors who 

have unrestricted access to the Committee. 

2 members 
present

At least 
once every 
quarter 

3.
Board 
Investment 
Committee

• Formulation and review of the Investment Policy Statement (IPS).
• Recommends the Investment Policy Statement to the Board.
• Reviews the current market conditions affecting investments and advice 

the Board on the appropriate investment strategy.
• Ensures adherence to procedures and effective management of investment 

risks.
• Monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the investment.

2 members 
present 

At least 
once every 
quarter 

4.
Human 
Resources 
Committee

• Ensures that policies relating to human resourcing, remuneration, selection, 
retention, performance assessment and remuneration of employees are in 
place and reviewed periodically.

• Monitors and reports to the Board matters relating to the appointment of 
the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and senior Management positions as 
may be necessary for the proper discharge of the functions of the Fund.

• Monitors the implementation of the human resources policies, and report 
to the Board on progress.

• Ensures compliance to labour laws.
• Management of risks associated with human capital.

2 members 
present 

At least 
once every 
quarter 
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The Board is tasked with ensuring that 
the Fund is managed effectively as 
well as demonstrating leadership and 
defining the Fund’s strategic objectives. 
The Board’s role and the Fund’s 
Corporate Governance practices are 
continually being reviewed and updated 
to align with best international practices. 

The Board has adopted a Charter which 
sets out the responsibilities of the 
Board, its structure and governance, 
responsibility for approving the Fund’s 
statement of values and ensuring a 
code of conduct to underpin the desired 
culture within the entity, as well as 
matters expressly reserved to the Board 
and those delegated to management. 
The Board Charter and the Committees’ 
Charters guide the MVA Fund Board 
and the Committees to discharge 
their fiduciary duties and outline their 
mandate, composition and authority.

The Board approves the corporate 
strategy which is then implemented by 
Management on behalf of the Board. The 
Board ensures that the strategic plans 
to be delivered each year are included in 
the operating budget where applicable. 
Management on a quarterly basis 
reports the implementation rate of the 
strategic plan initiatives to the Board.

The Board passed the following key 
resolutions during the year; 

• “That the revised Risk Management 
Documents are approved for 
implementation effective April 1st 
2020”

• “That the Revised Talent Management 
Policy and Strategy is approved for 
implementation effective 01st May 
2020.”

• ‘That the revised Credit Card Policy is 
approved effective 1st July 2020”

• “That the revised Business Continuity 
Management Policy, the revised 
Business Continuity Management 
Strategy and the revised Strategic 
Incident Management Plan are 
approved effective 1st October 2020”

• That the award of tender RFP 
07/20; Tender for Provision of Asset 
Management Services for the Motor 
Vehicle Accident Fund Balanced 
Offshore Portfolio to Ninety - One 
Botswana (Pty) Ltd at the tendered 
fee of 65 basis points and Botswana 
Insurance Fund Management Ltd at 
the tendered fee of 70 basis points 
for a period of five (5) years from 1st 
November 2020 to 31st October 2025.  

• “The Draft Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st 
December 2019 are approved”

• “That the tender for SAP S/4 HANA 
Hardware Solution for MVA Fund is 
awarded to RA Consulting Services 
(Pty) Ltd at a total cost not exceeding 
BWP 4 523 242.80 (Four Million, Five 
Hundred and Twenty-Three Thousand, 
Two Hundred Forty-Two Pula Eighty 
Thebe) exclusive of VAT” “ 

• “That PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Audit 
Plan and Auditor’s Fees of P453 790.00 
excluding VAT and disbursements is 
approved subject to submission and 
endorsement of the Engagement letter 
by Management”

•  “That the 2021 Operating, Human 
Capital, Capital Expenditure and Road 
Safety Budget is approved”

• “That the revised Finance Policies and 
Procedure Manual is approved effective 
January 2021

• “The Internal Audit plan for the year 
2021 is approved”

• “That the General Conditions of 
Employment be amended to give effect 
to the above resolutions”

• “That the revised; Board Charter, Board 
Investment Committee Charter, Finance 
and Audit Committee Charter, Board 
Tender Committee Charter, Human 
Resources Committee Charter and the 
Tender Regulations and Procurement 
Procedures are accordingly approved 
and shall be effective 01st January 
2021”.

• “That the Revised Strategic Plan (2018 
– 2022) is approved effective January 
1st 2021”

Board meetings

The frequency of Board meetings is 
dictated by the business of the Fund. In 
terms of section 12(1) of the MVA Fund 
Act 2007, the Board has to meet not 
less than once in each quarter of the 
year. Matters which require expeditious 
attention and approval of the Board 
are dealt with by way of Special Board 
Meetings. 

During the year, the board met on four 
(4) quarterly sittings of the Main board 
and its sub committees. One special 
board meeting was held during the year. 
The schedule of the Board meetings was 
planned at the beginning of the year to 
aid the Board Members in their planning.

A quorum at any meeting consists of any 
four members. The Board is consensus-
oriented. All the Board decisions for 
the year 2020 were unanimously made. 
Nonetheless, in a case where there is 
no consensus, the decisions are passed 
by simple majority on an open ballot. 
The Chairperson has a casting vote 
and presides over meetings of the 

Board. Where the Chairperson is not 
in attendance, the Vice Chairperson 
presides over the meeting. In the 
absence of the Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson, the quorum may elect any 
member amongst themselves to chair 
the meeting. 

The Chairperson ensures that the 
meetings are focused and productive. 
The proceedings of the meeting are 
recorded, minutes are considered, 
approved and then passed as a true 
record of the meetings. This record is 
then kept by the Fund as a permanent 
record.

Declaration of Interests

The Directors are required to disclose 
real, potential or apparent conflict of 
interest in relation to the business being 
considered at every meeting of the 
Board and its Committees. 

Disclosures of any interest are recorded 
in minutes of the meeting. The Board 
continues to maintain annual registers of 
Directors’ interests as part of efforts of 
effectively managing potential conflicts 
of interest. 

Board Induction and Development 

Management with the assistance of 
the Board Chairperson, develops an 
induction package for newly appointed 
members.  Board Members are then 
taken through an induction programme 
by Executive Management in order to 
familiarise them with the operations 
of the Fund.  The induction programme 
focuses on MVA Fund Act and MVA 
Fund Regulations, the roles of the 
departments, strategic plan and risk 
management and other key policies. 

To enhance board effectiveness and 
for continuous improvement, Board 
members undergo corporate governance 
training on an annual basis. The purpose 
of this training is to equip Board 
Members with the requisite skills and 
knowledge to effectively discharge their 
fiduciary duties. 

The advent of the fourth industrial 
revolution has also ushered new 
technological advancements to 
the business environment. Board 
administration has also been automated 
through the use of a meeting solution 
known as Board Pad. In keeping up with 
the ever evolving trends, the Fund is 
in the process of migrating to a more 
efficient solution known as Diligent.
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Senior Manager - Board Secretary 
& Legal Services

To further ensure its commitment to 
continuously maintain healthy board 
administration, the Fund has a Senior 
Manager- Board Secretary and Legal 
Services responsible for ensuring that 
Board procedures are followed and 
for advising the Board, through the 
Chairman, on all matters of governance. 

All Directors have access to the Board 
Secretary whenever required. In the 
event that any Director wishes to take 
independent professional advice on any 
matter arising in relation to the exercise 
of their duties and in accordance with 
written procedure, the Senior Manager 
- Board Secretary & Legal Services will 
arrange for this professional advice at 
the Organization’s expense. 

Other vital roles of the Senior Manager 
- Board Secretary & Legal Services 
include maintaining the Fund’s key 
corporate documents and records; and 
also to coordinate and attend Board and 
Committee meetings. 

The key roles of the Senior Manager 
- Board Secretary & Legal Services 
include but are not limited to 
Board Administration, Compliance 
Management and providing legal 
counsel to the Fund.

Internal Controls

In order to provide reliable financial 
information, the Fund maintains a 
systems of internal controls. The 
Board through the Finance and Audit 

Committee, oversees the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal 
control environment so as to efficiently 
manage risks, protect the Fund’s assets, 
and ensure the reliability of financial 
statements and compliance with laws 
and regulations. The Fund has an internal 
audit function that reports directly to 
the Finance and Audit Committee to 
provide assurance on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of controls to mitigate risks 
to its strategic, operational, financial 
and compliance objectives. 

External Audit

The external auditors express an 
independent assessment of the 
Fund’s systems of internal controls 
and express an independent opinion 
on the Audited Annual Financial 
Statements. The external audit function 
provides reasonable assurance of the 
financial disclosures in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

A balanced relationship between the 
internal and external auditors ensures 
that there is adequate coverage of 
all material areas within the Fund. 
PricewaterhouseCoopers are the current 
external auditors of the Fund. External 
Auditors are appointed for two terms of 
three years. The external auditor rotation 
is meant to improve independence and 
objectivity.

Legal Compliance

The Board plays an oversight role to 
ensure that the Fund complies with 
relevant legislation, codes, standards 

and rules recognised both locally and 
internationally. The Board has delegated 
the responsibility of compliance to 
Management and this covers effective 
governance, risk and legal compliance 
processes. 

No breaches of compliance were 
recorded during the year and the Fund 
keeps abreast of all new relevant laws to 
maintain effective compliance.

Code of Conduct

Apart from the MVA Fund Act and the 
King Code on Corporate Governance, 
the Board Charters entail a Code of 
Conduct that governs the conduct of 
the Board. The Motor Vehicle Accident 
Fund General Conditions of Employment 
on the other hand sets guidelines on 
desirable behaviours and principles of 
good conduct on the part of  employees 
of the Fund.

Board Remuneration

The Board fees for the Directors are paid in line with Government Policy. Other expenses such as travel expenses (mileage and 
accommodation where applicable), are also paid in line with Government rates. Government has effective 1st April 2017 revised the 
board sitting fees as per Table 3 below for Category A parastatals.

Table 3: Board sitting fees

Position Fees

Chairman P 2250.00 per sitting

Director P1800.00 per sitting 

During the year 2020 the sum of P647 064.00 was paid towards Board expenses in accordance with Government rates as per the 
table above.

During the year, the board 
met on four (4) quarterly 
sittings of the Main board 
and its sub committees. 
One special board meeting 
was held during the year. 
The schedule of the Board 
meetings was planned at 
the beginning of the year 
to aid the Board Members 
in their planning.
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Introduction

The MVA Fund conducts sustainability 
assessment on annual basis as part of 
performance evaluation and reporting 
processes. Sustainability assessment 
allow the Fund to determine the 
impact of its business activities to the 
environment, economy and the society. 

Furthermore, sustainability reporting 
is a vital component of shareholder, 
employee and stakeholder relations. The 
wide coverage of sustainability reporting 
practices creates transparency, help 
the Fund to function more efficiently 
and indicate the health of the Fund 
in relation to the national economy. 
Sustainability reporting help to drive 
progress towards a smart, sustainable 
and inclusive economic growth. 

Conducting sustainability reporting 
informs MVA Fund risk analysis 
strategies, drive innovation and boost 
business. The MVA Fund is therefore 
committed to meet its present and 
future needs without compromising 
its economic sustainability and also 
managing the social impact on the 

environment. There are a number of 
methods for sustainability assessment. 
The Board and Management of the Fund 
have adopted the notion of quadruple 
bottom line. The quadruple bottom 
line expands the traditional accounting 
framework beyond measuring profits 
and shareholder value to include an 
organization’s environmental and social 
impact. The principal of triple bottom 
line focus on comprehensive investment 
results along the dimensions of profits, 
people and planet.

SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT

13
The MVA Fund is therefore 
committed to meet its present and 
future needs without compromising 
its economic sustainability and 
also managing the social impact 
on the environment. There are a 
number of methods for sustainability 
assessment. 
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Financial Sustainability

MVA Fund Management and the Board 
of Directors ensure that the Fund 
continues to operate sustainably as a 
corporate entity. However, as a nonprofit 
organization the challenge for the 
Fund is to balance between financial 
sustainability and organizational 
mission impact. 

Evaluating activities and operations 
based on profitability and mission impact 
and the interaction between the two 
dimensions allows the Fund to develop 
strategic plans to manage short-term 
financial challenges while maintaining 
its long-term mission and goals. The 
Fund therefore conducts its operations 
in a sound manner to achieve good 
financial results to ensure continued 
existence to contribute positively to the 
livelihoods of people affected by road 
traffic accidents in the country and also 
meet its financial obligations.

Despite the challenges of the COVID 
19 pandemic during the year, the Fund 
achieved a positive performance at 
the end of the financial year. The Fund 

recorded a Total Comprehensive Income 
of P48.9 million in 2020 against the 
budgeted Total Comprehensive Loss 
of P67.4 million. The positive variance 
was attributable to Fair Value Gains on 
Available for Sale Investments of P189.8 
million which was significantly above the 
budget of P97.3 million. 

The MVA Fund investment portfolio 
grew by 5.6% from 3.985 billion in 2019 
to 4.210 billion in 2020.  The portfolio 
growth was attributable to the offshore 
portfolio portion which registered a 
16.3% growth to close the period at 
P1.750 billion and local bond portion 
which posted a 24.5% increase to close 
the period at P550.8 million from P442.4 
million as at January 1st 2020. 

In order to ensure that the organization 
continues to operate as a going concern, 
MVA Fund continues to direct its efforts 
towards maintaining sound financial 
sustainability. During the year the Fund’s 
solvency ratio declined from 249.0% in 
2019 to 237% in 2020 mainly due to a 
higher increase in total liabilities owing 
to increase in claims provision. However, 
though the solvency ratio decreased. 

The Funds’ assets are sufficient to cover 
its long term obligations as they fall due. 
The Fund’s liquidity position improved 
as evidenced by increase in the current 
ratio from 0.50 in December 2019 to 0.51 
in December 2020.

The MVA Fund’s processes efficiency 
enable the organization to develop, 
implement and monitor programs and 
services without compromising the 
quality of service offered to claimants. 
During the year, the Fund applied 
sound and precise management models 
such as risk-based thinking, process 
approach, evidence-based decision 
making and relationship management to 
develop annual operations, manpower 
and capital expenditure budget. These 
sound management principles served as 
the basis for a robust cost management 
process which assisted the Fund to avoid 
cash flow challenges.

Road Safety

Road Safety Promotion is one of the key 
strategic interventions used by MVA Fund 
to manage its financial sustainability. As 
a critical component of sustainability, 

https://www.sri connect.com/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=3&Itemid=90
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road safety promotion involves 
collaboration with key stakeholders to 
undertake initiatives to reduce the road 
traffic crashes and associated fatalities 
and serious injuries. During the year, 
the Fund allocated a significant budget 
towards investment in road safety in 
furtherance of its mandate. 

The investment was intended to fund 
the following key areas, road safety 
campaigns, public education and 
road safety community projects. The 
improvement in road safety performance 
benefits the Fund in two folds, being 
reduction in claims compensation and 
improvements in social welfare. Further 
the reduction in road traffic crashes 
enables the Fund to invest surplus funds 
locally and in offshore markets.  

The road traffic safety performance 
for the year 2020 was positive when 
compared to the previous year. The 
positive performance was mainly 
attributed to COVID - 19 pandemic 
restrictions such as inter-zonal 
movement restrictions, curfews and 
sale of alcohol imposed by Government 
to contain the spread of the Covid – 19 
Virus.

According to annual reported statistics 
from Botswana Police Service, total 
crashes decreased by 19.1% from 18 623 
in 2019 to 15 075 in 2020. The number of 
fatalities declined by 28.9% from 457 in 
2019 to 325 in 2020 while fatal crashes 
reduced by 26.6% from 361 in 2019 to 
265 in 2020. In addition, serious injuries 
declined by 30.8% from 1 183 in 2019 to 
819 in 2020 while minor injuries declined 
by 18.6% from 4 802 in 2019 to 3 908 in 
2020.

Other key performance indicators of 
road traffic safety are fatalities and 
casualties per 100 000 populations and 
claims per 1 000 vehicles. The annual 
performance indicates that fatalities per 
100 000 populations decreased from 
19.5 deaths to 13.8 deaths. The rate of 
serious injuries/100 000 populations 
decreased from 50.5 to 34.8. Claims per 
1000 vehicles also decreased from 3.4 to 
2.4. The total population of registered 
vehicles increased by 5.0% from 829 284 
in 2019 to 871 023 in 2020.

The Fund continued its preventative 
measures in road safety promotion, but 
due to the challenges of the emergence 
of Covid-19 Pandemic had to change 
some of its traditional road safety 
promotion strategies. The Covid-19 era 
introduced new ways of doing business 
which include leveraging on information 

technology. To this end, the Fund used 
the digital media platforms to promote 
road traffic safety.

The Fund continued with the 
implementation of its Road Safety 
Strategy 2019 – 2023 with more focus 
on advocacy. The Strategy is aligned to 
both National Road Safety Strategy 2011 
– 2020 and the UN Decade of Action 
for Road Safety Plan 2011 – 2020. MVA 
Fund Road Safety Strategy envision to 
“create a culture of road safety by 2023”, 
through advocacy. Advocacy has been 
introduced as one of the core values 
of the Fund in relation to road safety 
promotion.

The Fund continued strategic 
partnerships with its key partners 
for optimal utilization of resources 
in the fight against road crashes and 
the provision of medical care and 
rehabilitation assistance to members of 
the public. 

The Fund continued collaborations 
with the following entities as a way of 
enhancing road safety management in 
the country; Botswana Police Service, 
Department of Road Traffic and Safety, 
Roads Department, Community groups 
and Youth Clubs as well as other key 
stakeholders. During the year, the Fund 
reviewed and signed MoU’s with most 
stakeholders. The MoUs are intended to 
spell out the objectives of concerned 
institutions with regards to joint road 
safety initiatives. 
 
People

Human capital is one of the key aspects 
of service delivery for any organization, 
therefore, MVA Fund is committed to 
continuously manage and empower 
its human capital in order to improve 
service delivery. Human Capital is the 
driver of performance for other strategic 
perspectives like Internal Business 
Processes, Financial and Customer/
Stakeholder perspectives. 

To develop and capacitate its human 
capital, the Fund has developed 
supporting policies and procedures 
including General Conditions of 
Employment, Talent Management, Staff 
Training and Development, Succession 
Planning and Competency Framework.  
The Human Capital Department works 
closely with all functional departments 
to ensure that policies are applied 
uniformly through the Fund and further 
that functional departments play an 
active role in managing employees and 
ensuring a conducive work environment.

During the year key initiatives 
implemented were Performance 
Management Automation, 
implementation of Talent Management 
Strategy, Succession Planning, 
Communication, Work Culture, Policies 
and Innovation. Staff welfare practices 
like work-life balance, staff training and 
career progression, communication and 
a sense of inclusion are emphasized, 
to ensure optimal staff engagement 
levels. The Fund achieved a Gold Seal 
at a score of 65.6 compared to a score 
of 68.2 (Gold Seal) in the previous year’s 
survey. The Engagement Index measures 
the overall engagement state of the 
organization’s employees. These are also 
based on perceptions and impressions 
by the employees.

Corporate Social Investment

The Fund periodically report on 
its corporate social responsibility 
actions and results to customers and 
stakeholders. The report synthesizes and 
makes public the Fund’s commitment and 
actions in the social and environmental 
areas. By so doing, the Fund informs 
customers and stakeholders on how it 
integrates the principle of sustainable 
development into its everyday business 
operations.

The main objective of adopting 
corporate social investment is for the 
Fund to be a good corporate citizen in the 
society in which it operates, to improve 
transparency of the Fund’s activities and 
further to measure the impact of the 
Fund’s activities on the environment, 
society and on the economy. 

The Fund through its Corporate Social 
Investment Policy undertakes corporate 
social investment programmes for the 
benefit of under privileged people in 
order to uplift their lives. Through MVA 
Fund Corporate Social Investment 
strategy and in line with its corporate 
value of empathy, MVA Fund Social Club 
undertook three CSI initiatives during 
the year 2020. 

A donation of P10,000.00 was made to 
Palapye Primary Hospital’s maternity 
ward to purchase clothing and 
consumables for needy mothers and 
their new born babies. The Social Club 
in collaboration with the Fund assisted 
an employee of our outsourced service 
provider from Thamaga to rebuild a 
house that had burnt down. 

The assistance which amounted to 
P20,000.00 was in the form of building 
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materials, labour, clothing and groceries.
In the midst of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
MVA Fund staff members as a collective 
heeded His Excellency Dr. M. E. K. Masisi’s 
call for assistance towards combating 
the pandemic and in April 2020 
contributed P12, 760.00 to the Covid-19 
Relief Fund. 

The Fund’s Social Club adopted seven 
less privileged students from Therisanyo 
Primary School in the Old Naledi Ward 
(Gaborone) in 2019, and the children are 
now doing well in their studies despite 
the life challenges they face.

Environment

By virtue of the nature of its mandate, 
the Fund’s operations generally do not 
have a direct impact on the climate per se 
but the primary source of Funding comes 
from fuel levy which has direct impact 
on environment. This is the reason why 
the Fund is aware of both its moral and 
corporate obligation to uphold the basic 
beliefs of green economy. 

The Fund encourages other modes of 
transport which are environmentally 
friendly such as cycling. The MVA Fund is 

one of the main sponsors of SHELL Cycle 
the City campaign which encourages 
safety cycling within Gaborone by 
providing safety cycling paths along 
local road networks.

The MVA Fund complies strictly with 
both water and energy conservation 
instructions as provided by both the 
Botswana Water Utilities and Botswana 
Power Corporation, respectively. All 
Fund’s gardens are maintained through 
recycled water, while all lights are always 
switched off whenever offices are not in 
use.   

The Fund participates in road safety 
policies which indirectly assist to 
prevent pollution as part of its advocacy 
for safe environment. It has adopted the 
pillars of the UN Decade of Action for 
2010-2020 which encourage advocacy 
around safe road infrastructure designs, 
vehicle safety designs, post-crash care 
etc. Such pillars have the secondary 
benefit of preventing traffic congestion 
hence pollution. Post-crash care 
which encourages emergency medical 
attention of the injured within the 
golden hour also ensures minimal loss of 
blood at the crash-scene.

P10,000

P20,000

Donation Palapye Primary Hospital

Rebuild for a house burnt in Thamaga 
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2020.

Formation
MVA Fund was created by an Act of Parliament in 1986 and began operating on 1 January 1987. Its operations are governed by the 
Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act No. 15 of 2007.
 
Nature of business
Promotion of road safety, the provision of compensation, care, benefit, medical management and rehabilitation of persons involved 
in road crashes, and provision of third party insurance cover to drivers and owners of motor vehicles, and other matters incidental 
thereto and connected therewith.

Financial results
The financial results are reflected in the financial statements set out on pages 122 to 164.

Events after the reporting date
The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year, not dealt with in the report or 
financial statements that would significantly affect the operations of the Fund or the results of its operations.

Chief Executive Officer
As per section 15 of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act No. 15 of 2007, the Chief Executive Officer of the Fund is appointed by the 
Minister of Finance and Economic Development.

Board members                                                       Bankers
Dr. M. O. Mmalane – Chairperson                                                                                    Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited
E. Gonsalves- Retired 31st March 2020                                                                           Plot 74358, Central Business District
P. M. Motlogelwa – Retired 30th September 2020                                                       Gaborone
M. K. Molebatsi – Retired 30th June 2020                                                                        
L. Thebe - Retired 31st March 2020                                                                                 Bank Gaborone
Prof. B. Maripe                                                                                                                     Plot 74768, Central Business District Gaborone
T. B. Majova                                                                  
K.P. Moleta                                                                                                                           RMB Botswana         
C. J  Mokgothu- Appointed 1st August 2020                                                                Plot 54362, Central Business District  
G. N. Sekwababe- Appointed 1st August 2020                                Gaborone
P. Gower- Appointed 1st November 2020                              
M. N. Mokgothu- Appointed 1st November 2020                                                         Standard Chartered Bank Botswana                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                               Floor 6, Queens Road, Main Mall Gaborone
Board Secretary
Thabo Morotsi                                                                                

Registered office
MVA Fund House
Plot 50367
Fairgrounds Office Park
Gaborone          
         
Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Plot 50371
Fairgrounds Office Park
Gaborone            
         
         
         
         
                
        

Attorneys
Armstrongs Attorneys
Acacia House, Plot 54358
Central Business District
Gaborone

General Information 
for the year ended 31 December 2020
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The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Annual Financial Statements, comprising the 
Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December 2020, and the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in 
the manner required by the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for maintaining adequate 
accounting records and an effective system of risk management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Fund to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe 
that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

The directors are responsible for the control over, and the security of their website and, where applicable, for establishing and 
controlling the process for electronically distributing annual reports and other financial information to shareholders in the manner 
required by the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the annual financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements of Motor Vehicle Accident Fund, as set out on page 122 to 164 with the supplementary information 
on page 165 to 166, were approved by the Board of Directors on 25th March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

_________________________________                                                                            _________________________________
                           Director                                                                                                                                               Director

Directors’ responsibility statement 
for the year ended 31 December 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MINISTER OF FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Motor Vehicle Accident 
Fund (the “Fund”) as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 

What we have audited

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund’s financial statements set out on pages 122 to 164 comprise of:

● the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

● the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

● the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

● the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

● the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) issued by the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial 
statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code 
and other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Botswana.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the 
key audit matter

Valuation of the provision for the incurred but not reported 
claims (the “IBNR provision”)

The total value of the Fund’s IBNR provision at 31 December 
2020 was P91 045 748, as disclosed in note 19 - Outstanding 
claims.

The determination of the IBNR provision requires the Fund 
to make an estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims 
incurred but not yet reported at the reporting date.

The calculation of this insurance provision is subject to inherent 
uncertainty and significant estimates and assumptions are 
required. 

The Fund makes use of an independent actuarial expert (the 
“management expert”) for the valuation of the IBNR provision. 

We considered the valuation of the IBNR provision to be a matter 
of most significance to the current year audit because of the 
judgement required to select an appropriate actuarial technique 
for estimation and in assessing the appropriateness of reliance 
on historical claims trends and other factors to estimate the 
quantum of provision required.

The disclosures associated with the IBNR provision are set out in 
the financial statements in the following notes:

● Accounting policy 1.13 – Claims; 

● Note 1.21 -Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
(Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims); and

● Note 19 – Outstanding claims.

We tested the design and effectiveness of 
controls which the Fund exercises over the 
recording of claims and other data utilised in 
the  IBNR provision calculation.  

We obtained and read the actuarial valuation 
report provided by the management’s expert 
and held discussions with the management’s 
expert to understand the rationale and 
justifications for selecting the valuation 
approach and assumptions.  In doing so, 
we used our actuarial expertise to assess 
whether the approach and assumptions were 
appropriate for the Fund’s business. We did 
not identify any matters which indicate that 
the valuation methodology and assumptions 
are not aligned to the Fund’s business.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy and 
completeness of data used in the calculation 
of the IBNR Provision, by comparing the data 
used in calculating the IBNR provision to the 
claims and other information recorded by 
the Fund. Our testing revealed no material 
exceptions.

We tested the mathematical accuracy of  the 
IBNR provision using the data, methodology 
and assumptions utilised by the Fund and 
noted no material errors.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the document titled “Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 
2020”,  which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the other sections of the document titled 
“Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2020”, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.  
The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express 
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.   

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Fund’s internal control. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Individual practicing member: Rudi Binedell                                              31 March 2021
Membership number: 20040091                                                         Gaborone
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020
In Pula

  Note 2020 2019

Fuel levy income 3.1 88 562 089 109 148 231
Third party cover income 3.2 3 569 439 8 571 575
Investment income 3.3 119 419 267 134 287 846
Change in fair value of investment property 10 2 600 000 4 280 000
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through profit and loss 14 (22 623 105) 2 695 974
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 26 17 825 975 (11 027 315)
Other income 4 1 240 703 714 200
     
Total operating income  210 594 368 248 670 511
     
Net increase in claims provision 5 (141 150 627) (185 931 749)
    
Reinsurance premium  (2 047 754) (1 968 370)
     
Investment management fees 12.1 (10 789 247) (10 879 699)
     
Property management fees 10.4 (2 069 137) (1 561 592)
    
Interest expense 25 (138 697 585) (128 575 723)
    
Administrative expenses 6 (82 716 887) (82 541 193)
    
Road safety campaign expenses 17 (4 953 781) (7 288 765)
     
  
Total expenses  (382 425 018) (418 747 091)
     
Deficit for the year before share of profits 
from associates and impairment     (171 830 650) (170 076 580)
     
  
Share of profit from associates 11    34 414 535 29 536 064
     
  
Impairment 30 (3 490 022) (35 854 888)
    
 
Deficit for the year       (140 906 137) (176 395 407)
     
Other comprehensive income    
   
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
   
Changes in fair value of financial  assets at fair 
value through Other  Comprehensive Income                                                                     12  189 838 937 282 023 114
    
 
Total other comprehensive income  189 838 937 282 023 114
    
 
Total Comprehensive Gain  48 932 800 105 627 710
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Statement of financial position
at 31 December 2020 
In Pula

  Note 2020 2019

Non-current assets  4 044 628 535 3 613 979 804

Property and equipment 8 15 193 334 6 700 064

Right Of Use Assets 8.1 2 228 540 3 250 156

Intangible assets 9 8 434 825 9 594 718

Investment properties 10 138 630 000 136 030 000

Investment in associates 11 274 619 148 257 367 861

Financial Assets at Fair Value through other comprehensive income  12 3 006 308 229 2 786 704 165

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 550 756 363 374 221 152

Other receivables 15 48 458 096 40 111 688

     

Current assets  273 339 803 471 593 514

Financial assets at amortised costs 13 228 420 344 349 344 738

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14 - 68 184 888

Trade and other receivables 15 33 730 480 36 432 849

Cash and cash equivalents 16 11 248 979 17 631 039

    

Total assets  4 318 028 338 4 085 573 318

    

Equity    

 

Reserves  2 495 016 712 2 446 083 912

Fair value and other reserves 17 2 420 486 095 2 230 832 984

Accumulated surplus  74 530 617 215 250 928

    

Non-current liabilities  1 527 798 487 1 306 979 225

Trust liabilities 18 1 525 811 639 1 304 499 234

Lease Liabilities 8.1 1 986 848 2 479  991

    

 

Current liabilities  295 213 139 332 510 181

Trust liabilities 18 110 232 544 144 699 735

Outstanding claims 19 133 295 825 140 487 748

Trade and other payables 20 51 191 627 46 657 878

Lease Liabilities 8.1 493 143 664 820

     

Total equity and liabilities  4 318 028 338 4 085 573 318
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2020
In Pula

  Note 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities    

Cash flows from operations 24 27 116 818 (7 704 511)

Effects of exchange rate changes in valuation of financial 

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  12 (17 793 148) 11 165 831

    

Net cash  generated/(used in) from operating activities  9 323 670 3 461 320

    

Cash flow from investing activities    

Purchase of equipment 8 (10 664 606) (3 955 285)

Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment  984 151 150 404

Dividend from Associates  17 163 248 13 588 938

Proceeds on disposal of investments  - 19 553 887

Purchase of investments  (22 298 194) (24 825 119)

    

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities  (14 815 401) 4 512 825

Cash flow from Financing activities    

Lease Rental Payments  (890 329) (873 588)

    

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities  (890 329) (873 588)

    

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (6 382 060) 7 100 557

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  17 631 039 10 530 482

    

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 11 248 979 17 631 039
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020
In Pula

                                                                                                                          Fair value and                  Accumulated
                                                                                                                            other reserves                         surplus                          Total 
                                                                                                                                                                        

Balance at 01 January 2019   1 956 098 635  384 357 573  2 340 456 208 

 

Total comprehensive income   

   

Deficit for the year -  (176 395 407) (176 395 407)

   

Other comprehensive income   

   

Road safety campaign costs       (7 288 765)      7 288 765                   -

   

Changes in fair value through other 

comprehensive income financial assets  282 023 114 - 282 023 114

   

Total other comprehensive (loss)/ Income      274 734 349  (169 106 642) 105 627 710 

Balance as 31 December 2019 2 230 832 984 215 250 928  2 446 083 912

   

Total comprehensive income   

   

Deficit for the year -  (140 906 137) (140 906 137)
Transfer to road safety reserve      4 767 955      (4 767 955) -
Road safety campaign costs (4 953 781) 4 953 781 -
   

Other comprehensive (loss) / income    

 

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive income  189 838 937        - 189 838 937

Total  comprehensive (loss)/ Income      189 653 111 (140 720 311) 48 932 800
   

Balance at 31 December 2020 2 420 486 095     74 530 617 2 495 016 712
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Significant accounting policies
for the year ended 31 December 2020
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General information

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund is a statutory body formed under an Act of Parliament. 

1.Summary of significant policies
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and 
the requirements of the Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Act. These financial statements represent the Fund’s statutory financial 
statements.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are presented in Botswana Pula, which is also the functional currency. All financial information presented 
has been rounded to the nearest Pula.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation of certain assets being 
investment properties and financial instruments which are disclosed at fair value. These policies have been consistently applied in 
the current and previous financial year, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Although these estimates are based on management’s 
best knowledge of the current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future years if the 
revision affects both current and future years.

New and Amended Standards adopted by the Fund
The Fund has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for its annual reporting period commencing 1st 
January 2020.

Standard Effective Date Summary

Amendment to IAS 1 
Presentation of Financial 
statements

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2020

These amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 and consequential amendments 
to other IFRSs: 

• use a consistent definition of materiality through IFRSs and the 
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; 

• clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and
• incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial 

information. 

The amended definition is:
“Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users 
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those 
financial statements, which provide financial information about a 
specific reporting entity.”

Amendment to IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors on 
definition of material-

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2020
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Standard Effective Date Summary

Amendments to IFRS 9 
Financial Instruments, IAS 
39 Financial Instrument 
Recognition and 
Measurement and IFRS 
7 Financial Instruments; 
Disclosure-Interest rate 
benchmark reform phase 1

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2020

These amendments provide certain reliefs in connection with interest 
rate benchmark reform (IBOR). The reliefs relate to hedge accounting 
and have the effect that IBOR should not generally cause hedge 
accounting to terminate. However, any hedge ineffectiveness should 
continue to be recorded in the income statement.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods

Adoption of standards in future financial periods

New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2021, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Fund are set out 
below. The Fund does not plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory 
unless otherwise indicated;

Management is currently assessing the impact of the application of these new standards, amendments and interpretations on the 
Fund’s financial statements in the period of initial application. At this time, the adoption of these standards and interpretations is 
only expected to have an impact on the classification and disclosure of items in the Fund’s financial statements.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the Fund in the 
current and future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Standard Effective Date Summary

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions 
Amendment

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
June 2020 
(early adoption is 
permitted)

(Published June 2020)

The IASB has provided lessees (but not lessors) with relief in the form 
of an optional exemption from assessing whether a rent concession 
related to COVID-19 is a lease modification, provided that the 
concession meets certain conditions. Lessees can elect to account for 
qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were 
no lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for 
the concession as a variable lease payment.

Amendments to IFRS 9 
‘Financial Instruments’, 
IAS 39 ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement’, IFRS 
7 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures’, IFRS 4 
‘Insurance Contracts’ and 
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ – interest 
rate benchmark (IBOR) 
reform (Phase 2)

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2021 

(Published August 
2020)

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the 
implementation of the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including 
the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one.

Amendment to IAS 
1 ‘Presentation of 
Financial Statements’ on 
Classification of Liabilities 
as Current or Non-current

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2022

(Published January 
2020)

The amendment clarifies that liabilities are classified as either current 
or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the 
reporting period. Classification is unaffected by expectations of the 
entity or events after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a 
waiver or a breach of covenant).

New and Amended Standards adopted by the Fund (continued)



Motor Vehicle Accident Fund Annual Report 2020

Significant accounting policies (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          129 128          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

Adoption of standards in future financial periods (continued) 

Standard Effective Date Summary

Amendment to IFRS 3, 
‘Business combinations’

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2022

(Published May 2020) 

The Board has updated IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’, to refer to 
the 2018 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order 
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability in a business 
combination. 

In addition, the Board added a new exception in IFRS 3 for liabilities 
and contingent liabilities. The exception specifies that, for some 
types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying IFRS 
3 should instead refer to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets’, or IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, rather than the 2018 Conceptual 
Framework.
The Board has also clarified that the acquirer should not recognise 
contingent assets, as defined in IAS 37, at the acquisition date.

Amendments to IAS 
16 ‘Property, Plant and 
Equipment’ on Proceeds 
before Intended Use

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2022 

(Published May 2020) 

The amendment to IAS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting from 
the cost of an item of PPE any proceeds received from selling items 
produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use (for 
example, the proceeds from selling samples produced when testing a 
machine to see if it is functioning properly). The proceeds from selling 
such items, together with the costs of producing them, are recognised 
in profit or loss. 

Amendments to IAS 37 
‘Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets’ on Onerous 
Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling 
a Contract

Amendments to 
IAS 37 ‘Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets’ 
on Onerous Contracts—
Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract

The amendment clarifies which costs an entity includes in assessing 
whether a contract will be loss-making. This assessment is made by 
considering unavoidable costs, which are the lower of the net cost of 
exiting the contract and the costs to fulfil the contract. The amendment 
clarifies the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil a contract’. Under the amendment, 
costs to fulfil a contract include incremental costs and the allocation of 
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling the contract.

Annual improvements cycle 
2018 -2020

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2022

(Published May 2020)

These amendments include minor changes to: 
• IFRS 1, ‘First time adoption of IFRS’ has been amended for a subsidiary 

that becomes a first-time adopter after its parent. The subsidiary 
may elect to measure cumulative translation differences for foreign 
operations using the amounts reported by the parent at the date of 
the parent’s transition to IFRS.

• IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ has been amended to include only 
those costs or fees paid between the borrower and the lender in the 
calculation of “the 10% test” for derecognition of a financial liability. 
Fees paid to third parties are excluded from this calculation.  
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Standard Effective Date Summary

Annual improvements cycle 
2018 -2020

•IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, amendment to the Illustrative Example 13 that 
accompanies IFRS 16 to remove the illustration of payments from the 
lessor relating to leasehold improvements. The amendment intends 
to remove any potential confusion about the treatment of lease 
incentives.

•IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ has been amended to align the requirements for 
measuring fair value with those of IFRS 13. The amendment removes 
the requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when 
measuring fair value.

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2023 

Early application is 
permitted for entities 
that apply IFRS 9, 
‘Financial Instruments’, 
and IFRS 15, ‘Revenue 
from Contracts with 
Customers’, at or before 
the date of initial 
application of IFRS 17.

(Published May 2017)

The IASB issued IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’, and thereby started a 
new epoch of accounting for insurers. Whereas the current standard, 
IFRS 4, allows insurers to use their local GAAP, IFRS 17 defines clear 
and consistent rules that will significantly increase the comparability 
of financial statements. For insurers, the transition to IFRS 17 will have 
an impact on financial statements and on key performance indicators.

Under IFRS 17, the general model requires entities to measure an 
insurance contract at initial recognition at the total of the fulfilment 
cash flows (comprising the estimated future cash flows, an adjustment 
to reflect the time value of money and an explicit risk adjustment for 
non-financial risk) and the contractual service margin. The fulfilment 
cash flows are remeasured on a current basis each reporting period. 
The unearned profit (contractual service margin) is recognised over the 
coverage period.

Aside from this general model, the standard provides, as a simplification, 
the premium allocation approach. This simplified approach is applicable 
for certain types of contract, including those with a coverage period of 
one year or less.

For insurance contracts with direct participation features, the variable 
fee approach applies. The variable fee approach is a variation on the 
general model. When applying the variable fee approach, the entity’s 
share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in 
the contractual service margin. Consequently, the fair value changes 
are not recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they occur but 
over the remaining life of the contract.

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ 
Amendments

Annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 
January 2023

(Published June 2020)

In response to some of the concerns and challenges raised, the Board 
developed targeted amendments and several proposed clarifications 
intended to ease implementation of IFRS 17, simplify some requirements 
of the standard and ease transition. The amendments are not intended 
to change the fundamental principles of the standard or unduly disrupt 
implementation already underway.

Adoption of standards in future financial periods (continued) 
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1.2 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Fund are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Botswana Pula, which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the Fund.

 (b) Transactions and balances
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the measurement currency at the rates of exchange ruling 
at year-end. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the measurement currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

1.3 Investments in associates
Associates are those entities in which the Fund has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. 
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Fund holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity and 
has no control over the entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the investment 
includes transaction costs. The financial statements include the Fund’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
of equity accounted investees from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Fund’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of the investment, 
including any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discounted 
except to the extent that the Fund has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 1.8.

1.4 Trade and other receivable
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there 
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will 
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered 
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in 
profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account 
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit 
or loss.

1.5 Property and equipment
Items of property and equipment except for freehold and leasehold land and buildings are measured at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of property and equipment. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bring the asset to working condition for 
their intended use.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with 
the carrying amounts of property and equipment, and are recognised in profit or loss.

Work in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Once the project is completed and commissioned, the 
stated value is capitalised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of  
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1.5 Property and equipment (continued)

property and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Freehold land and buildings Lower of 40 years or remaining period of the lease 
Buildings 40 years 
Office furniture and equipment 5 – 8 years 
Motor vehicles 4 years 
Computer  equipment 3 – 5 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included 
in profit or loss.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. The cost of major 
renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the 
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Fund. Major renovations are depreciated over the 
remaining useful life of the related asset.

Property and equipment and other assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price 
and the value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows.

1.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software which is stated at cost, less amortisation and provisions of impairment, if any.

The identifiable and directly associated external and internal costs of acquiring software are capitalised where the software 
is controlled by the Fund, and where it is probable that future economic benefits that exceeds its costs will flow from its use 
over more than one year. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognised as an expense when incurred. Capitalised 
computer software is amortised over three to ten years on a straight line basis.

1.7 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising office buildings and residential plots are held for long-term rental yields. These 
properties are treated as long-term investment and are carried at fair value, representing open market value determined annually 
by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded in profit or loss.

1.8 Impairment of assets

Property and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and 
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows.

Impairment charges are included in profit or loss, except to the extent they reverse gains previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income.
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1.9 Financial assets

Classification
The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;
• Amortised cost;
• Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL); or
• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual terms of the 
cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity 
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Fund has made an irrevocable election at the time of 
initial  recognition to account for the equity investment at the fair value through other comprehensive income(FVOCI).

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchase and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Fund commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Fund has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Fund measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are and directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Fund classifies its debt instrument;

• Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance 
income using the effective interest rate method. Any gains or losses on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and 
presented in other gain/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

• FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flow and for selling the financial asset, where the assets cash 
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amounts are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains and losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses 
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit and loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in 
other gain/ (losses), and impairment expense is presented as a separate line item of the profit or loss.

• FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment 
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains\ (losses) in the period 
in which it arises.

Equity Instruments
The Fund subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Fund’s management has elected to present fair 
value gains and losses on equity investment in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses profit or 
loss following derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income 
when the Fund‘s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/ (losses) in the statement of profit or loss 
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value.

1.10 Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.
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1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call accounts 
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Cash 
and cash equivalents are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost on the 
statement of financial position.

1.12 Staff costs

Pension obligations
The Fund has a pension scheme, which falls under the category of a defined contribution plan, and this is funded through payments 
to a privately administered Fund. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Fund pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity (a pension plan) and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the Fund does 
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees’ benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. For this 
contribution plan, the Fund contributes 20% of staff salary cost every month to a privately administered defined contribution plan 
on a contractual basis in respect of staff members who are in the scheme. Once the contributions have been paid, the Fund has 
no further payment obligations. The regular contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due and as 
such are included in staff costs.

Short Term Employee Benefit
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave that are expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in 
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current liability in the balance sheet.

1.13 Claims

The Fund is required by applicable regulations and IFRS to recognise a liability for payment of claims. This liability represents the 
estimated ultimate cost to settle claim occurring prior to but still outstanding as of the financial position date. Claim liabilities fall 
into two categories: liability for reported losses and liability for incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses.

This liability is revised as additional information becomes available and claims are actually reported. Recoveries on claims paid 
either through right of recourse or from reinsurers are recognised on receipt.

The Fund’s liability for reported losses is based on estimates of future payments to settle reported claims. The Fund generally 
establishes these liabilities on an undiscounted basis to recognise estimated costs of bringing pending claims for final settlement 
taking into account inflation as well as other factors. The Fund reviews and re-evaluates claim liabilities on a regular basis. 
Amounts ultimately paid for claims can vary from the estimates initially made. The Fund has established a liability for IBNR claims 
to recognise the estimated cost of loss for events which have already occurred but which have not yet been notified. As those 
losses have not yet been reported, the Fund relies upon historical information to estimate its IBNR liability. The Fund also uses 
reported claim trends and other factors in estimating its IBNR liability.

1.14 Reserves

Claims reserve
The claims reserve is maintained at a sum equivalent to 1.5 times of the amount calculated based on the complementary loss 
ratio method. The required amount is appropriated out of accumulated surplus into the insurance reserve every year. If the annual 
complementary loss ratio calculation results in a reduction in the insurance reserve, the brought forward insurance reserve balance 
is not adjusted.

Fair value reserves
The Fund has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in Other Comprehensive 
Income, as explained in note 1.9. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI reserve within equity. The Fund transfers 
amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.
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1.15 Trust liabilities

General damages

General damages reflect the claim costs incurred in respect of minors. The Fund estimates the current value of the claims and 
thereafter proceeds are transferred to interest bearing accounts where it will be held until it is paid to the claimant upon attainment 
of an age of 21 years. The amount of trust account liability falling due within twelve months of the statement of financial position 
date is shown as current liability.

Undertaking liabilities

The liability of undertaking is in respect of future medical costs for claims, where future medical expenses are anticipated. The 
Fund has undertaken to meet these medical expenses in the future as and when they are incurred. The Fund estimates the present 
value of future medical costs and the necessary funds are deposited into separate interest bearing accounts from which payments 
are made. The amount of undertaking liability falling due within twelve months of the statement of financial position date is 
shown as a current liability.

Loss of support/income liabilities

The liability for loss of support or income is in respect of future financial benefits for claims, where the claimant lost income or 
support due to car crash. The Fund estimates the present value of future payments and the necessary funds are deposited into 
separate interest bearing accounts from which payments are made. The amount of undertaking liability falling due within twelve 
months of the reporting date is shown as current liability.

1.16 Road safety campaign reserve

The Road Safety Campaign Reserve is established to cater for any road safety initiatives that could be undertaken to support in 
the course of the Fund’s business. During 2019 the actual expenditure on road safety initiatives amounts to P4 953 781 
(2019: P7 288 765).

1.17 Impairment of financial asset

a)Assets carried at amortised cost

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and 
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that 
can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Fund uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

• Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
• Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower/investee (for example, equity ratio, net income percentage of sales);
• Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
• Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
• Deterioration of the borrower’s/investee’s competitive position;
• Deterioration in the value of collateral; and
• Downgrading below investment grade level.

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its identification is determined by management for each identified portfolio. In 
general, the periods used vary between three months and 12 months; in exceptional cases, longer periods are warranted.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring 
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Fund may 
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.
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1.17 Impairment of financial asset (continued) 

(b) Assets classified at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Fund assesses at each financial position date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. In the case of equity financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. 
If any such evidence exists for fair value through other comprehensive assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in 
profit or loss – is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an instrument 
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

1.18 Revenue recognition

Fuel levy
Fuel levy revenue comprises fuel levy charged to fuel importers into Botswana. The Fund recognises fuel levy when the right to 
receive the payment is established. The current fuel levy is 9.5 thebe per litre.

Third Party cover
Third party cover comprises of premiums charged on foreign registered vehicles which enter the country. Third Party is recognised 
in line with the contractual agreement when the right to receive the payment is established and future revenue is deferred and 
recognised at the time it becomes due.

Investment income
Investment income consists of the following:

(a)Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate over 
the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue.

(b)Dividends Income
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established. These relate to investments in local and offshore 
investments.

(c)Rental Income
Revenue includes gross rental income, service charges and management charges from properties and income from property 
trading. Rental income is accrued on a straight-line basis over the contractual periods as and when the Fund becomes entitled to 
the income.

1.19 Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement date in the principal 
or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access.
 
The Fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument, where available. 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, the Fund uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market 
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 
 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair 
value of the consideration given or received. If the Fund determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the 
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor 
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1.19 Fair value measurement (continued)

based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured 
at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, 
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the 
valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Fund measures assets and long positions 
at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
exposed to market risk and credit risk that are managed by the Fund on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk 
are measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for 
a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio. 
 
The Fund recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the 
change has occurred.
 
1.20 Leases- The Fund as the Lessee

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. 
If the Fund is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s 
useful life. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a 
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a 
purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture. 
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1.21 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Use of estimates and judgements

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Claims

The Fund establishes claim liability accounts, which comprise estimates of future payments for reported (known) claims and 
unreported claims (‘IBNR’) with respect to events which could result in an expense to the Fund. Provisioning is a complex process 
dealing with uncertainty requiring the use of informed estimates and judgements. Any changes in the estimates are reflected in 
profit or loss in the period in which estimates are changed as illustrated in note 19.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims

The Fund engaged QED Actuaries & Consultants (Pty) Ltd to determine the IBNR Provision as at 31st December 2020.

The IBNR Provision was calculated on the basis of an actuarial reserving method which relies on past claims experience. The 
Bornhuetter-Fergusson (BF) method was applied for the 2020 and comparative years.

Residual values of property and equipment

Residual values are based on expected future circumstances measured at current prices. Land and buildings are shown at fair 
values, based on annual valuations by external independent valuators, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.

Basis for determining fair values of financial assets

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not 
active, the Fund establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions or 
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

Estimation of fair values of land and buildings and investment property

The properties are independently valued on the basis of open market value and are revalued annually.
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2. Financial risk management

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and 
liquidity risk. The Fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance.

The Board is ultimately responsible to ensure that the Fund is not exposed to risks which may have a negative impact on its 
financial performance, and which may ultimately have an adverse effect on the continued operations of the Fund. Compliance with 
a set of comprehensive risk management policies are an integral part of the Fund’s day-to-day activities and systems of internal 
controls have been implemented to prevent and detect risks.
 
The Fund is exposed to the following significant risks:
 
2.1 Credit risk

The Fund takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Fund by failing to 
discharge an obligation. Credit risk is one of the important risks for the Fund’s business; the Fund therefore, carefully manages its 
exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally on Investments, trade and other receivables, staff receivables and cash 
at bank. The credit risk management process and controls are monitored by the Board regularly.
 
Credit risk measurement

Financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consist principally of Investments, cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables, other receivables and staff receivables. The Fund is exposed to this risk in the event that a counter party fails to meet 
its repayment obligations as and when they fall due.
 

In the Fund’s endeavour to control credit risk, investment and disbursement procedures ensure that disbursement decision making 
is rigorous, controlled, documented and in compliance with agreed  policies and operating guidelines as specified by the board.
 
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables predominantly represent interest receivable on short term investments included in cash and cash 
equivalents and other investment income receivables.
 
Staff receivables represent loans given to staff. The Fund has a number of schemes under which staff may apply for loans or 
guarantees.
 
Cash and cash equivalents and investments

Cash and cash equivalents represent short term investments of surplus funds from the Fund as well as claimants monies in trust 
accounts. The Fund holds short term investments in various financial institutions based on the individual risk limits set based 
on limits set by the Board. Cash and cash equivalents and deposits are placed only with reputable institutions. The investment 
department of the Fund takes decisions in this regard to create value for the Fund by investing prudently in a variety of investment 
vehicles. During the year the Fund had placed these financial assets with African Banking Corporation of Botswana Limited, Bank 
Gaborone Limited, ABSA Bank Botswana Limited, Botswana Building Society, First National Bank Botswana Limited and First 
Capital Bank.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies
 
The Fund manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified – in particular, to individual 
counterparties.

The Fund is guided by the Investment Policy Statement in terms of how the Fund’s assets are to be invested and to which 
institutions. The loans given to employees are in accordance with the General Conditions of Employment. The total amount of 
any loan, or loans granted by the Fund will be limited to an amount, or amounts under which the total monthly deductions do not 
exceed 50% of the employee’s net monthly salary. Provisions have been made for doubtful debts where necessary.
  
Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment provisions are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred at the statement of 
Impairment and provisioning policies financial position date based on objective evidence of impairment.

Management determine that objective evidence of impairment exists under IAS 39, based on the following criteria set out by the 
Fund:

• Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
• Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity ratio, net income percentage of sales);
• Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
• Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
• Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
• Deterioration in the value of collateral;
 
The Fund’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets that are significant at least annually or more regularly when 
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation 
of the incurred loss at the reporting date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The 
assessment normally encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated receipts for 
that individual account.
 
Based on the objective criteria set out above, no provision for impaired assets is recognised at the reporting date.
 
Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the Fund resulting from 
both its investment and receivables based on the following:



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Annual Financial Statements

Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          139 138          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation Living the promise under the new normal through innovation |          139 138          | Living the promise under the new normal through innovation

Trade and other receivables
    
Fuel levy receivables            2020             2019
                              P                   P

Fuel levy receivables 10 007 798    11 392 332
Third-party receivable       769 545    3 587 264
Other receivables 16 000 638   14 160 188
Staff receivables  55 410 595 47 404 753
 
                  82 188 576  76 544 537
Analysis of trade and other receivables   
Neither past due nor impaired   81 792 371  74 268 941
Past due but not impaired       396 205    2 275 596
Past due and impaired    2 642 545          -
Provision for doubtful debts  (2 642 545)          -

    82 188 576  76 544 537

Aging of past due but not impaired trade and other receivable  

As at 31 December 2020   

Rent receivable

Not later than 90 days                                                                                                                                      396 205                          641 560

Later than 90 days                                                                                                                                           2 642 545                       1 634 036

Provision for doubtful debts                                                                                                                         (2 642 545) -

  396 205 2 275 596

Debt securities, treasury bills and other investments    
The table below presents an analysis of debt securities, treasury bills and other eligible bills by rating agency designation at 31 
December 2020, based on various credit rating organisations such as Fitch, Global Credit Rating, Moody’s.

Financial assets 
at fair value 

through profit 
or lossAs at 31 

December 2020 

Financial assets 
at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income 

Cash and cash 
equivalents

Financial Assets 
at Amortised 

Cost

Total

A- to A+ -  197 343 328 11 198 479 - 208 541 807

Lower than A- 195 896 090 112 186 327              - - 308 082 417

Unrated 354 860 273 2 696 778 574        50 500 228 420 344 3 280 109 691

  550 756 363 3 006 308 229 11 248 979 228 420 344 3 796 733 915 

     

As at 31 December 2019     

A- to A+ 102 884 675  164 982 942 17 580 539 - 285 448 156

Lower than A- 35 000 000 73 719 946 - - 108 719 946

Unrated 304 521 365 2 548 001 277 50 500 349 344 738 3 201 917 880

  442 406 040 2 786 704 165 17 631 039 349 344 738 3 596 085 982 
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

Industry sectors

The following table breaks down the fund’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts,as categorised by the industry sector 
of our counterparties.

Financial assets held at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 777 822 317 303 414 972 234 276 504 - 230 266 308 587 019 227 130 599 996 742 908 905 3 006 308 229

Financial assets at amortised cost 228 420 344 - - - - - - - 228 420 344

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 197 258 836 150 543 097 42 058 340 160 896 090 - - - - 550 756 363

Fuel levy receivables - - 10 007 798 - - - - - 10 007 798

Third party cover - - - 769 545 - - - - 769 545

Other receivables 7 699 715 - - - - - - 8 300 923 16 000 638

Cash and cash equivalents 11 248 979 - - - - - - - 11 248 979

As at 31 December 2020                                                                                                    1 222 450 191 453 958 069 286 342 642 161 665 635 230 266 308                    587 019 227                  130 599 996                   751 209 828                 3 823 511 896  

  

         

Financial assets held at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 791 794 589 296 991 776 224 995 743 - 180 405 272 542 407 455 128 429 233 621 680 097 2 786 704 165

Financial assets at amortised cost 349 344 738 - - - - - - - 349 344 738

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 188 926 927 91 516 544 44 370 383 117 592 186 - - - - 442 406 040

Fuel levy  receivables - - 11 392 332 - - - - - 11 392 332

Third party cover - - - 3 587 264 - - - - 3 587 264

Other receivables 6 363 748 - - - - - - 7 796 440 14 160 188

Cash and cash equivalents 17 631 039 - - - - - - - 17 631 039

         

As at 31 December 2019 1 354 061 041 388 508 320 280 758 458 121 179 450 180 405 272 542 407 455 128 429 233 629 476 537 3 625 225 766 

Financial 
sector

Real 
estate

Wholesale & 
retail trade
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2 Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

Industry sectors

The following table breaks down the fund’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts,as categorised by the industry sector 
of our counterparties.

Financial assets held at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 777 822 317 303 414 972 234 276 504 - 230 266 308 587 019 227 130 599 996 742 908 905 3 006 308 229

Financial assets at amortised cost 228 420 344 - - - - - - - 228 420 344

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 197 258 836 150 543 097 42 058 340 160 896 090 - - - - 550 756 363

Fuel levy receivables - - 10 007 798 - - - - - 10 007 798

Third party cover - - - 769 545 - - - - 769 545

Other receivables 7 699 715 - - - - - - 8 300 923 16 000 638

Cash and cash equivalents 11 248 979 - - - - - - - 11 248 979

As at 31 December 2020                                                                                                    1 222 450 191 453 958 069 286 342 642 161 665 635 230 266 308                    587 019 227                  130 599 996                   751 209 828                 3 823 511 896  

  

         

Financial assets held at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 791 794 589 296 991 776 224 995 743 - 180 405 272 542 407 455 128 429 233 621 680 097 2 786 704 165

Financial assets at amortised cost 349 344 738 - - - - - - - 349 344 738

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 188 926 927 91 516 544 44 370 383 117 592 186 - - - - 442 406 040

Fuel levy  receivables - - 11 392 332 - - - - - 11 392 332

Third party cover - - - 3 587 264 - - - - 3 587 264

Other receivables 6 363 748 - - - - - - 7 796 440 14 160 188

Cash and cash equivalents 17 631 039 - - - - - - - 17 631 039

         

As at 31 December 2019 1 354 061 041 388 508 320 280 758 458 121 179 450 180 405 272 542 407 455 128 429 233 629 476 537 3 625 225 766 

Public 
sector

Health 
care

Technology & 
Energy

Beverages Other Total
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2.2 Market risk
   
Foreign exchange risk
   
 The Fund takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position 
and cash flows. The Fund is guided by the Investment Policy Statement in terms of how the Fund’s assets must be invested 
offshore. The table below summarises the Funds’ exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December 2020. Included in 
the table are the Fund’s financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by currency. The carrying amounts approximated 
their fair value.

As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Financial assets held at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 1 256 325 626 1 749 982 603 3 006 308 229
Financial assets at amortised cost 228 420 344 - 228 420 344
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 550 756 363 - 550 756 363
Fuel levy  receivables 10 007 798 - 10 007 798
Third party receivable 769 907 - 769 907
Other receivables and prepayments 16 000 638 - 16 000 638
Staff receivables    55 410 595 - 55 410 595
Cash and cash equivalents 11 198 479 - 11 198 479

  2 128 899 750 1 749 982 603  3 878 872 353
Liabilities    
Trust liabilities    1 636 044 183  -  1 636 044 183 
Outstanding claims       133 295 825  - 133 295 825 
Accounts payable         51 191 627   - 51 191 627  

  1 820 531 635 - 1 820 531 635
Net long position    308 368 115 1 749 982 603 2 058 340 718

As at 31 December 2019    
Assets   
Financial assets held at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 1 281 681 462 1 505 022 703 2 786 704 165
Financial assets at amortised cost 349 344 738 - 349 344 738
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 442 406 040 - 442 406 040
Fuel levy receivables 11 392 332 - 11 392 332
Third party receivable 3 587 264 - 3  587 264
Other receivables and prepayments 15 027 152 - 15 027 152
Staff receivables    47 404 753 - 47 404 753
Cash and cash equivalents 10 530 482 - 10 530 482

  2 161 374 223 1 505 022 703  3 666 396 926
Liabilities    
Trust liabilities    1 449 198 969  -  1 449 198 969
Outstanding claims       140 487 748  - 140 487 748  
Accounts payable         47 731 120   -  47 731 120  

  1 637 417 837 - 1 637 417 837

Net long position    523 956 386 1 505 022 703 2 028 979 089

BWP      US Dollar
          (BWP    
equivalent)

Total
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2.2 Market risk (continued)
   
Sensitivity analysis
       
The following sensitivity analysis is monitored on the following major currencies of non-equity instruments, had a 5% increase/
decrease arising on the various currencies. 
                                       Effect on  surplus/ (deficit) for the year
                                                                                                                                    2020                      2019
5% increase 87 499 130 75 251 135 
As a  percentage of accumulated surplus 117% 35% 
 
     
  
5% decrease (87 499 130) (75 251 135) 
As a percentage of accumulated surplus (117%) (35%) 
 

Price risk

The Fund is exposed to price risk because of its investments in equity instruments which are measured at fair value. The exposure 
to price risk on equity investments is managed through a diversified portfolio. There have been no significant changes in the price 
risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period. Assets exposed to price risk are disclosed in note 12.

5% increase/decrease 150 315 411 139 335 208
As a  percentage of accumulated surplus 207%           187%
   
Concentration of financial assets with market risk exposure

Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Fund’s main US Dollar credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by 
geographical region as of 31 December 2020. For this table, the Fund has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of 
domicile of the counterparties.

Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 414 892 359 861 964 171 473 126 073 1 749 982 603

      

As at 31 December 2020 414 892 359 861 964 171 473 126 073 1 749 982 603

Financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income 304 687 538 733 177 017 467 158 148 1 505 022 703

      

 As at 31 December 2019 304 687 538 733 177 017 467 158 148   1 505 022 703

       

Europe Canada  and 
USA

Other 
countries

Total
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2.3 Market risk (continued)     

 
Interest rate risk (continued)     
Sensitivity of net interest income     
  
  2020 2019
Net interest arising from a shift in yield  curves of -100 basis points ( P’000) (5 507 564)       (4 424 060)
As a  percentage of accumulated surplus    
  (7.4%) (2.1%)
     
   
Net interest arising from a shift in yield  curves of  +100 basis points (P’000) 5 507 564 4 424 060
As a  percentage of accumulated surplus    
   7.4% 2.1%
        
Liquidity risk
        
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they 
fall due and to replace Funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations towards payment 
of claims.
        
Liquidity risk management process
        
The Fund’s liquidity management process is carried out within the Fund by the Finance Department, which includes;

• Day-to-day funding, managing and monitoring of future cash flows to ensure that requirements are met.
• Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption 
to cash flow, and
• Monitoring the statement of financial position liquidity ratio against internal and regulatory requirements.

Non - derivative cash flows 
          
The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual 
maturities at the financial position date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas 
the Fund manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

As at 31 December           

                                          Up to 1 month  1-3 months  3 -12 months     1 - 5 years Over 5 years                 Total

Trust liabilities 9 186 045    18 372 091      82 674 407            161 449 920 1 364 361 720 1 636 044 183

Outstanding claims 9 176 155               42 540 022      81 579 648                          -       -     133 295 825

Accounts payable 9 108 811  -      42 082 816                          -       -         51 191 627

Lease Liabilities 59 861           111 199           322 083             1 593 252          393 596         2 479 991

Total liabilities      27 530 872    61 023 312   206 658 954         163 043 172 1 364 755 316   1 823 011 626

As at 31 December 

2019           

Trust liabilities 12 058 311    24 116 622   108 524 802         194 582 127 1 109 917 107  1 449 198 969

Outstanding claims 5 996 153  42 540 022       91 951 573                            -      -     140 487 748

Accounts payable 9 639 177  -      37 018 701                            -      -       46 657 878

Total liabilities      27 693 641  66 656 644   237 495 076       194 582 127 1 109 917 107 1 636 344 595

2020
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2.4 Items not included in the statement of financial position
   
Capital commitments and operating lease commitments
   
Capital commitments for the acquisition of property and equipment disclosed in note 21 are summarised in the table below.
     
Where the Fund is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments under cancellable operating leases, as disclosed in note 21, are 
summarised in the table below.

     
  Not later 1 - 5 years Total 
                                                                                                                                than one year
As at 31 December 2020    
     
 Capital commitments    
  205 841 - 205 841
Operating lease commitments    
  - - -
     
  205 841 - 205 841
     
As at 31 December 2019    
    
Capital commitments    
  569 874 - 569 874
Operating lease commitments    
  - - -
     

  569 874 - 569 874

2.5 Capital Risk Management

 The Fund’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statements of 

financial position is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide benefits to 

claimants and service its stakeholders.

2.6 Fair value measurement

The Fund measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making 

the measurement:

 

 • Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

 • Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 

(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar 

instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation 

techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data. 

 • Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs 

not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category 

includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments 

or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

 Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar instruments for which 

market observable prices exist, Botswana Stock Exchange Aggregated Bond Index and other valuation models. 
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2.6 Fair value measurement (continued)

Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other 
information used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index 
prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.

 The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell 
the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

 Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgement and estimation 
in the determination of fair value. Management’s judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate 
valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued, determination 
of probability of counterparty default and prepayments and selection of appropriate discount rates.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair 
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
 
31 December 2020    

 Investment properties -               - 138 630 000 138 630 000
 Financial assets at  FVOCI 2 997 453 987        8 019 796 834 446 3 006 308 229
 Financial assets at FVPL    364 256 363 186 500 000    - 550 756 363
     

     3 361 710 350 194 519 796 139 464 446 3 695 694 592

31 December 2019 

Investment properties -                - 136 030 000 136 030 000
Financial assets at  FVOCI 2 778 651 907       7 217 816 834 442 2 786 704 165
Financial assets at  FVPL    320 906 040 121 500 000 - 442 406 040

  3 099 557 947 128 717 816 136 864 442 3 365 140 205

Level 3 fair value measurement
 
(i) Reconciliation

The following table shows reconciliation from the beginning balance to the ending balance for fair value measurement in level 3 
of the fair value hierarchy.
                                                                                                                                                                                  2020                                 2019

Balance at 1 January 136 864 442 132 569 673
Total gains recognised  in profit and loss 2 600 000 4 294 769
    
Closing balance 139 464 442 136 864 442
     
(i) Unobservable input used in measuring fair value
  
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income of P 834 442 (2019: P834 442) , being investment 
in unlisted equity instruments is determined using internal models. The unobservable data used in the valuation is the net assets 
value of the investee.

The fair value of Investment Property and land and buildings was determined by external valuers, having appropriate recognised 
professional qualification and relevant experience in the location and cost of property being valued. The properties were 
independently valued on the basis of open market value.
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2.6 Fair value measurement (continued)

 (i) Unobservable input used in measuring fair value (continued)  

Significant unobservable inputs Inter-relationship between key unobservable 
inputs and fair value measurement

Investment 
Property and land 
and buildings Market yield  of between 8 – 10%

Prime rentals of office space between P70 – P120 s.q.m

The estimated fair value would increase/
(decrease) if:

• Higher/lower market yields
• Increase/decrease in rental per s.q.m.

  2020 2019

3.Operating Income
 
3.1 Net Fuel Levy Income  
 
 Fuel Levy Income 100 713 501 123 120 895
 Rebates (1 360 680) (781 140)
 Value added tax (10 790 732) (13 191 524)
   

 Net Fuel levy  88 562 089 109 148 231
 
 The current fuel levy is 9.5 thebe per litre.
 
3.2 Net third party cover  
 
 Third party cover 4 500 973 10 809 268
 Less: VAT on third party cover (482 247) (1 158 136)
 Third party expenses (449 287) (1 079 557)

  3 569 439 8 571 575

 3.3 Investment income  
 Interest income 50 334 720 49 753 644
 Dividend income 64 296 466 71 405 206
 Profit on sale of investment securities - 8 310 585
 Rental income 4 788 081 4 818 411

  119 419 267 134 287 846
    
 
4. Other income   
 
Profit on disposal of equipment                                                                                                                     984 151                          150 403 
Sundry income                                                                                                                                                 244 628                          400 185 
Interest on fuel levy                                                                                                                                             11 924                          163 612

 
  1 240 703 714 200
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6. Administration Expenses 
   
The following items have been charged/(credited) as part of administration costs in arriving at the Surplus/ (deficit) for the year. 

 

Depreciation on property and equipment  3 192 952 3 104 449

Amortisation of  intangible assets  1 446 071 41 509

Auditors’ remuneration- audit fees 430 400 411 100

Directors’ emoluments- board sitting fees and expenses 647 064 847 342

Repairs and maintenance- property and equipment 94 546 131 466

Operating lease                                                                                                                                                        565                                       -

Staff costs (Note 7)                                                                                                                                     63 631 491                      59 459 126

Other Administration cost                                                                                                                         13 273 798                     18 546 201 

 

Administrative Expenses 82 716 887 82 541 193

A detailed breakdown is provided as annexure to these annual financial statements.

   

7. Staff costs  

Salaries and wages 49 107 116 47 420 145

Pension costs – defined contribution plan 4 618 340 5 045 652

Leave pay and gratuity 8 101 129 4 358 754

Staff welfare 1 804 906 2 634 575

  63 631 491 59 459 126

  2020 2019

5. Net increase in claims provision   
 
 Claims Expenses  143 862 611 188 807 898
 Right of recourse recoveries (379 659) (245 467)
 VAT claimed on claim payments (2 332 325) (2 630 682)

  141 150 627 185 931 749
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Net book amount at beginning of year 147 891 1 119 703 1 163 703     1 995 062        2 273 705     6 700 064 

Additions - 171 976 594 567     1 966 088        7 931 975     10 664 606

Depreciation (4 236) (431 769) (759 245) (976 086)             -   (2 171 336)

Net book amount at end of year 143 655 859 910 999 025 2 985 064    10 205 680     15 193 334

      

At 31 December 2020      

      

Cost 1 243 751 5 831 771 7 632 087 12 137 227 10 205 680 37 050 516

Accumulated depreciation (1 100 096) (4 971 861) (6 633 062) (9 152 163) - (21 857 182)

Net book amount  143 655 859 910 999 025 2 985 064  10 205 680       15 193 334

Year ended 31 December 2019      

 

Net book amount at beginning of year    274 945 1 171 705 928 308     1 216 383        1 708 258     5 299 599 

Additions                                     - 583 286 814 930     1 965 910        591 159     3 955 285

Transfers -         (7 616)           7 616            -             -                  -

Transfer from Work in Progress                  -          25 712               -      -       (25 712)                  -

Disposal           (1 941)               -       -             -          (1 941)

Depreciation (127 054) (651 443) (587 151) (1 187 231)             -   (2 552 879)

Net book amount at end of year 147 891 1 119 703 1 163 703 1 995 062    2 273 705     6 700 064

At 31 December 2019      

Cost 1 243 751 5 659 795 7 061 844 12 132 022   2 273 705   28 371 117

Accumulated depreciation  (1 095 860) (4 540 092) (5 898 141) (10 136 960)            - (21 671 053)

Net book amount       147 891 1 119 703 1 163 703 1 995 062  2 273 705          6 700 064

At 31 December 2018      

Cost 1 243 751 5 248 868 6 344 787 10 426 277    1 708 258   24 971 741

Accumulated depreciation    (968 806) (4 077 163) (5 416 163) (9 209 894) - (19 672 342)

Net book amount 274 945 1 171 705 928 308 1 216 383    1 708 258    5 299 599

Assets with total original cost of P1 960 884 (2019 P548 230) and net book value of nil(2019 P1 941) were disposed off during the year.

Freehold
land and

buildings
Year ended 31 December 2020

8. Property and Equipment 

Office
furniture 

and
equipment

Computer
equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Work in
Progress 

(WIP)

Total
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8.1 Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Fund is the lessee. The lease relates to office space occupied by the Fund in 
Francistown, Palapye, Kang, Selebi Phikwe and Maun.

Measurement of leases
(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
 
                                                                                                                                                                                  2020      2019  

 Right of Use Assets  
 At the beginning of the year 3 250 156 3 801 726
 Depreciation            (1 021 616) (551 570)

 At end of the year 2 228 540 3 250 156
   
 Lease Liabilities  
 Current 493 143 664 820
 Non-Current 1 986 848 2 479 991

  2 479 991 3 144 811

There were no additions to right-of-use assets during the year.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

                                    
                                                                                                                                                                                  2020      2019  

Depreciation Charge of right of use assets  
Buildings         (1 021 616)      (551 570)
                    
Finance Costs (included in interest expense)         (225 509) (216 673)

(ii) How the Fund’s leasing activities were accounted for

Assets and Lease liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on the present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments;

• Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Fund exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in measurement of the liability. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is 
generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee 
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic 
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate the Fund, used recent third party financing received by the individual lessee as a 
starting point. Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The Finance cost is charged to the profit and loss 
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising;
• The amount of the initial lease liability
• Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
• Any initial direct costs, and 
• Restoration costs.
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8.1 Leases (continued)

Right of use are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis.

The Fund as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property and equipment and investment properties in the statement of 
financial position. The assets included under property and equipment are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis 
consistent with similar owned property and equipment and the assets held under investment properties are stated at fair values. 
Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

9.Intangible assets
 
  
  Software

Cost  
 
 As 1st January 2020   29 515 354

  29 515 354
  
 Accumulated amortisation  
 
 As 1st January 2020 (19 920 636)
 Amortisation charge (1 159 893)

 
At 31 December 2020 (21 080 529)

 
Net book value 8 434 825
    
Cost   
 
 At 1st January 2019 29 515 354
   
 
         
At 31 December 2019 29 515 354
 
Accumulated amortisation   
 
 At 1st January 2019 (18 760 743)
 Amortisation charge (1 159 893)
 
At 31 December 2019 (19 920 636)
 
Net book value 9 594 718
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Year ended 31 December 2020   
 
Balance at 1 January 2020 91 630 000 44 400 000 136 030 000
Fair value gain 1 740 000 860 000 2 600 000

                                                                                                                              93 370 000  45 260 000 138 630 000

Year ended 31 December 2019   
 
Balance at 1 January 2019 88 810 000 42 940 000 131 750 000
Fair value Gain 2 820 000 1 460 000 4 280 000
 
                                                                                                                              91 630 000  44 400 000 136 030 000

10.1 Details of the leasehold properties  are as follows;

MVA Fund House Land Feb 94 50                 67 000 000                    65 660 000
  building Jan 99   
Plot 16413 Gaborone Land Dec 84 99                     3 010 000                      2 950 000
                                                                   building Sep 90   
Sheraton Houses Land Jan 91 50  
                                                                  Completion 
                                                                  of building Nov 93                    12 680 000                   12 400 000
Plot 19465 and 19466 Building Feb 03             99                        920 000                        920 000
Plot 24559 Francistown Building Oct 09             99                      1 130 000                       1 120 000
Tati River Francistown Residential 
                                                                  houses Aug 13              99                                8 630 000                     8 580 000

                                                  93 370 000                    91 630 000

Date of 
acquisition

Lease 
Period
(years)

2020

Freehold 
Properties

Leasehold
properties

10. Investment properties

2019

Total
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10. Investment properties (continued)

10.2 Freehold properties are as follows;

Phakalane Acacia Park   
   
Plot numbers 54171, 54172, 54173, 54174, 
54175, 54176, 54177, 54178 and 54179                                                                                                      15 750 000 15 670 000

Phakalane Segodi Park   
   
Plot numbers 55614, 55616, 55618, 55624 and 55640 18 220 000 17 680 000

Phakalane Golf Estate   
 
Plot number 53628, 53645 11 290 000  11 050 000

   45 260 000 44 400 000

 
Total value of investment properties 138 630 000 136 030 000

10.3.  The fair value measurement
 
The fair value of investment properties was determined by external Valuers, having appropriate recognised professional 
qualification and relevant experience in the location and cost of property being valued. The properties were independently valued 
on the basis of open market value. The properties are located in Gaborone and Francistown, and are revalued annually. The fair 
value of investment in properties is categorised into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
 
10.4 Property Management Fees
 
The Fund’s investment properties are managed internally. Property Management fees include letting commission to property 
agents, repairs and maintenance costs and property valuation costs. 

  2020  2019
    
Property Management Expenses 2 069 137              1 561 592
  
11.Investment in associates 

As at 31 December 2020  
 
  Feune  Palapye  Francistown Maun  Total

At the beginning of year 218 131 548 17 903 745  11 774 169 9 558 399      257 367 861
Share of net results for the year 32 025 558 1 588 496  (103 790) 904 271        34 414 535
Dividends Received (10 413 248) (3 000 000)  (3 750 000) -      (17 163 248)
Impairment  - -  - -         -

  239 743 858  16 492 241   7 920 379  10 462 670       274 619 148
        
        
As at 31 December 2019       
At the beginning of year 238 244 144 19 489 221  10 797 363 8 744 895      277 275 623
Share of net results for the year 26 769 263 976 491  976 806 813 504       29 536 064
Dividends Received (13 588 938) -  - -      (13 588 938)
Impairment  (33 292 921) (2 561 967)  - -     (35 854 888)

  218 131 548 17 903 745  11 774 169 9 558 399      257 367 861

2020 2019
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11. Investment in associates (continued)

Management has assessed the investment for impairment and determined that the recoverable amount is more than the carrying 
amount and that no impairment is required to be recognised

Investments in associates comprise of the following:
    
                           
Name of associate                                                                Nature                                       
    
Engen – Maun (Partnership)                                               Property letting- Maun                                   25% (2019 – 25%) 
Engen – Palapye (Partnership)                                          Property letting- Palapye                                   20% (2019 – 20%) 
Francistown retail  (Partnership)                                       Property letting- Francistown                              25% (2019 – 25%) 
Feune (Pty) Ltd (Company)                                                 Property letting - Gaborone                                 24.85% (2019 - 24.85%)
  
The partnerships are exposed to property market risk and changes in the general economic environment could have an impact on 
the rentals charged and property values. All Associates are based in Botswana.
     

 The Fund’s share of assets and liabilities and the results of the associates are summarised below:

                                 Feune (Pty) Ltd                             Feune (Pty) Ltd and
                                                                                                                                                                                             other associates

   2020 2019  2020 2019
       
 
 Non-current assets           323 756 556 317 300 554   354 335 534 347 581 470
 Current assets      20 981 311       17 637 891    26 544 661 27 129 586
 Current liabilities       (104 994 008) (116 806 897)              (106 261 047)   (117 343 195)

 
Net assets  239 743 859       218 131 548  274 619 148 257 367 861
       
 
 Revenue          34 971 281        39 651 695  38 645 253 43 264 357
 Expenses        (13 671 594)   (12 882 432)   (14 451 415) (13 728 293)

   21 299 687 26 769 263  24 193 838 29 536 064

There were no commitments or contingent liabilities on the associates at the year-end.

12. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
  

  2020 2019

 At the beginning of the year 2 786 704 165  2 511 829 221 

 Foreign exchange gain/(loss) (note 26) 17 793 148 (11 165 831)

 Additions 22 298 194 24 825 121

 Disposals - (11 243 302)

 Fair value (loss) /gain transferred to equity 189 838 937 282 023 114

 Management fees deducted (10 326 215) (9 564 158)

  3 006 308 229 2 786 704 165

Fund’s share of 
Investment
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12. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprising principally domestic marketable equity securities 
and units in foreign unit trust schemes are valued annually at the close of business on 31 December in accordance with IFRS 9. For 
investments traded in active markets, fair value is determined by reference to Stock Exchange quoted bid prices. There were no 
provisions for impairment on financial assets through other comprehensive income in 2020 (2019: nil).
    
Acquisition of equity investments
    
In an effort to increase the investment portfolio, the Fund purchased additional local equity instruments. Since 1st January 2020, 
the Fund purchased 71 611 shares in Botswana Insurance Holdings Limited at a total cost of P1 253 192.50 on the 23rd March 2020. 
MVA Fund further purchased 3.57 million shares in Turnstar Holding Limited and 0.5 million shares in Sechaba Brewery Holding 
Limited at a total cost of P10 000 001.20 and P11 045 000.00 respectively.

Disposal of equity investments

No disposals during the financial year 2020.

                                                                                                               Number of shares                                             Fair value

Listed 2020 2019 2020  2019
BanABC 28 375 000 28 375 000        56 182 500   57 317 500
ABSA Bank of Botswana Limited 21 736 440 21 449 863      116 942 047   119 550 420
Botswana Insurance Holdings Limited     11 395 140  11 323 529     199 414 950   198 161 758
Botswana Building Society 36 793 455 36 793 455        40 104 866   40 472 801
Botswana Telecommunications Corp Limited 4 232 400 4 232 400       3 470 568   4 020 780
Chobe Holdings Limited 536 727 536 727          5 061 336   5 957 670
Cresta Marakanelo Limited 9 250 010 9 250 010        12 025 013   12 395 013
Engen Botswana Limited 6 858 692 6 858 692        70 507 354   71 124 636
First National Bank of Botswana Limited 41 053 910 41 053 910        90 318 602   117 003 644
G4S Botswana Limited 1 257 300 1 257 300          4 274 820   4 400 550
Letshego Holdings 10 700 000 10 700 000          7 704 000   7 597 000
New African Properties Limited 36 768 853 36 768 853     118 028 018   119 131 084
Primetime Property Holdings Limited      10 323 016  10 323 016        28 388 294   30 246 437
RDC Properties Limited 17 308 693 17 308 693        38 079 125   38 944 559
Sechaba Brewary Holding Limited       6 324 455  5 824 455     130 599 996   128 429 233 
Sefalana Holdings Company Limited 25 083 138 25 083 138     234 276 504   224 995 743
Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 10 027 700 10 027 700        14 540 165   16 746 259
Turnstar Holdings Limited      31 021 292  27 449 863        77 553 230   77 134 117
     
Unlisted     
MRI Botswana Limited 738 444 738 444 834 442  834 442
KYS Investments Limited 8 019 796 8 019 796 8 019 796  7 217 816

Total domestic equity investments                                                                                                        1 256 325 626          1 281 681 462
Offshore investments   1 749 982 603              1 505 022 703

Total available-for-sale financial assets   
                                                                                                                                                                      3 006 308 229            2 786 704 165 

The Fund has issued a letter of support to BBS Limited during its banking license application process. If at any point the Fund 
wants to sell its BBS Limited shares it will have to get approval from Bank of Botswana. No Fair value adjustment has been done 
relating to this condition.  
     
Offshore investments are managed by independent Fund managers in a variety of offshore investments which includes money 
market and equity investments. The investment guidelines to the Fund managers are to achieve growth through moderate risk 
investments. At 31 December 2020 the portfolio composition was as follows:

Equity investments                                                                                           70% (2019 – 74%)
Cash and cash equivalents 12% (2019– 10%)
Bonds                                                                                                                   18% (2019 – 16%)
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12. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued)

 The offshore investments consisted of investments with the following Fund managers: 
   
                                                                                                                            2020                                                                       2019
                                                                                                    BWP                               US$                                 BWP                                US$
   
 Ninety One Fund Managers Botswana               894 627 807                    85 257 847                  758 300 259                     73 327 364      
 Vunani Fund Managers                                                        -                    -                   746 222 444                     72 207 748
 Botswana Insurance Fund Managers                   855 354 796                     81 514 976 -                   - 
 
12.1. Investment Management Fees     

The Fund pays investment management fees to Investment Managers based on assets value and agreed management fee. Expenses 
related to local investments includes Brokerage fees, Botswana Stock Exchange fees and commission for local transactions. 

                2020                                                              2019
     
Investment Management Fees                                                                             10 789 247                                                  10 879 699
     
 The investment management fee for offshore portfolio was 0.65% (2019: 0.65%)
 
13. Financial assets at amortised cost                                                                2020          2019
     
 Fixed deposits- at cost                                                                                     228 420 344                                                349 344 738

                                                                                                                                228 420 344                                                349 344 738
 
The effective interest rate on Fixed Deposits was between 1.95% and 4.75% per annum (2019: 0.45% and 6%).
   
The details of financial assets at amortised are as follows: 

  
Bank Simple  Placement                  Maturity           Placement             Accrued                     Total
                                                                        Rate                     Date                         Date                Amount              Interest          

Banc ABC 3.30% 18 Oct 2019   17 Jan 2020      5 000 000       33 904     5 033 904
Banc ABC 3.30% 29 Oct 2019   28 Jan 2020      5 000 000       28 932      5 028 932
Banc ABC 3.20% 01 Nov 2019   31 Jan 2020    20 317 906     108 659   20 426 565
Banc ABC 3.00% 15 Nov 2019   14 Jan 2020    10 000 000       38 630   10 038 630
Banc ABC 3.85% 02 Dec 2019   05 Feb 2020    10 000 000       31 644   10 031 644
Banc ABC 2.70% 05 Dec 2019   10 Feb 2020      5 000 000         9 986     5 009 986
Banc ABC 3.00% 16 Dec 2019   19 Feb 2020    15 015 925       19 746   15 035 672
Banc ABC 2.00% 19 Dec 2019   21 Jan 2020      5 000 000         3 561     5 003 562
Barclays Bank Botswana 3.45% 15 Nov 2019   15 May 2020    15 000 000       66 637   15 066 637
Barclays Bank Botswana 2.15% 26 Nov 2019   30 Jan 2019    22 005 697       46 664   22 052 360
Barclays Bank Botswana 1.75% 05 Dec 2019   06 Jan 2019     5 000 000         6 473    5 006 473
Barclays Bank Botswana 2.00% 10 Dec 2019   10 Jan 2019    30 040 867       36 214   30 077 081
Botswana Building Society 6.00% 01 Oct 2019   01 Apr 2020    85 376 953   1 291 180   86 668 133
Botswana Saving Bank 3.00% 16 Dec 2019  16 Mar 2020    21 649 118       28 470   21 677 588
Bank Gaborone 4.10% 01 Nov 2019  31 Jan 2020    20 466 610     140 238   20 606 848
Bank Gaborone 4.00% 14 Nov 2019  13 Feb 2020    14 192 231       74 655    14 266 886
Bank Gaborone 3.25% 02 Dec 2019  03 Feb 2020    15 015 246       40 109   15 055 356
Bank Gaborone 4.05% 18 Nov 2019  17 Feb 2020    25 000 000     122 055   25 122 055
Bank Gaborone 3.85%  27 Dec 2019  27 Mar 2020    18 127 079         9 560   18 136 639

Total    347 207 630 2 137 319 349 344 949

2019
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13. Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

  
Bank Simple  Placement                  Maturity           Placement             Accrued                  Total
                                                                        Rate                     Date                         Date                Amount              Interest          

Botswana Building Society 4,75% 08 Nov 2020 01 Apr 2021 85 843 603    603 257  86 446 860 
Banc ABC 2,05% 13 Nov 2020 12 Jan 2021 10 925 173      30 067  10 955 240 
Banc ABC 2,30% 04 Dec 2020 04 Jan 2021 10 177 709     17 957  10 195 667 
Banc ABC 1,95% 14 Dec 2020 13 Jan 2021 10 034 179       9 649  10 043 828 
Banc ABC 3,05% 16 Dec 2020 15 Jan2021 17 262 979      23 080  17 286 059 
Bank Gaborone 3,50% 13 Nov 2020 12 Jan 2021 15 194 996      71 396  15 266 391 
Bank Gaborone 3,75% 04 Dec 2020 07 Jan 2021 18 784 940      54 039  18 838 979 
Bank Gaborone 4,00% 11 Dec 2020 12 Feb 2021 10 799 493      24 854  10 824 347 
Bank Gaborone 4,00% 24 Dec 2020 25 Jan 2021 10 024 658        8 789  10 033 446 
Bank Gaborone 3,80% 26 Dec 2020 25 Jan 2021   5 114 621        3 195    5 117 816 
First Capital Bank 2,70% 13 Dec 2020 12 Jan 2021   7 026 087        9 875    7 035 962 
First Capital Bank 2,70% 15 Dec 2020 14 Jan 2021 10 162 891      12 780   10 175 671 
First Capital Bank 2,81% 22 Dec 2020 21 Jan 2021  10 142 403        7 808   10 150 211 
First Capital Bank 2,70% 29 Dec 2020 28 Jan 2021   6 048 524        1 342     6 049 867 

Total    227 542 256 878 088 228 420 344

14. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
 
  2020 2019
   
   
 At beginning of year 442 406 040 564 710 066
 Additions 198 473 428 75 000 000
 Matured (67 500 000) (200 000 000)
 Changes in fair value (22 623 105) 2 695 974
 
At end of year 550 756 363 442 406 040
   
   
 Maturing within 12 months - 68 184 888
 Maturing after 12 months 550 756 363 374 221 152
   
 Total 550 756 363 442 406 040
   
   
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are classified as current assets when they mature within 12 months of the 
statement of financial position date. In the statement of cash flows, these investments are presented within the section on 
operating activities as part of changes in working capital (Note 24).

2020
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14. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
  
The details of held for trade investments are as follows:

                                                                                  Maturity   Maturity         Interest                 2020                  2019
                                                                                   amount                   Date                                 rate  

Botswana Building Society 7 300 000 Dec 23 11.20% 7 291 131 7 451 008
Botswana Building Society 45 500 000 Oct 22 7.75% 45 500 000 45 500 000
Botswana Building Society Debenture 41 000 000 Apr 28 Prime less 0.5% 41 000 000  41 000 000
Botswana Building Society      25 000 000 Sep 27 7.25% 25 000 000 -
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 14 500 000 Jun 20 8.0% -  14 635 584
Furnmart Limited 42 500 000 Oct 25 8.2% 42 058 340 44 370 383
Botswana Housing Corporation 30 000 000 Dec 25 2.9% above Bank Rate           28 413 090              30 728 040
Prime Time 21 000 000 Jun 24         8.50%         20 784 057 21 501 690
Prime Time 40 000 000 Apr 30 7.00%        40 000 000 -
Letshego Holdings Limited     35 000 000 Nov 20 7.75% -     35 000 000
Letshego Holdings Limited      35 000 000 Nov 24 7.60% 35 000 000 -
RDC Properties 30 000 000  Mar 26 7.75% 28 299 720 31 198 110
RDC Properties 35 000 000 Mar 27 7.25% 33 046 230 -
Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 45 000 000 Nov 24 7.75% 43 467 705 45 340 335
Botswana Housing Corporation 8 000 000 Dec 20 10.10% - 8 088 704
Botswana Development Corporation     14 613 750 Jun 29 Prime Plus 2.25%            14 402 435                14 707 511
Botswana Development Corporation      30 000 000 Sep 30 8.00% 28 846 200        -
Government Bonds BW007 75 000 000 Mar 25 8.00% 85 164 375 92 424 075
Government Bonds BW008 10 000 000 Sep 20 7.75% - 10 460 600
Government Bonds BW007 13 000 000  Nov 24 8.00% 14 761 825 -
Government Bonds BW011 15 000 000 Sep 31 7.75% 17 721 255 -
     
                                                     550 756 363 442 406 040

15. Trade and other receivables 2020 2019

 Fuel levy receivable  10 007 798 11 392 332
 Third- party receivables 769 545 3 587 264
 Dividends 456 907 1 150 311
 Interest 7 242 808 5 213 437
 Other receivables and prepayments 10 943 468 7 796 440
 Staff receivables 6 952 498 7 293 065
 Provision for doubtful debts (2 642 545) -
 
Total current-trade and other receivables 33 730 480 36 432 849
   
 Staff receivables non-current 50 388 944 44 648 499
 Staff loans fair value Provision (1 930 848) (4 536 811)
   
 Total Non-Current receivables 48 458 096 40 111 688
 
Total trade and other receivables 82 188 576 76 544 537
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued)

IFRS 9 expected credit losses (ECL) remains an area of significant management judgement and estimation uncertainty. Following 
initial adoption, the Fund continued to enhance models, processes and judgements over the course of the year in response to 
known limitations and as part of the ongoing annual improvements. The current year has been further complicated by the impact 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. This adds further uncertainty particularly around applying forward-looking information to predict 
default and the realisation of collateral. For trade receivables, the group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Management made a provision 
for receivable that have more than 90 days past due at 100%.

 16. Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                                           2020 2019

Cash in hand                                                                                                                                                        50 500 50 500
Cash at Bank                                                                                                                                                  11 198 479 17 580 539

                                                                                                                                                                                 11 248 979 17 631 039

17. Fair value and other reserves
    
   

Balance at 1 January 2019 1 179 303 312 3 184 075 716 618 095 56 993 153 1 956 098 635
Transfer from accumulated surplus - - - (7 288 765) (7 288 765)
Net fair value gains during the year 
in other comprehensive income 282 023 114 - - - 282 023 114

Balance at 1 January 2020 1 461 326 426 3 184 075 716 618 095 49 704 388 2 230 832 984
Expenditure incurred - - - (4 953 781) (4 953 781)
Transfer from accumulated surplus - - - 4 767 955 4 767 955
Net fair value gains during the year 
in other comprehensive income 189 838 937 - - - 189 838 937

Balance at 31 December 2020 1 651 165 363 3 184 075 716 618 095 49 518 562  2 420 486 095

18. Trust liabilities      
                                                                                                                                              
18.1                                                                                                                                                                     2020 2019

Undertaking liabilities for future medical expenses                                                                            1 126 809 553 944 377 063
Liabilities for financial support                                                                                                                      509 234 630 504 821 906
 
                                                                                                                                                                           1 636 044 183 1 449 198 969

Current liability portion                                                                                                                                     110 232 544 144 699 735
Non-current liability portion                                                                                                                    1 525 811 639 1 304 499 234
 
                                                                                                                                                                           1 636 044 183 1 449 198 969

Available 
for sale 

investments

Freehold 
property

Insurance 
reserve

Road safety 
campaign

Total

Fair value reserves Other reserves 
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18. Trust liabilities (continued)

18.2                                                                                                                                                                                  2020 2019 
 
  
Opening Balance                                                                                                                                        1 449 198 969  1 228 473 311
Claims reserved                                                                                                                                              154 821 787     186 483 672
VAT on Reserves                                                                                                                                               15 696 536       18 684 635
Payments                                                                                                                                                          (102 480 367)  (102 995 392)
Write backs                                                                                                                                                       (26 913 877)      (8 673 522)
Interest                                                                                                                                                            145 721 135    127 226 265
  
                                                                                                                                                                        1 636 044 183  1 449 198 969

19. Outstanding claims

Balance at the beginning of the year                                                                                                            140 487 748     145 169 268
 Prior years claims settled in current year                                                                                                   (79 668 864)  (72 731 407)

                                                                                                                                                                                60 818 884              72 437 861
 Increase in provision for outstanding claims                                                                                          72 476 941 68 049 887
 
Balance at end of year                                                                                                                               133 295 825 140 487 748
 Comprising of:  
 Known claims                                                                                                                                                42 250 077 41 160 663
 Estimated unreported claims (IBNR)                                                                                                      91 045 748 99 327 085

                                                                                                                                                                          133 295 825 140 487 748
   
 Presentation of the above note was changed in the current year to only reconcile movement of outstanding claims. 
 
The Fund establishes a claim liability account, which is estimates of future payments for reported (known) claims and unreported 
claims (Incurred But Not Reported, `IBNR’) with respect to events which could result in an expense to the Fund. Provisioning is a 
complex process dealing with uncertainty, requiring the use of informed estimates and judgements. Any changes in the estimates 
are reflected in the comprehensive income in the period in which estimates are changed.
   
 A substantial measure of experience and judgement is involved in assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost of which 
cannot be known with certainty as of the statement of financial position date. The liability for claims is determined on the basis of 
information currently available. However it is inherent in the nature of the business that the ultimate liability may vary as a result 
of subsequent developments.

20. Trade and other payables  
                                                                                                                                                                            2020 2019

 Trade payables                                                                                                                                             2 782 945 2 862 268
 Fuel levy refund                                                                                                                                                  28 232 222 28 203 869
 Deferred Third Party Cover Income                                                                                                        343 824             1 002 307
 Accrued expenses                                                                                                                                      3 640 816 5 049 751
 Other payables                                                                                                                                           2 299 727 682 414
 Leave pay and gratuity payables                                                                                                             13 892 093 8 857 269
 
                                                                                                                                                                       51 191 627 46 657 878
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21. Commitments and contingencies

Litigations
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Fund is a defendant in various litigations and claims with respect to compensation claims. 
Although there can be no assurance the Fund believes based on information currently available that the ultimate resolution of 
these legal proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the results of its operations, financial position or liquidity 
given the provisions already in place. 
  
Capital commitments 
  
Capital expenditure approved at the financial position date and contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements is 
as follows:
  
                                                                                                                                                                           2020 2019

Property and equipment                                                                                                                                     205 841 569 874
  
22. Related parties  

The Fund is owned by the Government of Botswana. Ministry of Finance and Economic Development, Investment in Associate and 
Members of the Board of Directors are considered as being related to the Fund.

Related Party Transactions
  
Directors’ remuneration  
Board members’ fees and expenses                                                                                                            647 064 780 807
  
                                                                                                                                                                           647 064 780 807

Dividends received from Related Parties  
Feune (Proprietary) Limited                                                                                                                      10 413 248 13 588 938
Palapye Engen Partnership                                                                                                                          3 000 000 -
Maun Engen Partnership                                                                                                                               - -
Francistown Retail Partnership                                                                                                               3 750 000 -
  
                                                                                                                                                                                  17 163 248 13 588 938
  
23. Events after reporting date
  
There were no events that occurred after the financial position date which require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial 
statements.
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24. Cash flows from operating activities  
                                                                                                                                                                           2020 2019

 Net deficit                                                                                                                                                    (140 906 137) (176 395 404)
 Adjustments for:  
 Depreciation on property and equipment                                                                                              3 192 952 3 104 449
 Amortisation of intangible assets                                                                                                        1 159 893 1 159 893
 Impairment                                                                                                                                                   3 490 022 35 854 888
 Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties                                                                                  (2 600 000) (4 280 000)
 Share of associates profits                                                                                                                      (34 414 535) (29 536 064)
 Profit on disposal of property and equipment                                                                                       (984 151) (148 466)
 Profit on disposal of investments                                                                                                               - (8 310 585)
 Finance Costs-Leases                                                                                                                                  225 509 216 673
 Management Fees                                                                                                                                        10 326 215 9 564 158
  
                                                                                                                                                                           (160 510 232)           (168 770 458)
 Movements in current assets and liabilities  
 Trade and other receivables                                                                                                                            (9 134 061) 3 866 335
 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss                                                                           (108 350 323) 122 304 026
 Financial assets at amortised cost                                                                                                          120 924 394 (177 789 601)
 Outstanding claims                                                                                                                                        (7 191 923) (4 681 520)
 Trade and other payables                                                                                                                          4 533 749 (3 358 949)
 Trust liabilities                                                                                                                                              186 845 214 220 725 656

                                                                                                                                                                       187 627 050 161 065 947
 
Cash flows from operating activities                                                                                                     27 116 818 (7 704 511)
   
25. Interest Expense
  
 Interest on Trust Liability                                                                                                                         145 721 238 128 359 050
 Finance costs                                                                                                                                                 225 509 216 673
 Interest written back                                                                                                                                   (7 249 162) -
                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                           138 697 585 128 575 723
   
26. Foreign Exchange gains
  
 Exchange gains/(loss) on offshore available for sale investments                                                  17 793 147 (11 165 831)
 Exchange gain on foreign payments (Realised)                                                                                                  32 828 138 516
   
                                                                                                                                                                            17 825 975 (11 027 315)

27. Going Concern

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these financial statements. Given the economic consequences of the on-
going COVID-19 pandemic, the Directors have carefully reviewed the qualitative and quantitative assumptions underpinning the 
going concern assessment. The Directors have no reason to believe that the Fund will not be a going concern in the foreseeable 
future based on forecasts and available cash resources. A 12 months cash flow forecast was prepared taking into account worst 
case scenario, base scenario and best scenario, in all scenarios there were no indicators of failure to continue operating.

28. Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax in terms of Part One of the 2nd schedule of the Income Tax Act. Therefore no 
provision has been made in respect of income tax.
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29. Financial Assets    
    
The Fund holds the following financial instruments 
    
                                                                                                                                 2020 2019

Assets    
Financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income   
 
Local Equities and offshore investments (note 12)                                                3 006 308 229 2 786 704 165
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Local Bonds (note 14)                                                                  550 756 363 442 406 040
Financial Assets at amortised costs    
Fixed Deposits (note 13)                                                            228 420 344 349 344 738
Fuel levy  receivables (note 15)                                                10 007 798 11 392 332
Third party receivable (note 15)                                               769 907 3  587 264
Other receivables and prepayments (note 15)                      16 000 638 15 027 152
Staff receivables                                 55 410 595 47 404 753
Cash and cash equivalents (note 16)                                                                    11 198 479 10 530 482
    
                                                                                                        3 878 872 353 3 666 396 926

Liabilities    
Liabilities at amortised cost    
Trust liabilities (note 18)                                                              1 636 044 183  1 449 198 969
Outstanding claims (note 19)                                                                           133 295 825  140 487 748  
Accounts payable (note 20)                                                            51 191 627   47 731 120  
Lease Liabilities (note 8.1)                                                        2 479 991 2 479 991
    
                                                                                                     1 823 011 626 1 639 897 828
    
The Fund’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial instruments is discussed in note 2. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned above. The carrying 
amounts of each category approximated their fair value.

30. Impairment

All assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. Management has assessed the expected credit loss on financial assets and no material impairment were 
noted except for below listed assets.

                                                                                                                                                                       2020 2019
Rent receivable                                                                                                                                             2 642 545 -
Other assets                                                                                                                                                    847 477 -
Investment in associates                                                                                                                              - 35 854 888

   
                                                                                                                                                                                 3 490 022 35 854 888
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 2020 2019

Net fuel levy income   
Fuel levy income 100 713 501 123 120 895
Less: rebate (1 360 680) (781 140)
Less: VAT on fuel levy (10 790 732) (13 191 524)

   
 88 562 089 109 148 231
Net third party cover   
Third party cover 4 500 973 10 809 268
Less: VAT on third party cover (482 247) (1 158 136)
Third party expenses (449 287) (1 079 557)

 3 569 439 8 571 575
Investment income   
Interest 50 334 720 49 753 644
Dividends 64 296 466 71 405 206
Net gain from sale of investments - 8 310 585
Rental income 4 788 081 4 818 411
   
 211 550 795 252 007 652
   
Change in fair value of investment property 2 600 000 4 280 000
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through profit and loss (22 623 105) 2 695 974
Foreign exchange losses 17 825 975 (11 027 315)
Other income 1 240 703 714 200
   
Total operating income 210 594 368 248 670 511
   
Net increase in claims provision (141 150 627) (185 931 749)
   
Reinsurance premium (2 047 754) (1 968 370)
   
Investment management fees   
 (10 789 247) (10 879 699)
   
Property management fees (2 069 137) (1 561 592)
   
Interest expense (138 697 585) (128 575 723)
   
Road safety expenses (4 953 781) (7 288 765)
 
Administrative expenses   
Advertising (1 355 660) (1 642 911)
Audit Fees (430 400) (411 100)
Amortisation costs 1 446 071 41 509
Bank Charges (217 559) (280 218)
Custodial Fees (100 675) (110 470)
Directors Expenses (647 064) (780 807)
Data Processing Expenses  (1 924 190) (1 704 895)
Office Cleaning & Consumables (509 793) (478 877)
Entertainment (32 214) (30 488)

 (3 771 484) (5 398 257)
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 2020 2019

Administrative expenses (continued)

Brought forward from previous page (3 771 484) (5 398 257)
Depreciation (3 192 952) (3 104 449)
Insurance (1 159 158) (1 126 476)
Legal Fees (348 794) (237 747)
Library (30 460) (41 677)
Motor Vehicle Expenses (421 162) (503 155)
Postage & Telephone (603 549) (732 014)
Printing & Stationery (230 408) (315 632)
Professional Fees (2 623 327) (3 003 314)
Rent & Rates (565) (188 546)
Recruitment Expenses (93 615) (296 426)
Repairs & Maintenance (94 546) (131 466)
Salaries (49 107 116) (47 420 145)
Medical Aid (1 100 099) (1 032 429)
Pension Costs (4 618 340) (5 045 652)
Leave Pay  (1 936 745) (1 262 522)
Gratuity (6 237 738) (3 193 445)
Security (134 540) (130 535)
Other Staff Costs (704 808) (1 602 146)
Subscriptions & Licences (3 281 612) (2 909 087)
Travel (749 396) (1 377 621)
Training (1 180 812) (2 375 990)
Training Levy (189 556) (271 424)
Utilities (906 105) (841 038)
   
 (82 716 887) (82 541 193)
   
Total (382 425 018) (418 747 091)
   
Deficit for the year before share of profits from associates impairment (171 830 650) (170 076 580)
   
Share of profit/(loss) from associates 34 414 535 29 536 064
Impairment (3 490 022) (35 854 888)
   
   
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year (140 903 137)  (176 395 404) 
   
Other comprehensive income   
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss   
Change in fair value of available for sale investments 189 838 937 282 023 114
   
  
Total other comprehensive income 189 838 937 282 023 114
   
  
Total comprehensive income for the year 48 932 800 105 627 710

“This detailed statement of profit or and other comprehensive income does not form part of the audited financial statements 
covered by the audit opinion on pages 118 - 121”


